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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company’) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
By R &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you the
2016 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”).

Entertainment culture has always been the core values
of the Group’s business. To promote the Great China
entertainment culture, the Group has actively developed
the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) and
National Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) (collectively the
“Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project”). At the same
time, the development of culture and entertainment also
drove the Group’s tourism business, which enhanced
the development of the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project.

After years of effort and the support from all parties, the
Xigiao Arts Film Studio Project were officially launched
in October 2015. Following the grand opening, several
mega events have been held in the Studio and Hotel. With
reference to the tourists’ feedback, the Group continuously
improves and innovates in providing the tourists more
comprehensive and thoughtful service.
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The year 2017 will be the turning point of the Group, its
business to be transferred from a high investment period
to a stable harvest period. In the future, the Group will
committed to further develop its business in order to
maximize the return of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholder”) by ways of (i) co-operating with
local and foreign enterprises, resulting in synergies for
the development of the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project; (i) through the Group’s current cost competitive
advantage, developing network movie with high technology
and (iii) intensifying efforts to develop the Group’s tourism
business, focusing on promoting the Studio to be a well
known travel spot.

As a matter of fact, with reference to the published
statistics, both the PRC film industry and tourism industry
are in the high growth phase, which is a great opportunity
for the development of the Group’s businesses. In view
of this, the Group strives to upgrade the facilities in film
shooting base, in coupled with continuous promotion, with
an anticipation to will make it one of the most excellent
equipped and the largest studio in the Guangdong
Province.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
Shareholders for their continuing support. And thanks to
the Board members and staff for their dedication and
contributions. The Group will further strengthen its core
businesses and explore potential business opportunities
relating to its entertainment and culture business to create
long-term value for shareholders.

Thank you for your support.

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BLIE W e B a1 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project has a total
developed land area of 444,000 square meters and is a
unique studio which incorporates tourism and recreational
facilities such as film shooting areas, theme parks, hotel
and performing arts complexes.

Xigiao National Arts Film Studio officially opened in
October 2015. Following the grand opening, series of
festival celebrations, mega events and concerts featuring
popular singers were held in the Studio. During the year
2016, the Studio had held Lunar New Year Celebration,
Taiwan Food Festival, 2016 Marathon event and 2016
Halloween event, etc. And the Lunar New Year Celebration
and 2016 Marathon events also recorded approximately
26,000 and 9,000 attendances respectively.

In 2016 winter, the Studio cooperated with a well know
American Company jointly held a PRC’s first world —
class outdoor snow paradise event which included a South
China’s first outdoor Ski-slideway with 150 meters long. It
successfully attracted large numbers of tourists and arouse
a heated discussion in the city.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i Lo

On 16 November 2016, the Group entered a sales
partnership agreement with a PRC company in relation
to the sales of tickets of the Studio. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the PRC company will be appointed as an
exclusive agent to sell the Studio’s ticket in the PRC, and
undertook that the sales and distribution of the studio
tickets will be at least 1 million per year. It will effectively
stabilize the Group’s revenue. Other than the sales
partnership agreement, the wholly owned travel agency
company namely “National Arts Travel Limited” has be
established and commenced its business in the year 2016.

The Group believes that the events held and the
agreements entered will effectively improve the brand
awareness of the Studio and will push the Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio Project to the peak.

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000 square
meters, including a lake of 120,000 square meters and
numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which equipped
with the most excellent and comprehensive ancillary
facilities in order to provide the South China and foreign
shooting crews the most realistic and delicate scenes.

By virtue of the extensive choices, supreme geographical
location and multifunctional ancillary services, the shooting
base has been heavily used by the production crews.
During the year 2016, there were more than 60 production
crews filmed in the shooting base.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B G w i B oy A

On 11 January 2016, the Group has entered into a rental
agreement, taking the role of rental agent, with a well
known company renting film shooting equipment. The
partners provided the plentiful props, attires and high-tech
shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes
of Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It is believed that
it will bring substantial gain to the Group as enormous
synergistic effect will be created.

Following to the growth of the PRC film market and
the production crews’ requirements for the scene have
improved, the Group is developing a high-profile indoor
studio to enrich the scenic choice. The high — profile
indoor studio will expected to be completed in 2017 and
will generate a favorable income.
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Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group leased the Studio with
an area of approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square meters)
for a term of 12 years and the wedding photography
company invested RMB10 million for the construction of
scenic spots in different styles such as European, Korean
and Japanese styles and guarantee there will be at least
28,800 couples taking wedding photos in the scenic spots
per year. The annual income of this arrangement will be
no less than approximately RMB1.2 million starting from
2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected
to become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T e S B

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel next to the Studio has been officially
commenced its operation in November 2015. The Hotel
provides 350 suites facilitated from deluxe suites to
economic standard rooms. In addition, the Hotel is
equipped with a variety of recreational facilities such as
SPA, Modern Swimming Pool and Chess Room. Apart from
the recreation, the Hotel also provides commercial services
such as business centre, meeting rooms and lecture halls.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio
becoming mature and its popularity having increased,
the number of tourists continuously grow, the Group will
introduced an additional facilities such as beauty services,
barbecue facilities and other recreational facilities. And
for the catering, it will provide more dining options and
maintain high quality of foods and services.

Film Production

Entertainment culture is the core value of the Group’s
business. The Group is committed to produce and invest
in movie and online TV programme to promote the culture
and entertaining.

The movies invested by the Group, “lp Man — the final
fight” (M — #&4&—8) was selected as the opening film
of the “Hong Kong International Film Festival” in 2013, and
was selected as the recommended film in the “20th Hong
Kong Film Critics Society Award”. And “Golden Brother”
(B AMBEILAES) also won the best small and medium
cost film award in China Image Film Festival. These
achievements are really encouraging.

During 2016, the Group invested a charity movie namely
“Our Days” (F{FIHIBEHE) which is in the post-production
stage and will be shown in cinema soon. The theme of
“Our Days” is in line with the social current status, with
educational significance. The Group believes that it will
be obtained certain market occupancy among the film
screening industry and will enhance the Group’s corporate
image and brand awareness.

Apart from the above, the movie, Si Dang (3L %) and the
online TV programmes (£ 1LIME! 5. 28) and (5 5 AR {E B &)
invested by the Group will be shown in cinemas in the PRC
and internet in the year 2017 respectively.
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Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development
of cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhu Hai, Guangdong, the PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than 730
seats, and have commenced its operation since May 2014
which supports further comprehensive development of the
Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artistes Rose
Chan, Brian Yuen, Rachel Chau, Leomon Yip else, the
Group has arranged a variety of performance opportunities
including the participation in the charity movie, “Our Days”
(FAFIBIBETL), an online TV programme (IR 7. 28), the
drama and being the show host of the Lunar New Year
Celebration and 2016 Marathon events.

Besides, the Group’s artistes will perform and participate
in different shows and events. The Group will also
identify suitable institutions for them to serve as brand
representative and involve in advertising photography and
drama.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to
cope with the demands in the vast market and expand the
artiste management segment, hoping that it will become
one of the major income sources of the Group.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T e S B

FUTURE PROSPECT
Market Trends

According to the statistics published by China National
Tourism Administration, during the 2017 Lunar New Year
holidays, the gross tourism revenue in Guangdong province
was approximately RMB36,640 million which was the
highest across the PRC and representing increase of
16.17% compared with that in 2016.

Revenue from tourism during the 2017 Lunar new holidays

A K e &
HiEEY

BREFHEERKREBAMOAKTHT  R_F—
+tFEESFBREGM E%%%\mmmww\m%)\
R#3664FE T BHEE2H 8 _F—/XNF [ HE
N16.17%

017FHEZESEERMKBWRALTE — B+%

by provinces, regions and cities — Top Ten (on-going (HETH) -
statistics):
Total
Year- number of Year-
Total revenue on-year tourists on-year
Rank Province, region & city from tourism growth received growth
BERBE
axr HEW e 385 4B U N FLL R By FlLL R
(RMB billion) (million)
(ANRE+1ET) (B&AR)
1 Guangdong E®R 36.64 16.17% 48.26 13.5%
2 Sichuan a1 35.569 19.6% 63.8359 10.2%
3 Hubei il 22.57 20.3% 22123 19.1%
4 Zhejiang e/ pan Approx. 18.1% 21.4849 13.4%
iT18.6
5 Shandong IS 16.01 16.1% 18.565 11.9%
6 Shaanxi 5.3} 14.745 27.84% 30.2801 21.22%
7 Anhui =& 14.267 12.35% 26.8152 14.37%
8 Hunan i 13.835 26.92% 22.6629 20.43%
9 Yunnan £ 13.553 70.60% 22.9662 65.28%
10 Fujian B 12.974 25.1% 18.6372 20.8%
Chart by: WANG Zhaotong (intern) of B ARBREEETHE(EELE)
http://travel.people.com.cn
Descriptions: This table was compiled based on the SHEA AEREBOESERMIREZ AR
publicly available statistics and data HHE SETRAHAEHENE

provided by the tourism commissions of
different provinces, regions and cities,
and their statistical scope are different
from each other.

(Reference: China National Tourism Administration
web-site: http://cnta.gov.cn/xxfb/jdxwnew2/201702/
120170204_813901.shtml)
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t20170204_813901.shtml)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province in
the PRC continuously increased during the five years
period from 2012 (approximately RMB738,900 million) to
2016 (approximately RMB1,156,000 million). The rank of
Guangdong Province in the PRC in terms of gross tourism
revenue has maintained the first during this five-years
period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
G K oy

On 21 March 2013, Motion Picture Association of America
published an annual report that China replace Japan being
the world’s second largest film market after United States,
and this ranking has so far maintained.

According to the film market trends in PRC, the story
production has picked up after the decline. The story
production in 2016 rose to more than that in 2012 which
was at peak, being the highest production in the past ten
years. And the total box office has also increased during
this five years period from approximately RMB17,073 million
to approximately RMB45,712 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group believes that the upward trend will continue
in both tourism industry and films industry. To cater
the upward trend, the Group committed to the further
development of the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project.

Over 60 shooting crews conducted filming in the Studio
in 2016, which was more than two comparable studios in
the neighbouring districts according to Internet data. This
was mainly attributable to (i) the setting and scene of the
Studio was more in line with the needs of the shooting
crews; and (i) more comprehensive ancillary facilities.

For these reasons, the Group will continuously develop the
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project by (i) constructing
high-profile indoor studio; (ii) cooperating with resourceful
company in providing high-tech equipment, props, etc,
and (iii) developing new hotel project. The Group expects
that there will be more than 80 shooting crews to film in
the Studio in 2017. Meanwhile, the Group will produce,
promote and deliver new film products, implementing an
“Internet plus” strategy so as to utilize more of the internet
and information technology in the productions.

For tourism, the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project
is in the harvest period, variety of facilities have been
developed. In addition to the large-scale events which will
be held and the sales partnership agreement signed with
a PRC company in relation to the sales of tickets of the
Studio, the Group believes that large numbers of visitors
will be attracted and a substantial revenue will be brought
to the Group in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

During the year under review, the Group reported a revenue
of approximately HK$57.8 million, a increase of 44.4% as
compared to the revenue in previous year for the continuing
operations. The revenue was mainly attributable to the
business of the Studio in the PRC, while part of the revenue
was generated from the film production and distribution,
sales of travel related products, artiste management and
event coordination business.

Film production cost for the year under review increased
by approximately HK$5.58 million as the cost of the fim
production had been recognised during the year increased.

Staff costs for the year under review increase to
approximately HK$39.83 million from approximately
HK$38.76 million in 2015. An increase of approximately
HK$1.07 million in staff costs.

Finance costs for the year under review increased by
approximately HK$38.45 million by reason of the interest
charged on additional shareholders’ loan; interest payment
of bonds issued in 2015 and 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$327.09 million
as compared to net loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 of approximately HK$264.83 million. During the year
under review, the Group incurred several non-cash flow
expense items, including but not limited to, amortisation
of film products and land lease prepayments which are
amounted to approximately HK10.75 million and HK$13.7
million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B AT
Liquidity and Financial Resources RBHEERMBER
2016 2015
=t Y- —T-Hf
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH#T F# T
Current assets mEEE 81,689 69,507
Current liabilities mEaE 378,832 602,443
Current ratio MEN L K 21.6% 11.5%

Current ratio as at 31 December 2016 was 21.6%
(2015: 11.5%). As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
total negative cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$4.22 million (2015: positive cash and
cash equivalent approximately HK$4.36 million).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis which assumes the realisation of
assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of
business notwithstanding that the Group had consolidated
net current liabilities of approximately HK$297,143,000
(2015: approximately HK$532,936,000) and suffered loss
of approximately HK$327,092,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: approximately HK$264,834,000).
The management of the Group has been taking active
steps to improve working capital of the Group by obtaining
further debt or equity financing and implementing
measures to tighten cost controls over various operating
expenses in order to improve its profitability and to
generate positive cash inflow from its operations in the
future. The Company also entered into subscription
agreements with Mr. Sin and two third parties in respect
of the subscription of the subscription shares at an agreed
price which will be subject to the shareholders’ approval
at a special general meeting to be held on 6 April 2017.
The Company shall issue the subscription shares to Mr.
Sin and the two third parties to settle (i) the total interests
of the promissory note, convertible bonds and loans from
shareholder of Mr. Sin; and (i) the debts of the construction
costs amounting approximately RMB76,674,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$86,520,000) respectively. In addition,
the Group is actively exploring the availability of alternative
source of financing, the major shareholder, who is also
the major convertible bond holder of the Company, has
undertaken to provide financial support to the Group to
meet its liabilities as they fall due and to maintain the Group
as a going concern for the next twelve months by providing
certain undrawn revolving loan facilities amounting to
HK$306,000,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Taking into account of the presently available standby
credit facilities and the cash flow projections prepared by
the management with reference to the current business
and financing plans of the Group, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its present requirements for the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate
the value of assets and current liabilities respectively and
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company do not recommend payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of
the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at 31
December 2016, 3,998,389,482 ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid. The details of the capital structure
of the Group in terms of maturity profile of debt, type
of capital instrument used, currency and interest rate
structure are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated
financial statement from page 153 to 159 of this annual
report.

ARBREUHHNERAEEREREEEZEAR
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2016 2015

—E—-RE —E—FF
Amount Relative Amount Relative
&8 0¥ Gk JiER )
HK$’000 % | HK$'000 %

TER FAT

Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,501 0.4% 8,345 0.4%
Loan from a related company  — & B H QAR ME R - —% 12,400 0.6%
Loans from shareholders [REMER 462,344 23% 139,500 6.6%
Borrowings ’E 179,538 8.9% 269,161 12.7%
Bonds B 506,803 25.1% 273,970 13%
Convertible bonds AT A% (E 5 110,813 5.5% 377,450 17.9%
Promissory note HH R IR 81,655 41% 79,576 3.8%
Finance lease obligation B ERE 23,406 1.2% 21,666 1%
Total borrowings ER4A%E 1,373,060 68.2% 1,182,068 56%
Equity P 7 639,978 31.8% 930,382 44%
Total capital employed FrE AWM ERBEE 2,013,038 100% 2,112,450 100%
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The Group’s gearing ratio (i.e. the total borrowings to the
total capital employed) was approximately 68.2% as at
31 December 2016 (2015: 56%). If the bonds, convertible
bonds (liability component), promissory note and finance
lease obligation as stated above were to be excluded, the
underlying gearing ratio was 32.3% (2015: 20.3%). The
increase in the gearing ratio in current year was due to
increased loans from shareholders during the year under
review.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong Kong
dollars. During the reporting period for the year ended
31 December 2016, most of the transactions, assets and
liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. During the year under review, since
the Group had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
receipts and payments, the net Renminbi exposure was not
significant. The Board considers that the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk was not significant; therefore, no
hedging transaction was made during the year.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i Lo
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2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THERT FET
Contracted but not provided for: EHEREE: T
Construction of properties YRR 128,734 187,392
Authorised but not contracted for: B EBKRETL
Construction of properties (Note) MERER () 334,896 300,000

Note:  Capital commitment for construction in properties related
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was
approved by the directors of the Company according
to the land lease agreements signed between Lux
Unicorn, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation
to the leasing of lands for development of tourism and
related entertainment business and hotel operations.
The completion of constructions and commencement
of operations of the projects shall be within three and
four years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Group dated
25 August 2016 and the clarification announcement
dated 26 October 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Lux Unicorn Limited has entered into a
joint cooperation agreement with Foshan Tengyi Culture
Distribution Company Limited (f# L 2 XL EEHR
NF]) in respect of joint cooperate a water park and eco-
tourism project on the Ruxi land parcel in the Studio.

The water park and eco-tourism project is currently under
negotiation and drafting, and any updates will be made
available to shareholders as soon as possible.

Other than those disclosed, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.

Pledge of assets

The investment properties which had a fair value at 31
December 2016 of approximately HK$33,700,000 (2015:
approximately HK$32,200,000) were pledged to obtain
banking facilities for overdrafts.

Events After the Reporting Date

On 20 January 2017, the Company has entered into
the Shareholder Subscription Agreement and the PRC
Subscription Agreements with a non-executive Director of
the Company and the PRC Subscribers respectively.

Pursuant to the Shareholder Subscription Agreement
and the PRC Subscription Agreements, the aggregate
of 500,091,740 subscription shares shall be allotted and
issued under the specific mandate proposed to be sought
from the Independent Shareholders of the Company at the
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”) of the Company to
be held on 6 April 2017.

The subscriptions are conditional upon, the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing
of, and permission to deal in the subscription shares. If
such condition is not fulfilled, the subscriptions will not
proceed. The details of the Subscriptions are disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 20 January 2017 and
the Company’s Circular dated 17 March 2017.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than the disclosure under “Capital Commitments”
on page 21 of this annual report, the Group did not have
any other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016.
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The completion of a major and connected transaction

The Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement
to purchase the entire issued share capital of Lux Unicorn
Limited in 2014 (“Acquisition”) details of which one set
out in the Company’s circular dated 23 March 2015
and obtained the land use right with a total site area
of approximately 368.33 mu. The Group management
expected the development of those nearby areas would
bring along a new height of the Xigiao National Arts Studio
Project.

In regard to the acquisition in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014,
promissory note 1 amounting to HK$80 million and
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$300
million have been issued to the Vendor or its nominee, while
the remaining promissory note 2 of HK$20 million will only
be issued subject to the obtaining of the land use rights
certificate in relation to the No-Certificate Land. If land use
rights certificate have not been obtained on or before 31
December 2015, the consideration for the acquisition shall
be adjusted by reducing therefrom on amount of HK$20
million, and in such event, promissory note 2 shall be not
be issued.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 460
(2015: 444) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performances, experiences and the prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed periodically
by the remuneration committee and the Board’s
remuneration is determined by reference to market terms,
company performance, and individual qualifications and
performance. The Group aimed to recruit, retain and
develop competent individuals who were committed to the
Group’s long-term success and growth. Remunerations
and other benefits of employees were reviewed annually in
response to both market conditions and trends, and were
based on qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key management
is determined by the individuals performance and market
trends.

During the year under review the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruption to its operation due to labour disputes nor has it
experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Directors believe that the Group
has a good working relationship with its employees.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Law Po Yee, aged 37, was appointed as the Vice
Chairperson of the Board on 26 October 2010, as an
Executive Director of the Company on 5 August 2010
and as Chief Executive Officer and Compliance Officer of
the Company on 9 May 2011. Ms. Law obtains a master
degree of business in the University of Newcastle and has
extensive experience in entertainment, artiste management
and film production industries. Ms. Law also has years of
banking experience, specializing in risk management. Ms.
Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, non-executive
Director.

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 32, joined the Group in
January 2010. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration with previous experiences in
media and financial industries. Mr. Chow was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company on 25 March 2011 and
as the Vice Chairperson of the Board on 5 August 2016.

Ms. Sin Ho Yee, aged 32, joined the Group in March
2011. Ms. Sin obtained a diploma of Communication from
the Melbourne Institute of Business and Technology. Ms.
Sin was appointed as Executive Director of the Company
on 25 March 2011. Ms. Sin is the daughter of Mr. Sin Kwok
Lam, non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 59, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2010. Mr. Sin was re-designated
from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director
in October 2010. Mr. Sin has over 20 years’ banking
experience in various departments including Internal Audit,
Finance, Risk Management and Business. Mr. Sin is an
associate member of the Chartered Institute of Banker,
and he holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from Oklahoma City University, USA, a certified diploma in
Accounting and Finance from the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a graduate Diploma in Law Course
from City University, London, UK and a Bachelor Degree
of Laws (LL.B.) from Manchester Metropolitan University.
Mr. Sin is also the chairman and an executive director of
First Credit Finance Group Limited (Stock Code: 08215), a
company which shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Sin is the spouse of Ms. Law Po Yee, an
executive Director.
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Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, aged 46, holds a Bachelor’s
Degree of Business Administration and Management (with
Honours). He worked for Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(“Cathay Pacific”) during the period from 1996 to 1998.
After his resignation from Cathay Pacific, Mr. Li continued
his education in Boston and started food and beverage
business and plastic resin trading business in the United
States of America. In 2000, Mr. Li returned to Hong Kong
and worked in The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Federal Express Pacific Inc. and
Midland Holdings Limited. Mr. Li is a current holder of
Estate Agents License (Individual) and a Certified Paralegal
in Institute of Paralegals. Mr. Li was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in May 2009 and re-
designated to a Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, aged 57, has been in the
legal field for over 20 years. Mr. Chan received his
legal education in England where he was awarded the
Postgraduate Diploma in Laws (the Legal Practice Course)
from the University of Wolverhampton after he had obtained
the law degree from the University of London. Apart from
his law degree, he also obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Chinese literature and history. Before he commenced his
practice, Mr. Chan had worked with the Insolvency and
Criminal Litigation Sections of the Legal Aid Department
for 12 years. As for the public service, Mr. Chan was an
honorary chairman and legal adviser of the Urban Services
Staff Association (Tsuen Wan Welfare Section). Mr. Chan
is a general practice lawyer and also the Vice-Chairman of
Hong Kong Legal Professionals Association and the legal
adviser of Hong Kong License Consultants Association.
Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of
Sun International Group Limited (Stock Code: 08029), a
company which shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2009.
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Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 60, holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.
Mr. Chui is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Stock Code: 00417), Wing Lee Property Investment
Limited (Stock Code: 00864) and PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 08201), a non-executive
director of Addchance Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
03344). He was an Independent Non-executive Director
of 21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01003) until his
resignation in September 2011 and Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (Stock Code: 08148) until his resignation in
March 2016. Mr. Chui was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2009. He
is also a director of a number of private companies and
associations.

Prof. WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, B.B.S., J.P., aged
69, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2010 and is currently the
members of Audit Committee, Disclosure Committee,
Investment Advisory Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof.
Wong is a Practicing Certified Public Accountant. He
is the managing practicing director of Patrick Wong
CPA Limited and has over 40 years experience in the
accountancy profession. Prof. Wong obtained a Doctor
of Philosophy Degree in Business, and was awarded a
Badge of Honour in 1993 by the Queen of England. Prof.
Wong has been appointed as a Justice of the Peace
since 1998 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star
(B.B.S) in 2010 by The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Prof. Wong is currently
an independent non-executive Director of C C Land
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01224), Water Oasis Group
Limited (Stock Code: 01161), Galaxy Entertainment Group
Limited (Stock Code: 00027), Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
00874) (formerly Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company
Limited), Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (Stock Code:
02010), Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00702), Winox Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 06838), BAIC
Motor Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 01958) and Li
Bao Ge Group Limited (Stock Code: 08102). He was also
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Munsun Capital
Group Limited (previously known as China Precious Metal
Resources Holdings Co., Limited) and Bisu Technology
Group International Limited (previously known as Excel
Development (Holdings) Limited) and resigned on 3
October 2016 and 10 August 2015 respectively, all are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 62, has more than 30 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and secretarial services.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor degree of Social Sciences (with
Honours) in the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Li is also a
fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. Mr. Li is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
managing director of Arthur Li, Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited.
Mr. Li is a director of Cheong Yip Corporate Services
Limited, which is principally engaged in corporate service
related business. Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-
executive Director of Henry Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 00859) and Tysan Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00687), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Immediately prior to his appointment as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in June 2014, Mr. Li was an Independent Non-executive
Director of First Credit Finance Group Limited, whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 08215) until his resignation in May 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Luk Ho Lun, aged 32, joined the Group in 31 March
2016, is the company secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2015.
Mr. Luk is an Accredited General Mediator of Hong Kong
Mediation Accreditation Association Limited and Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre, a Certified Fraud
Examiner of Association of Certified Fraud Examiners
(United States), a member of Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators (United Kingdom). Mr. Luk obtained a Bachelor
Degree of Laws (with Honors) and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong,
and a Master Degree of Laws from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Luk has over 4 years’ experience in legal and
corporate secretary area.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This report is the first Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report presented by the Company to
the public in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules. In
this report, the Group strives to disclose its policies and
practices towards the environment, social and governance
aspects of the Company and its principal operating
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group incorporated corporate, environmental and
social responsibilities into its business strategies to
promote healthy entertainment to and integration of
society, contribute to environmental sustainability, achieve
healthy and harmonious developments of its staff as well
as continue to create long-term value for its stakeholders.
During the year 2016, the Company has implemented
relevant ESG policies, which:

o in compliance with the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations on corporate environment,
society and governance that have a significant
impact to the Group’s business;
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o continue to facilitate social integration by actively
implementing the concept of “eliminating racial
discrimination and building a harmonious society”;

o encourage the employees to raise their awareness
towards “energy and resource savings”, support
and promote energy saving and emission reduction
measures;

° integrate green philosophy into the development of
the Group and ensure the Group is in compliance
with the environmental laws and regulations; and

o strive to establish healthy and harmonious
relationships with its employees, shareholders,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

As the Group is principally engaged in investment holding
and its principal subsidiaries in Hong Kong mainly
participate in film production and distribution, provision of
management service to artistes and provision of travel-
related products, it does not have significant air emissions,
discharge into water or land in relation to its operations
in Hong Kong. And no substantial hazardous waste was
produced by the Group during the reporting period.
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In relation to the Hotel and Studio operation of the Group
in the PRC, to mitigate environmental pollution, the
Group strives to reduce, reuse and recycle throughout its
operations and promotes green construction in carrying
out development projects, such as dust control, noise
reduction and waste water treatment.

Throughout the period under review, the Group has strictly
complied with national and regional laws and regulations
in the PRC in respect of emission, disposal and generation
of waste, including the Law of the PRC on Environmental
Protection (FZE AR EMBERERE L), the Law of
the PRC on Prevention and Control of Pollution From
Environmental Noise (A R FEMEIIR TR )5 206
%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution (2 A R £ K RI52556%),
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution (FF 2 A B # A1 7k 55 22 [ 34 7%), Regulations on
Environmental Protection Administration of Construction
Projects in Guangdong Province (& HR &2 REHIRE
IREEIREH]), as well as the statutory requirements in
Hong Kong, including Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354),
Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Cap. 603) and other
relevant laws and regulations.

Use of Resources

With the operation of studios and hotels, energy and water
consumption have increased accordingly.

In order to reduce unnecessary usage and improve efficient
use of resources, the Group has established the “energy
and resource savings” policy, under which:

° lights and electronic appliances in living area or
workplace must be turned off when they are not in
use;

. the temperature of the air conditioners shall be
maintained at 25.5° C;

o power of the computers, copy machines, printers
and other office equipment must be turned off when
the staff are off duty or on leave;

o recyclable resources e.g. recycle paper, washable
tableware, water recycling shall be used;

° solid waste shall be reduced by practices such as
using e-memo instead of physical paper and food
waste shall be reduced by promoting the concept of
“not to order more than enough”; and

° carry out regular leakage tests on concealed piping
and check for overflowing tanks, waste, worn tap
washers and other defects of the system.
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The Group will continuously monitor and manage the use
of resources in order to reduce its operating costs as well
as the carbon footprints.

Environment and Natural Resources

Over the past few years, the Group has developed rapidly
and a series of new projects that may have a significant
impact on the environment and natural resources have
been constructed.

In view of that, the Group has established a green policy
in project construction, which requires:

. to take into account of environmental protection and
take reasonable actions at the initial project planning
stage to the largest extent to avoid damage to the
natural ecology in the construction process;

o implementation of the greening projects in the Studio
and Hotel, in particular, more than 530 trees in total
have been planted in the Studio and Hotel during
the year under review; and

o construction waste screening facilities to be
established to reuse inert materials.

The Group regularly reviews its environmental protection
policy and has adopted preventive measures that are
necessary to the reduction of the environment risks and
has ensured that the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

SOCIAL

Employment

The Group understands that the employees are its most
important asset. In view of that, the Group has spared
no effort in recruiting and retaining talented staff by
establishing a human resource policy, under which:

o employees are reviewed annually on a performance
basis with reference to the market standards for
consideration of promotion and/or reward;

. a wide range of benefits are provided, including
comprehensive medical insurance, continuous
education scheme and staff discount scheme;

. a staff manual is established to govern the
recruitment, promotion, discipline, working hours and
leaves;

o a variety activities are organized from time to time

to improve the cohesion of staff members including
annual carnival show, Mid-Autumn Festival reunion
dinner and “monthly star” birthday parties;
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o clear work processes according to professional and
ethical labour practices which have been clearly
communicated to all employees. Certain policies
to govern employees’ affairs such as payroll,
attendance and termination are clearly set out in
staff appointment letters in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance; and

. diversity of workforce are promised, including
in terms of age, gender and nationality, as well
as a culture of including equal opportunity.
The management regularly reviews the Group’s
remuneration policy in relation to relevant market
standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the proportion
of the Group’s male and female employees is equally
distributed where the majority of the Group’s employees
are aged from 25 to 30.

During the year under review, the Group has fully complied
with the rules and regulations of the PRC, including
Company Law of the PRC (FFZE A RFEMEQFE),
Contract Law of the PRC (F#EA R X FE A [%), Labor
Contract Law of the PRC (FEARLMELEHAE R
%), as well as the statutory requirements in Hong Kong,
including Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant rules in relation to
the Group’s employment matters. Further, the Group will
continuously update and review any changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations from time to time.

Health and Safety

To enhance employees’ work ability, the Group strives to
provide a healthy and safe work environment, such as:

° providing auxiliary tools e.g. trolley, pump-action
water dispenser, ladder, etc;

° organizing a series of trainings in relation to
occupational safety;

° equipping fire extinguishers, sprinklers, hose reels
and smoke detectors;

o arranging regular pests control; and

° supporting team members to achieve a healthy
work-life balance.

Appropriate measures will be continuously taken by the
Group to improve the safety and health of the employees
in workplace.
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During the year under review, the Group has compliance
with the rules and regulations of the PRC, including
Production Safety Law of the PRC (FZEARKEMBE L 24
%) and Occupational Disease Prevention Law of the PRC
(AR LR B AX), as well as the statutory
requirements in Hong Kong, including Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and other relevant rules in relation to the Group’s
health and safety.

Development and Training

Following the business development and the changes of
the environment of the business operation, the Group
encourages and supports the employees in personal and
professional training and also encourages a culture of
experience-sharing.

During the year under review, the Group made full use
of internal resource to organize various forms of training
covering management, customers service, financial, etc
to the PRC office with support from Hong Kong head
office. Other than the internal training programme, the
Group established a continuous education scheme (the
“education scheme”). According to the education scheme,
the employee who passed the probation will be entitled
to the subsidy for the specified course approved by the
management with the maximum amount to HK$50,000.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits any child and forced labour
in its Hong Kong and PRC operations. A Comprehensive
recruitment processes are established requiring
background checks on candidates and formalized
reporting procedures to address any exceptions found.
Group also performs regular reviews and inspections
to detect the existence of any child or forced labour in
the operations. At the meantime, the Group also avoids
engaging vendors of administrative supplies and services
and contractors that are known to employ child or forced
labour in their operations

During the year under review, the Group has complied
with the Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B
of the Laws of Hong Kong) made under the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Convention on the Abolition of Forced Labor in respect of
use of labour, the Labor Law of the PRC (1% A R #0150
4E)7X) in relation to the recruits juveniles under the age of
16 and the juvenile employee’s lawful rights and interests,
and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labor that was
formulated and enforced in the PRC since 1 December
2002.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that the quality of its products and
services as well as our reputation will be influenced by
the work with its suppliers. Therefore, the Group strives
to establish a stable and long-term cooperation with
its suppliers and established a policy for selecting and
reviewing the suppliers.

In selecting new suppliers, the Group compares between
at least three different companies and emphasizes
the legal compliance and integrity culture of suppliers’
operations, beyond cost considerations. On-site
inspections and research are conducted before the
commencement of business with suppliers, followed by
annual examination and evaluation in various aspects
including occupational health and safety, employee rights
protection, environmental protection and corporate social
responsibility to ensure suppliers operated in compliance
with the national standards or relevant requirement, and
there are no child labour or forced labour issues. The
examination and evaluation results will be used as the basis
for continuation or termination of cooperation in the future.

As to constructors, all major raw material suppliers are
required to comply with the Environment Protection Law of
the PRC (R EEA R HAMEIRMRIZE) and those with 1ISO14000
environmental management accreditation will be given
priority in the selection process.

Product Responsibility

The Group adheres to a policy of quality products and
customer-oriented services, providing consumers with
high-quality products and comprehensive services.
The Group has developed a series of standards on
quality assurance, and has adopted a day-to-day quality
control system over the Group’s products and services.
Meanwhile, the Group also emphasizes the importance of
communication with its customers. The Group has built
up several communication channels for its customers to
provide their feedback and rate the Group’s services,
where any complaint cases accepted will be recorded in
the quality control systems and followed up and handled
by the customer service team. Meanwhile, the team
will identify the causes with the relevant responsible
departments and develop preventive measures. For
significant issues, it will be reported and discussed at the
monthly meeting.
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For the advertising of travel-related products, the Group
strictly complied with the standards set out by the Travel
Industry Council (the “TIC”) and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Chapter 362 of Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Law of the PRC on the Protection of the Rights and
Interests of Consumers (FZEAREMBEE B = # = (R
#%). Before the submission to the TIC, the draft of the
advertisements are reviewed by the Senior Management
and granted the approval. All the advertisements will not
be published before approved by TIC.

To respect and support the innovation, the Group develop
a copy right policy according to the guideline issued
by Intellectual Property Department. Before using the
registered original film, image and music, the Group will
first apply to the relevant authorities and obtain approval.
For the film production and distribution in Hong Kong,
the films will be reviewed and approved by Senior
Management and the Office for Film, Newspaper and
Article Administration of the HKSAR before the publication.
And before the first publication and use, the management
will review the relevant approved documents again to
ensure that there is no violation of the relevant legislation.

Other than the statutory requirement mentioned as the
above. During the year under review, the Group has also
complied with Food Safety Law of the PRC (¥ A R
MBE & % & K), Measures for the Control of Security in
the Hotel Industry (i £8 3£ )& %2 & ¥ it /%), Fire Prevention
Law of the Peoples Republic of China (F1EEA & A B
[77%) as well as the statutory requirements in Hong Kong,
including Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Prevention of Copyright Piracy Ordinance
(Chapter 544 of the Laws of Hong Kong)other relevant laws
and rules in relation to the Group’s business operation.

Protection for Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
customer privacy and strictly complies with the relevant
provisions of the national laws and regulations including
the Personal Data (Privacy Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Tort Law of the PRC (FFEEA K £
FEE# E1T%) and General Principles of the Civil Law
of the PRC (FEARKEMEREBA). During the year
under review, there were no incidents or substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy or
losses of customer data.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to develop a comprehensive
internal control system to prevent, and detect its
employee from engaging in acts of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering to protect the
legitimate interests of the Group. Other than the internal
control system, the Group has established a reporting
channel including telephone, e-mail and mail for receiving
complaints regarding alleged corruption cases either on
a named basis or anonymously. All receiving complaints
will be investigated and handled by the internal audit
department under the guidance of the vice chairman of
the Group.

The Group strengthens the management of risks in relation
to anti-corruption and internal control in accordance
with national laws and regulations, such as the Criminal
Law of the PRC (A K HEAMEE), the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC (4 A R H B [ %k 880%),
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC(FZEA R 2 ME
TEE#HFX), Rules for the Implementation of Main-body
Responsibility Regarding the Construction of Party Style
& Honest Administration Issued by Party Committee (2%
EEERBRREREIRBETHEEAMA), as well as the
statutory requirements in Hong Kong, including Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Independent Commission Against Corruption
Ordinance (Chapter 204 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant rules in relation to anti-corruption and has
complied with such laws and regulations throughout the
period under review.

In 2016, no significant risks relating to corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering were identified. There were
no confirmed incidents in relation to corruption or public
legal cases brought against the Group or its employees
concerning corruption.

Community Investment

As a responsible and ethical enterprise, the Group
understands the needs of the communities and takes
the communities’ interests into consideration in its
business operation. Through film production and the
cooperation with charity organization, the Group support
the development of community culture to contribute to the
society.

The Group has actively implemented the concept of
“eliminating racial discrimination and building a harmonious
society” and invested in a charity movie named “Our
Days” (“FfI#IBEHL”) to facilitate the social integration.
The charity movie will be shown in cinema in Hong Kong
in 2017 and all of the revenue generated (after deducting
costs) will be donated to a charity organization to help the
ethnic minority and vulnerable groups in Hong Kong.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This report highlights
the key corporate governance practices of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Throughout the year 2016, the Company has adopted
and complied with all code provisions, where appropriate
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) with an aim of maximizing
the Shareholders’ interest, enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with sound and reasonable
corporate governance practices and procedures during the
year ended 31 December 2016 discussed the below:

Code Provision A.1.1 (Board meetings)

o The Company held four regular Board meetings
during the year 2016.

Code Provision A.4.1 (Re-election of non-executive
directors)

o Non-executive directors of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Three independent Non-executive Directors were re-
elected at the AGM held in June 2016.

Code Provision A.5.1 (Establish a nomination committee)

o The Company established a nomination committee
with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties. The nomination
committee of the Company included three
independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-
executive Director which is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board.

Code Provision C.1.5 (Present annual and interim
reports)

o The Company announced the unaudited interim
report and audited annual report of the financial year
2016. In addition, the company also announced the
unaudited operational information for the first and
third quarters of the financial year 2016.
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Code Provision C.2.3 (Risk management and internal
control system review)

° The Company adopted a systematic and sustainable
risk management and internal control system during
the year under review. The Board reviews and
considers the nature and extent of significant risk
in its business and the external environment and
the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control system
annually.

The other key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are also outlined in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with sound and reasonable
corporate governance practices and procedures with an
aim of maximizing the Shareholders’ interests as well
as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency and
accountability. The Company had adopted a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with
the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors which represents a mixture of
experts specializing in management, law, accounts and
finance. All Directors possess comprehensive qualifications
and experience as well as exposure to diversified industries
which are crucial to the growth of the Group.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, formulating and oversee the Group’s business
strategies and monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and internal controls of the Group’s business
and operations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(o SCRTE 8

FARXC.23 (AREERBTABDEERLR)

. ARREEFERARZSE RIS ERRE
BEABEERLS EF98FEHLMEE
HEBRIBRFEZ2ENRABUEL MEE
VA% 32 B 45 48 B 5 P I T P 85 42 AR AT Y
#HENREE -

ARARMEELREARUREADREL %

ERETEFRZS

ARBHNBBTERAENCEERERLE
FRESKENGEETLR EEARESRKREKX
fle ANRSYHESESEZEHELRBEM -
ARBIERMEBUESETESR S 2TATE
HEigmz=mglZE R LR AI$5.48E5.671KATH
ZRGNTEAEFEBE LREZFELARS
HE - BERRREBEE—_ZT—AE+-A=+—H
HFE—HEBTRGNTEIRAARBHESE
TEHFRP2ITASTE -

EHEE

ARABEFTEARNTRFRTESOMTE - &
SARER AR SAREBETEZIEEN

He rREFABUAKREETNEREREEY

RAEEREKER YEFPRZMETE-

BE
EEGREALEORREY HEREEAE

BREBRBALERASEERNEE U
RI - REBRERENMAIERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

39



40

To oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs,
the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated
to the Board Committees respectively to responsible
for maintaining an appropriate financial reporting, risk
management and internal control, reviewing its directors’
remuneration policy and reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The details of each Board
Committee are set out in the section headed “Board
Committees” from page 45 to page 48 of this annual
report.

The Board has delegated the senior management to be
responsible for (i) the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses: (i) implementation of the strategies
approved by the Board and (i) providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of the management. The
Board also gives clear directions to the management team
as to their powers of management, and circumstances in
which the management team should report back.
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Board composition EFEEM

REARRAFHREE  EXSHATMAIERT
B —HAYTESMURBIFRTESAN:

Through out the year and as at the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises two Non-executive Directors,
three Executive Directors and four Independent Non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Date of first appointment Date of last re-election
Name of Directors to the Board as Director

EEES BRARZEZTESENEY RE—RERREFEHEY

Non-executive Directors
HHNTEE

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
SHBMSE A (F )

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim
FHAEE

31 May 2010
—E-FEFRA=+—H
13 May 2009
—ZEZNFRHAT=H

29 June 2015
—E-RFRAZTNEB
19 June 2014
—T-MEXATAE

Executive Directors

HITEFE

Ms. Law Po Yee (Vice Chairperson)
BERULLT(BFE)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Vice Chairperson)
BRI T (B )

Ms. Sin Ho Yee

Vi k=R dun

5 August 2010
—2—ZF A\ AAA
25 March 2011
—T——F=A=+HAH
25 March 2011
—Z-—%=A-+%A

29 June 2015
—Z-—HFEXNA=-+thH
19 June 2014
—E-mERATAE
19 June 2014
—Z-mEAATAA

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIFHTEE

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

BRR LS4

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
EEHLCEE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
HEBAK

Mr. Li Kit Chee

T2 L

13 May 2009
—EENFRAT=H
13 May 2009
“ETAFHEATZA
3 February 2010
—E-FTF-H=H
1 June 2014
—T-mFEAA—H

24 June 2016
—E-RFANAZ+TAH
24 June 2016
—E-NFERAZHEA
24 June 2016
—E-XFXA=+mWmA
29 June 2015
—T-HRFAA-HNA

REZCRERREZBENE) MR AFHES
EZEMEERSREREREE| 5 -

The Biographical details of each of the Directors and
the relationships between them (if any) are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” from page 25 to page 28 of this
annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by code provision A.21 of Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules, the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual to ensure a clear division
between their respective independence and accountability
and to maintain a balance of power and authority. The
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are currently held by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and
Ms. Law Po Yee respectively.

The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is
responsible for formulating the long-term strategies of the
Company and overseeing its overall business development.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Ms. Law Po
Yee, focuses on implementing the Company’s business
strategies and policies approved and delegated by
the Board and overseeing the Company’s day-to-day
operations.

Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, Non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. Each of the
existing Non-executive Directors has been appointed by the
Company for a specific term of one year and are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
complied with Rules 5.05 and 5.08 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company appointed four
Independent Non-executive Directors and with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of any
potential new directors and the nomination of directors for
re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”). In accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company, the Directors shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as and addition to the existing Board, whom is subject
to retirement and re-election at the first AGM after his/her
appointment.

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors are
engaged on service contracts with the Company for a term
of one year.
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The Company has also entered into a letter of appointment
with each of the Independent Non-executive Directors for
a term of one year subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his/her appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

With pursuant to the Bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-
laws, at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Such retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Directors’ ongoing training is very important to the
maintenance of high corporate governance standards in
the Company. The Company adopted a policy on Induction
of and Continuous Professional Development to encourage
all Directors in continuing updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and changes in the
business and market environment in which the Group
operates to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

To assist the directors in continuing their professional
development, the Company recommends that they
regularly attend relevant seminars and courses at the
expenses of the Company and are required to provide the
Company with his/her annual training record to ensure the
enhancement of their knowledge and skKill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, duties and responsibilities of
the Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:

Name of Directors

BEERS

BHE-_ZT-—ARFT-_A=T—-HIEFE 2BESF

BE2H
HE R
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FREEEEZRMEN BEEZRIK
RAKBERZF

EXEREY FB

Types of

Training

&l S A

Non-executive Directors
FHITEF

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)
B E(FEE)

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim

EX P

A&B

A&B

Executive Directors

HiTEE

Ms. Law Po Yee (Vice Chairperson)
BRERLZT(FE/E)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Vice Chairperson)
JERRER F E (BI £ /)

Ms. Sin Ho Yee

GRla Lt

A&B

A&B

A&B

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHPNTEE

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
BRRSZ5E4

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
EECEKE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

=R EAX

Mr. Li Kit Chee

FhHzRE

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

Remarks:

A: Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate
governance

B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory update

B:
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Directors’ Responsibilities For Financial Reporting in
Respect of The Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016, the Directors have consistently selected
and applied appropriate accounting policies and standards,
mad judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to the events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the accounts.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on page 95 to 97 of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and
to enhance the function of the Board, three Board
Committees namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee have been
established. Each Board Committee was established with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties and are reviewed from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
2002 with its written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently
comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors,
being Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin
Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit
Chee.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Audit Committee must comprise
a minimum of 3 members, at least one of whom is an
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director.
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The primarily duties of the Audit Committee are: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation
or dismissal; (i) review and monitor the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and (iii) review of the Company’s financial
information.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee held four meetings for the reviewing of the
Group’s annual, half-yearly and quarterly results, assessing
and evaluating of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control system.
The Audit Committee has, save for the relevant issues
as required, made recommendations to the Board
after reviewing the scope of services offered on the
reappointment of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor. The attendance record of these meetings are
set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings and Attendance” on page 48 of this annual
report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in 2005 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant
to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the remuneration
committee currently comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, being Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, Mr.
Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr.
Li Kit Chee. Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert is the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) make recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and determining the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments and, (iii) ensuring
that none of the Directors or their associates will involve
in deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee adopted the approach under Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(i) to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting in relating to
the overall remuneration policy and structure and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
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management in assessing their performance and approval
of the relevant terms of service contracts. The attendance
record is set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 48 of this
annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established in 2012 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick and Mr Li Kit Chee. The Chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, a Non-
executive Director.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
mainly (i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding
the identification of suitable, qualified individuals for
selection and appointment as Directors; (ii) to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company; and (iii) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or re-
designation of, and succession planning for, Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
September 2013 concerning diversity of the Board. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
are based on merit, and candidates are considered against
various objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The measurable objectives for
implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. The nomination committee
will review the policy on a regular basis and will discuss
any revision that may be required, and recommend any
proposed changed to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and the diversity policy of the Board; (i)
Assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; (i) reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and (iv) evaluated
Directors’ time commitment and the contribution required
from Directors to discharge their responsibilities. The
attendance record is set out in the section headed “Board
and Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 48 of
this annual report.
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Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each
year on a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice
of not less than 14 days in advance together with the
formal agenda will be addressed to all Directors for all
regular board meeting. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant
issues arising during the operation of the Company, notice
is given in a reasonable time in advance. To enable the
Directors to make informed decisions, the Board papers
together with all appropriate and relevant materials and
information in relation to the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meeting are sent to all Directors.
Proper minutes of Board meetings and Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for inspection on reasonable note by any Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
the Board Committees meetings and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the
following table:
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Executive Directors HiITEE
Ms. Law Po Yee BERLLT

(Vice Chairperson) (B &E) 5/6 — — — —
Mr. Chow Kai Weng RS 5 A&

(Vice Chairperson) CEY:) 6/6 — — — —
Ms. Sin Ho Yee Vi AR gun 6/6 - - - -
Non-executive Directors HMITEFE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam BB R & (F )

(Chairman) 5/6 - - N M
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim gk R & 3/6 — — — 1/1
Independent Non-executive 18 FE#7TE F

Directors
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor PR K 37 S A 6/6 11 4/4 11 11
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert EECKE 6/6 1 4/4 - 1
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick & &E & 24 % 6/6 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Li Kit Chee Ttz ke 6/6 11 4/4 11 11
Total number of meetings & & 4 & 6 1 4 1 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by the
Board include: (i) formulating and reviewing the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (i)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the senior
management; (i) reviewing and monitoring the policies and
practices of the Company in compliance with the relevant
laws and regulatory requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing
and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance;
manual applicable to employees and Directors and (v)
reviewing the compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance by the Company and the disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 31 March 2016, Mr. Chan Man Hung resigned his
position as a Company Secretary of the Company and Mr.
Luk Ho Lun (“Mr. Luk”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Luk is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters;
ensuring proper board policy and procedures are followed
for ensuring good information flow within the board and
also facilitate induction and professional development of
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has
access to the advice and services of Mr. Luk at all time in
accordance with the code provision F1.4 of Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. And Mr. Luk has taken no less than
15 hours of professional training during the period under
review pursuant to the Rule 5.15 of GEM Listing Rules.

THE AUDITOR

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited (“HLB”) as the external auditor for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. HLB is independent and
there are no relationships between HLB and the Company
that are likely to impair its independence. The roles and
responsibilities of HLB are stated in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 89 to 97 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit fee of
the Group to HLB amounted to HK$610,000. In addition,
approximately HK$178,000 was charged for non-audit
services, including quarterly and interim report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that the internal control play an
important role in improving the profitability of the Company
and the efficiency and effectiveness of resource used.
During the year under review, the Company applied a
series of systematic and accountability internal controls
and has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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Internal control framework

The Group has had in place an internal control for many
years. The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Company to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets, while
the management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control.
The Group’s internal control framework comprises five
components as the below:

i) Control Environment

° The Board of the Group and senior
management demonstrate a strong
commitment to integrity and high ethical
values.

o Management establishes a reporting

relationships and authorization protocols
(including the assignment of authority and
responsibility, and accountability for actions).

. Providing ongoing education and training
in relation and performance feedback and
appraisals and competitive compensation
packages to hire competent staff.

(i) Risk Assessment

. Setting a clear business objectives to enable
the identification and assessment of risks
relating to objectives.

. The Board and management of the Group
decide the risk acceptance level and strive to
maintain risk within that level.

. Prioritized the significant risks in gross term in
consideration of the Company’s objectives.

. Consider the potential for fraud in assessing
risks to the achievement of objectives. Identify
relevant and important changes and take
action as necessary.

(i) Control Activities

o Segregation of duties is typically built into
the selection and development of control
activities.

o Selects and develops control activities to

mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
to acceptable levels.
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(iv)  Information and Communication

° Effective communication with both internal and
external parties in relation to the functioning
of an internal control system.

o Information systems provide operational,
financial and compliance-related information,
both internally- and externally generated, that
facilitates the running and control of a business
and is necessary for informed decision-making
and external reporting.

() Monitoring Activities

° The internal control system accomplished
through ongoing monitoring activities and/
or separate evaluations to ensure it operates
effectively.

o Deficiencies are evaluated against criteria
established by regulators, recognized
standard-setting bodies or management and
the board of directors, and deficiencies are
communicated to management and the board
of directors as appropriate.

Internal Control Policies

The Group’s internal control has put in place by the
Board, management, and other personnel of the Group,
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives in the following categories:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
° Reliability of financial reporting
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

In the Group, the internal control covers every activity and
transaction, while the Group emphasized that everyone is
an important part of internal control systems. The internal
control policies of the Group comprises five aspects:

. Separation of Duties

Separation of duties involves splitting responsibility
of particular experienced employees for personnel
administration, planning, performance monitoring,
marketing and accounting and requiring critical tasks
to be reviewed by the management of the Group.
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o Access Control

Controlling access to different parts of data and/
or system via passwords, lockouts and electronic
access logs can keep unauthorized users out of the
data and/or system while access tracking can also
serve to deter attempts at fraudulent access in the
first place.

. Approval Authority

Requiring specific managers to authorize certain
types of transactions such as large amount
orders, significant transaction, etc and approval for
particular activities such as recruitment, marketing
plans, large payments and expenses, etc to
prevent unscrupulous employees from making large
fraudulent transactions.

o Documentations

Standardizing documents used for particular
activities (e.g. Hotel room reservation form, petty
cash claim form, administration memo, etc) to
maintain consistency in record keeping over time.
Using standard document formats can make it easier
to review past records when searching for the source
of a discrepancy in the system.

o Internal Audit

Internal audits include test on the Group’s operating
procedures, documents examination, hand-counting
cash and any physical assets tracked, etc to oversee
the effectiveness of the internal controls.

Internal Audit Process on the Internal Control System

The Group set up an internal audit department comprising
of the experienced staff with in financial, marketing,
administration, risk management field. The internal audit
department is responsible to for the day-to-day internal
audit function by (i) examinary documents; (ii) performing
test on the operating procedures; and (iii) identifies and
evaluates the internal control defects. All finding and
recommendation on internal control deficiencies were
reported to the Board quarterly.

In view of the Group’s simple operating structure, it was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. Incomplete statement the reviewing of the quarterly
report prepared by the internal audit department, the Board
has also through the Audit Committee had conducted
to annual review on the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The review covered material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group.
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The Company has formulated the policy of disclosure of
inside information. The Company regularly reminds the
Directors and employees about due compliance with the
policy regarding the inside information.

Internal Audit Function and Activities

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance code provision
C.2.5 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an internal audit department to
responsible to the day to day internal audit function, and
the Board of the Group through the Audit Committee to
carry out the analysis and annual independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

During the year under review, the internal audit function
by internal audit department accordingly and the
quarterly reports were submitted to the Board, and
the Board reviewed the quarterly reports and no major
issue was raised for improvement. The Audit Committee
has conducted annual review on all aspects of the
Group’s activities, risk management, internal control
and corporate governance processes and assisted the
Board to independently assess the effectiveness of the
internal controls system and risk management. The Audit
Committee had held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 in relation to the evaluation of the
internal control procedures to assess its effectiveness and
prevent and detect any procedural failure or deficiency
of the risk management and internal control systems. No
major issue was raised for improvement.

To maintain a high quality of internal controls and support
the business growth of the Company, the Audit Committee
continuously review and recommend to the management
on the internal controls. Meanwhile, the Audit committee
enhance their competency by keeping itself updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
changes in the business and market environment to further
strengthen the overall internal controls.

Internal Control and Risk Management Effectiveness

In respect to the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Board considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern that might affect shareholders were identified.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s Internal control
system and its risk management are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives at the reasonable level, but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There is no any changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders which
enables shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding
on the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board also believes that it is vital for developing
and maintaining continuing investor relations with the
Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.nk” as
a communication platform with all Shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company as
an important channel for Shareholders to exchange views
with the Board and will endeavor to be available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure Shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going
dialogues with Shareholders and encourage their
participation in the AGM or other general meetings. Notice
of meeting containing agenda, proposed resolutions and
postal voting form are sent to registered Shareholders by
post. All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend
annual and extraordinary general meetings, provided that
their shares have been recorded in the register of members
of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting (“SGM”) to be called by the Board, provided that
such requisition properly states the object(s) and deposited
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary, and be verified with and confirmed
by the Company’s share registrar that such requisition is
proper and in order.
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The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of their total voting rights may do so, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 3 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. A
meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened
in the same manner as if the meeting was convened by
the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either
any number of registered Shareholders holding not less
than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100
registered shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (i) provide shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting with notice of any resolution(s)
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting; and (i) circulate to shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meetings any statement(s)
in not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolutions or other businesses
to be dealt with at that meeting. A requisition signed by
all the Requisitionist(s) with a sum sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses shall be deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than six weeks
in case of a requisition requiring a notice of resolution(s) or
before the meeting. If an AGM is called for on a date six
weeks or less after the deposit of such requisition, such
requisition, through not deposited within the required time
period, shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purpose thereof.

Enquiries from shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings
should be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries
from Shareholders can be directed to the Company whose
contact details are shown on page 4 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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To Ensure the long-term growth and achieve the Group’s
strategic objectives, an effective risk management take
an essential and important role. Since 2016, the Group
adopted a systematic and sustainable approach in order to
provide a clear responsibility and accountability structure
for risk management.

The Group’s risk management framework clearly stated the
role of the Board, Audit Committee, senior management of
the Company (the “Senior Management”) and business unit
and their own responsibilities to risk management. The aim
is to identify risks and then manage them so that they can
be understood, reduced, mitigated or avoided. The Group
Risk Management Report was presented to the Board for
review in December 2016.

REREHEELRERASERBERR - 91T
BRHMEBREREETAHE - A-F—RNEFEHN
K ARBERNERRRAIFENEG - B AR
RERRHE-EEHOAERRAERE -

AEENRREERBELIAESES FEKZE
Bg ArraRBRE(RREEBDREREER
BUmAG ARKRSAFHAREENEE - B
B R - AIRINAE IR - BEREESRBE - &
K Fi@Erhl AEENEREERSEC
REF-—RF+t_ARETESEUHEEH -
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
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THE GROUP’S RISK A £ Y e B AR PE R A
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework and its own AEBEREREEEEREGBSFHEMT:
responsibilities:

The Group’s risk management framework FRENEEERE

Top-down approach:
The Board Evaluate ahd monitor th‘e strategic
risk to achieve the Group’s goals

e Board oversight
e Goal Formulation

BEMTiE:
AP RERERERR UERAR
SEHNER

Audit Committee
* Independent Assurance

BEXESE

* B %8

Risk escalation and
assurance
BB Ft 4R B 1% 58 Senior Management
e Risk Reporting and
Communication
e Risk and Control Oversight
Function

Guidelines, role and
- ibilities
EBREEE ;esponsn ie

.« BRERRER Bil-AGERE

o 3P Ko BS 1 BS 2R

Business unit/individuals
e Risk and Control Ownership
¢ Mitigating Plans

ERHEM EA
. Jﬁwﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
o A7 #EtE

Bottom-up approach:
Identification and prioritization of all material risk by cross functional workshop

BTFmLEE:
BB N TET AR IR E BRI A ERER
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The Group’s Risk Management Responsibilities

1.

The Board is responsible to:

Formulate the annual business objectives,
planning and decision making at the strategic
level;

ii. Oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework and approves risk
appetite. Meeting with Audit Committee
and Senior Management to ensure the
risk management framework is maintained
appropriately and effectively.

Audit Committee is responsible to:

Oversee the Group’s overall risk assessment
along with the effectiveness of the risk controls
and mitigation process and identify all material
risks that may impact the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives;

ii. Review the risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies, and discusses with
Senior Management in relation to the selected
risks for more detailed review. Summarise the
material risk and circulate to the Board.

Senior Management is responsible to:

Review the risk management process
regularly, and report on the key risks and
considers common risks across the Group.
The Group Risk Management Report shall
be prepared and submitted to the Audit
Committee;

i, Identify the Group’s financial risks and non-
financial risks, including strategic reputational,
regulatory, operational risk and ranking the
risk with reference to their own materiality and
circumstances. And the risk register shall be
established;

iii. Establish various policies, procedures
and guidelines with defined authority for
effective segregation in relation to the
risk management and the established an
effective communication channel reporting
of any malpractice and unethical conduct.
The training programme was arranged for
the Group’s employee regularly to ensure
their understanding of the Group’s business
objective and their own duties.

FEEMEREESRE
Exg8f:

1.
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4.

Business units is responsible to:

Carry out risk management activities in day-
to-day operation in their areas of responsibility,
making effective risk management processes
and mitigating plans in accordance with good
practices and guidelines established by the
Senior Management;

Reporting any malpractice and unethical
conduct within the Group without fear of
reprisal and victimization, and discuss with
the Senior Management on any difficulties
in relation to the risk management on a
timely basis. Business Unit Risk Management
Reports shall be prepared and submitted to
the Senior Management.

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
JEL B 4 B R 4

EBEMLAE:

BRBRERESENRITERRIE
5 ERAREEBRBRTHATHRELE
AR E LS B RAER
BRI

i ERAEEANENIERTERT
ROMBARBRERRE  REiH
2 B B T ) A R R = AR IR T AT
e ARBEBEMAREERSE
VEXTHMRERE -
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The Group’s Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management process consists of five major phases; 1) Establishing the risk context; 2) Identifying
risks; 3) Risk assessment and evaluation; 4) Developing control and mitigation plans; 5) Risk reporting and monitoring,
covering the business and decision-making processes including strategy formulation, business development and
planning, capital allocation, investment decisions and day-to-day operation:

FREMEREERF
$'§@E’JH P EBRTFEELARR: 1) & B A s 2) @ pl L B ¢ 3) L B BT ¢ 4) Il E BRI ’EJr%J 5) [
BRERER  REXBRAREF  PREHITER EXBZRREAY B2 %xéfaem&El i
e N
1). Establishing the risk o Risk reference tables for the Group were established and updated by
context the business units and reviewed by the Senior Management regularly.
REERBYE =

EBBEURARERILEFRBRSER  ThSREEEEHEMN -

o The Senior Management sets a common risk language to avoid any
conflicting terminology or confusion.

SREREERE-—REARES  #REREANHTFRAZHREE -

2). Identifying risks o In annual business planning process, divisions and departments are
sk Bl & B required to identify all material risks that may impact their achievement
of business objectives.

E2FXEBREBES  DMEHBPIARMNTREFEEEREBAR
MEEXRE -

o Divisions and departments identify the risks at the business unit level
and Senior Management identifies the risks including financial and non-
financial risk at the Group level.

DEREMPIRAEBELERNRR  SREEERNEEEENY
BRIE B AR -
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3). Risk assessment and
evaluation

2 B ¥ £

Divisions and departments assess and score the risk identified along
with their impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

DER AP A R EM BN ER AR EBEBN T ER K
EH A BENE -

Senior Management shall ensure a detailed project risk be assessed
for each investment project and properly documented.

BEEERERESERERBETHFANAERRIE T2F
REESR -

The risks identified in the annual business planning process and/or in
each investment planning process are evaluated based on the same
set of risk profiling criteria as the quarterly risk review process.

E2FEBREBREDRHEZEREREBIZPPHG R R
REEFERREBMBRENR -—ERRBRONTERNFFMG -

4). Developing control and
mitigation plans

% B 4 R 4T 4R 5T &

Senior Management reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
process and approves the mitigation plans.

SREREERTRAREERFNE R LI EFEE -

Divisions and departments identified risk and then processes the
mitigating plans in accordance with good practices and guidelines
established by the Senior Management.

’\*B&*BF’EJ%%%%& BEAHIENRFEREES - BRRER - A
BB E AT &S -

5). Risk reporting and
monitoring

EREBRERER

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which may have a
material impact on the Group over a longer timeframe, are monitored
and discussed on a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee and the
Board.

KRR E  REEZNRBEERBREEME AT HRAEEERK
ij(‘?ya HﬂjKE.%*?;/\EEEé%A%%&i ETTuTuﬁ°

The Board established a communication channel including bottom-up
and top-down review process across the Group.

EXSHERBRE RREASEERETATMLERALAT
MR o

Business units prepared the quarterly Business Unit Risk Management
Report and submitted to the Senior Management. The Senior
Management reviews the Business Unit Risk Management Report and
highlights the material risk in the Group Risk Management Report and
submitted to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

EBEUGRETEEREVRREERETEXTEAEEE -&
%Eﬁﬁi?%ﬁ%%%hﬂ R BERE  RERELEERRE
BRETNEANER YEXTEZZE® -
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Material Risks of the Group

In 2016, the Group adopted the ERM System in the
identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks to
the business strategy planning and business development
of the Group including: Business, strategic and regulatory
risks, Financial risk and Operational risk. The ERM System
adopted was compiled to cover: 1) the material risks of
the Group in both existing and new business; and 2)
associated action plans and controls designed to mitigate
the material risks, where applicable, at appropriate levels:

FREMEXEKE

REZE—RF  ARERALCERRERSE A
ERIP IR SIS S RIE i3
BARFEKEAR  BREXR KEBELEERR -
MBRERREERR - FrERAADEREREEH
EHNRHEANRRE NVAEBERBRTEER
THEARR: R)EEFEEEEE LNEKRE
BHERITER B REE(ER)

Risk Description

B 4l

Risk Mitigations
B4R B

Business, strategic and regulatory risks: They are the risks in relation to the impact from the market environments,
changes of corporate structure, non-compliance of regulatory, rules or laws and the strategy planning of the Group.
These risks included longer-term risks for the upcoming 3-5 year and are reviewed by Audit Committee quarterly

and documented in the Group Risk Management Report.

% REREERR

EETEMISERE  ARABEY  BEREEMRTE RUSERRASERBREME

TEEHNAR ZFRBREEARISESFNRIAAR HEXZEEFTENNRESERRERRE P

ER -

Online Threats

The continuous and rapid growth of online activities
including digital media and online marketing further drives
changes in business behavior while altering the entire
competitive landscape, especially in the PRC.

WBLERDF/BERRMIER B BB HKRERALEHE
—HRELSEHITANE  RENERESRFIRE  HFilE
FEHE -

In the film production segment, the Group plans to
introduce various elements e.g. Computer Graphics
Technologies, Virtual Reality, etc. and invest in
online TV programme, micro movies, etc to cope
with the high demands in online market.
HELEESH  AEEHESIATRNTE - I
MEKEBERN ERESS UREFLESR
BiE MEXE UEHHELHHEHNREREK-
The Group uses variety online media e.g.
Facebook, Instagram, etc to establish
communication channel with existing and new
customers. In the meantime, the Group cooperate
with other online media to put more focus on
marketing efforts to attract targeted customers.
AEEFMABTRAA L FEEE - 520 Facebook
Instagram% - R BB BRI EFPHBEREE -
BRI AEEEEME FERBSE WER
EFRHMEZEHER

Changes in Corporate Governance Code

With effect from 1 January 2016, Hong Kong Stock
Exchange has amended its Corporate Governance Code
relating to risk management.

cEERTAZL

A-F—AE—A—Ri BEBIAMETHERARE
B0 R E AT -

In 2016, the Group has set up an enterprise risk
management framework and provides a range of
guideline, procedures and policies for employee
across the Group to comply with Amendments and
further adjustments are being made to relevant
processes to ensure timely compliance.
RIB—RF  REEBKZCERREEEE
WHeH—R5Es - BFEREE ERAEES
BEEAET NEURBEREFELETMNE-—F
RE - MRENETEREARD -
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Risk Description

B B 4

Risk Mitigations
B I% 4F R TR B

Product Competitiveness

The Group is well known for operating the Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project including film shooting areas, theme
parks, etc. in Foshan City. However, some of the tourists
may raise their attention to the theme park with similar
nature nearby since it got the national AAAA level tourist
attractions identity in August 2016.

EREEN

BETA $E@Eﬁmmakﬁﬁm.§ AR IER
BIERESH I%AE%°%W BT IR ok B 4B 48

PUHEnEBRARE =
;‘%?EWU—J ﬁﬁ%%ﬁuﬁz"

—NFN\ A BIG B RAA R TR

To enhance the competitiveness of Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project, the Group cooperated with
resourceful companies to jointly organize or/and
develop a series of unique projects such as snow
paradise event in 2016.
REEFERELEBZRINIBENTEE - NEEG
ZEEREENARAIE  HRAMHEN RER
—RIFRER M- R"EFNZILEE -
Meanwhile the Group is planning to construct a
numbers of indoor shooting bases and enhance
the filming ancillary facilities.
[ B $E@E+ﬂ£L
RABELRER

18 = W38 5 1 &

Financial risks: They are multiple types of risk associated with financing, including financial transactions. Financial
risk is one of the major concerns of the Group across different fields and geographies. The Group reviewed the
financial performance and assessed these risks before and after making each investment decision. The Group’s risk
management report in relation to these risks was prepared and reviewed on quarterly basis.

PER: BRE(BEReRRS) MANZEELER
RETRE T ER -

o B 7% L B
AEEBRASPBRRENEHEBEREREMNEFIEZERAR -

PRAEEBE ARG MR ER B -
AEERZERRZABREEREREFE—

Highly dependent on the debt financing

The repayment of the debts and the payment of the
relevant interest as a result of the financing by issuing
bonds, convertible bonds, shareholder’s loan with an
regular interest payment may put pressure to the Group’s
cash flow.

%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ

iﬁ?é‘ﬁi%% BERES  BRER
%

A A HEE - EHSASF
BHEEEB RN HEBEFN S

=
MEBHAKRENRE R

%&Fﬁ

The Group passed a resolution at the annual
general meeting held on 24 June 2016 under
which the Directors were granted a general
unconditional mandate to allot, issue and deal with
Shares for fund raising purpose. Substitution of
debt financing with equity financing can effectively
reduce debt interest payments and improve the
Group’s cash flow.

AEBER —ANERNAZTUBRTHRRAEASF
kA@ﬂ ER%% B ESEE —REE -
AT @b & Bl 8 - &1 &Fﬁhﬁoﬁh%ﬂﬁﬁ
BREBREVMAEMALIEINEBIEERSAE
.I/@uﬂi/uui °©

The Group is in discussion with the Non-executive
Director in relation to the interest repayment of
the shareholder’s loan, convertible bond and
promissory note by the way of issuing new shares
instead of cash payments.
REBEREFNTESTETIR BHEER
RER TTRBREFREARZE 2L - BT
RO ERE SN -
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Risk Description

B B 4 il

Risk Mitigations
L I% 4F 4R 1R B

Foreign currency risk associated with the Group’s .
investments

The Group’s foreign currency risk remains low through o

currency matching practices of revenue, cost and debt.

RAKE R & H 650 E 5 s

BB  KARBEHEEENERE S  AEENS

PEE o e 4 H EIR K o

Maintain current currency matching practices of
revenue, cost and debt.

HREAEEE NG RARBEBEBHEEHE
Project level debts to be denominated in and/or
swapped into functional currency where possible.
LeE Bt ER S E R A EE (B A)
WIEBE -

Adopt hedging transaction in line with the Group
Treasury Policy, where applicable, at appropriate
levels.
?%M§%é$%@Eﬁ%Eﬁz%E@@%§7ﬁ$¥ﬁ¢§%(1&1’
MA) -

Operational risks: They are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events. The Group considered that these risk are closely related to good and quality management.
In view of that, the Group has set up an effective internal control system. Details on Internal Control are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to 55 of this annual report.

weRk ARNHSERF BIREABITEHEIBSIIKREEMESE - AEERAZSTARERIRSESEREER
TR - BERI  ARBEERIBUANIEE RS - NAEENFBEHNANFREIELANBEE RS -

Recruitment, staff retention and training

China’s film and service industries are developing rapidly,
and demand for talent has increased substantially. New
technologies emerged yet there is a lack of relevant
external training. The Group may face shortages and losses
in human resources and technology.

il #ESIRIR
PEZEYRRBIEERERR  WATBRNARML
R oo FTER TR RA R AR A EERE R
ANE R RG22 R RIBK -

The Group recognizes that young people play
an important role in our future success, and it
is essential to attract them to join our Group
and encourage them to develop their career with
the Group. The Group shifts the focus towards
recruiting fresh graduates and develop a range
of training programmes to cultivate home grown
talents for the future management pipeline.
REERRFEAHBIMORKKNINERES
BMARSIFRAMATEE R FEBEAREEH
BERHEFZ AEEHKBELEBEREEESESE
HERAE-RIDIRERAEERMATIER R
B o

The Group held a series of activities for employees
(e.g. Chinese New Year Celebration, Annual Dinner,
etc) and provides Employee Discount Program with
an aim to enhance the staff's sense of belonging
to the Group and to establish a good working
relationship with the management.
AEBAGEEBRT—RINEH(WERTEEEHN
F FEBRES) RRHESTNIAR  URSE
IRAEENGEBRNREEREREIRIFER -
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Risk Description

B B 4 ol

Risk Mitigations

Reputation Threat

On 18 February 2016, a newspaper reported that the
Group was not in a position to repay its loans and related
interest in a timely manner, which posed a threat to
the creditworthiness of the Group. Investors may lose
confidence in the Group.

RIB-—RF-_ATNE BREREAEET L & KEE
BEFRERMNE HAKENEEEEKEE - KE
BB Y ARNREREEFED -

The Group immediately responded to the news
report by explaining that the failure was due to
difficulties in arranging funds during the Lunar
New Year and not due to financial problems of the
Group.

REBEKRITERBIELDE  BERERK
BEBEBDANEBENFTFRESCTHLNTRNEM
WIHAEEFETHRA -

In order to avoid the similar reputation threat, the
Group appointed an external expert to review and
monitor the risk in relation to the Group’s reputation
and report to the Group regularly.
RTBLBUNEBERE AEEINEERBRA
RERGHEASEBRENER K TE B A EER

& o

Business Growth in the PRC

The business of the Group in PRC (including hotel, film
shooting base, cinema) grows rapidly. We are exposed to
infrastructure risks, including weak local management team
structure, inexperience of staff and inadequate systems,
etc.

RPENERER

AEERPRZEB(BREE EXHREEL EXR)
RrER - BRMALERERERAR BEFAHERE
EGRBES BEIERTERRGTRSE -

Tailored training programmes covering
management, customers service, financial, etc are
offered with support from Hong Kong head office
to enhance employees’ capability and to improve
personal performance.

BEEBRAZ NI REESFEMHOEIIER
(RIEER  FPR®  UKE) UEREEEN
K AE A KR o

Senior Management of Hong Kong head office
will travel to the PRC office for experience sharing
and an effective communication channel was
established between Hong Kong head office and
the PRC office for the reporting and enquiry.
BEEBRA o REBERETPERERIEL
BN BABLRARPEREE L HRIAN
BERBUERELREH -
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The Group understands that to be a successful business,
risk management is very important. In 2017, the Group will
continue to (including but not limited to):

- Improve and enhance the risk management
framework and its implementation to ensure
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and other applicable regulations.

- Offer risk awareness training programme to the PRC
existing and new business and continue to review
the effectiveness of the Internal Control System in
the PRC.

— Seek for opportunities to provide both internal and/or
external training for the employees to enhance their
risk awareness and risk management technique.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk
management focuses on the risk detection, reducing,
and avoidance to the reasonable level but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment
and Culture Group Limited
Law Po Yee
Vice Chairperson, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2017

AEBRARRERS —HKRDEEMEELHE
R-NR_ZT—tF AEESEBEERFETR
3/\\\ -

— HEKRESEABREBEERNT  BREF
BREERTAREMERER -

— RAPERARHMARRERRBEIZIIER
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- SHRHRBRESRMABRE IEEI
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BERLR  ARENRREREZINELRAZ 8
PEBIRELRBREAEKFE  RERKERL
FIBRIEHWIFBHORE -

EEEED

EERETCRERRAE

BIZ/E  BITEERITEAH
BESR

EE —E—tEF=A-t_-H

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7



The board of directors of the Company has pleasure in
presenting the directors’ report together with the audited
financial statements of National Arts Entertainment and
Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group include film production
and distribution, the provision of management services
to artistes, event coordination, provision of travel related
products and operations of film studio and hotel.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in note
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND
APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 98 to 99.

No dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 232.

PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 and note 16, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND
WARRANTS

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONVERSION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 31 May 2016 and 12 July 2016, 470,000,000 and
196,666,666 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company (“Shares”) were allotted and issued respectively,
at HK$0.180 per Share upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attached to the 9% convertible bonds
(“CB5") in the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 issued
by the Company on 15 April 2015. The CB5 was issued as
part consideration of the Company’s acquisition of 100%
interest in Lux Unicorn Limited, details of which are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December
2014 and the Company’s circular dated 23 March 2015.

Pursuant to the CB5,

1 the maturity date of the CB5 is the date falling on
the day being the third anniversary of the issue date
of the CB5 or if that is not a business day, the first
business day thereafter;

(2)  the holder of the CB5 can convert the CB5 into
Share (“Conversion Share”) during the period
commencing from the date of first issue of the CB5
up to and including the date falling on the seventh
day immediately prior to the maturity date of the
CB5 provided that if (a) the Company shall default
in making payment in full in respect of the CB5
which shall have been called for redemption on the
date fixed for redemption thereof or (b the CB5 has
become due and payable prior to the maturity date
by reason of the occurrence of any of the events
of default described in the instrument constituting
the CB5 or (c) the CB5 is not redeemed on the
maturity date, without prejudice to the right of the
holder of the CB5 to receive default interest, the
conversion right attaching to such CB5 will revive
and/or will continue to be exercisable up to, and
including, the close of business on the date upon
which the full amount of the moneys (both principal
and interest) payable in respect of the CB5 has been
duly received by the holder of the CB5, PROVIDED
THAT no holder of the CB5 shall exercise any
conversion rights attached to the CB5 to the extent
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that immediately after such conversion (i) the holder
of the CB5 together with parties acting in concert
with it, taken together, will, directly or indirectly,
control or be interested in 30% or more of the voting
rights of the Company (or such percentage as may
from time to time be specified in The Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer) or otherwise
being obliged to make a general offer for Shares in
accordance with the requirement of The Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers or (i) there will not
be sufficient public float of the Shares as required
under the GEM Listing Rules;

the initial conversion price is HK$0.18 per Conversion
Share, which are subject to adjustments;

the CB5 bears interest of 9% per annum and the
holder of the CB5 is entitled to request the Company
to pay interest to it under the provisions of the CB5
by way of allotment and issuance of new Shares
(“Interest Conversion Shares”);

based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.18
per conversion share and assuming full conversion
of the CB5 and all interest on the CB5 are paid
by Interest Conversion Shares, there will be up
to 1,666,666,666 Conversion Shares and up to
450,000,000 Interest Conversion Shares. As at 31
December 2016, 1,110,000,000 Conversion Shares
and O Interest Conversion Shares have been allotted
and issued respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has approximately
HK$177.26 million reserves available for distribution to
shareholders (2015: approximately HK$476.17 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer:
Ms. Law Po Yee

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director:
Mr. Chow Kai Weng

Executive Director:
Ms. Sin Ho Yee

DIRECTORS' REPORT
R

B REUEE R A O <RI AT RE T B AT BR & g 3
B EEmEBEOKTFZAERBAD L) %X
EHARBEEABDRBRAHTAIREY
B EEKBEONTE - iR Hz
NP B ERENEIER EHRAZ ZR
AE AR AT R R E S FEAR T EITEEMA
ERHARRESFHEE LR

@) VFPHRBEAEERIBERH0I8E T (AITHA
8

4 FBAYUABRREFEFFERO%E - FOlt
ABRRESFHAAGEREE M AIBRRIE
FEE X BRARE]E B R R BTN
ZAAAENFE(HE R

G WEVFPHBESKRIEBRMISE T &
RERAMUBBRESFEZTHSE SR UEKER
AR EFMENEHEEBHNE LRk
M - Bl #5B 5&% %1,666,666,666% i, 1 A%
13 %450,000,0000% F| B H &2 {n c HE2—ZF

—NF+_A=+—"8 o8& NXET
1,110,000,000% &, # % {5 ROM% ) B K # i

{/'\ °

] A3k 23 UK Gl

RZZE—RNF+_A=+—H AQFA#HSETF
Hx%ZEﬁﬁ“’77,%177260000/%7E(ff HE: 4
476,170,000 7T) °

5§

FANBEEARERH EER:
IRFAFEBDTES:

B MRSE A
BERRQTESRITHESR:
RERLL

BEFERBTES:

BTES:
Rtk T

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

69



70

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, Mr. Chow Kai Weng
and Ms. Sin Ho Yee shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All other directors continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year. The service contract is
terminable by either party by serving a written notice of not
less than one calendar month to the other. Each Executive
Director and Non-executive Director is entitled to a basic
salary and remuneration subject to an annual revision by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to
Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
been appointed for a term of one year with specific
terms as stated in the letter of appointment. The letter of
appointment is terminable from either party by serving a
written notice not less than one calendar month to the
other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Security on the Growth Enterprise
Market Rule of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”). The Board considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares HK$0.01
each of the Company (“Share”)
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Company
Interest in (Note 1)
Number of  controlled EEXAT
Capacity/Nature Shares held corporation ERTRE
Name of Directors of interest FR 5 REER Total Zl|BHastt
Esns L& 13 BEHBE ATIZER et (B &E1)
(a) The Company
(Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each)
AR (FRAEEIE T ZEERK)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”) Beneficial owner 783,473,000 - 788,473,000 19.59%
(Note 2) BEmBEAA
B S A& ([ e 2 1) (Kt aE2) Interest of spouse 23,352,000 - 23,352,000 0.58%
B (B 42 =
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 - 23,352,000 0.58%
(Note 3) BEmBEAA
BER LT ((BLT])(H5E3) Interest of spouse 783,473,000 - 783,473,000 19.59%
B (B 12 =
Note 1:  This is based on the total issued shares as at Mal: BHER-ZZT-—R"F+ZA=+—H0%

31 December 2016 (i.e. 3,998,389,482 shares)
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Note 2:

Mr. Sin is beneficially interested in 783,473,000
Shares, representing approximately 19.59% of
the issued share capital of the Company. For the
purposes of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO only,
by virtue of SFO, Mr. Sin, the spouse of Ms. Law,
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
in which Ms. Law was interested.

P52
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7 % HE R B 783,473,000 % A% 1) #E A
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Note 3:  Ms. Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin and for the
purposes of Division 2 and 3 of The SFO only,
Ms. Law is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr. Sin is deemed or taken to
be interested for by virtue of the SFO.
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Long position in the underlying Shares 2. RERBEBzEE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company
(Note 1)
Number of {EAXAT ST
Name of Director Capacity shares held BEZEHERLE
EEHE 5% % 13 8B (B &E1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial Owner 568,125,680 (Note 3) 14.21%
HEE EmlAA (Pt 5£3)
Interest of Spouse (Note 4) 7,476,933 0.19%
e 165 4 2 (P 54)
Ms. Law Beneficial Owner 7,476,933 (Note 5) 0.19%
ELXL E=EAA (Kt 3E5)
Interest of Spouse (Note 4) 568,125,680 14.21%
T 168 4 2 (P 5E4)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee Beneficial Owner 1,394,580 (Note 6) 0.03%
HRlaZ E=BAA (B 3E6)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 150,920 (Note 7) 0.004%
JE R B 5 A EnlEAA (M 5E7)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 134,249 (Note 8) 0.003%
BRR S 5E 4 E=mBAA (Hf7E8)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 134,249 (Note 9) 0.003%
=REHK E=mBEAA (P 5£9)
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 134,121 (Note 10) 0.003%
EECEE E=mBEAA (B 5E10)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim Beneficial Owner 50,272 (Note 11) 0.001%
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Notes:

This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31
December 2016 (i.e. 3,998,389,482 Shares).

For the purposes of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, the spouse of
Ms. Law was deemed to be interested in all the
underlying Shares in which Ms. Law was interested.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 7,964,160
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Sin on 29
September 2010 pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated
on 29 September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) under which the said options can be
exercised by Mr. Sin between 29 September 2010
and 2 September 2020 at the exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Sin on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
29 September 2010 (“New Share Option Scheme”)
under which the said options can be exercised
by Mr. Sin between 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
(i) 134,450 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Sin on 31 March 2012 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can be
exercised by Mr. Sin between 31 March 2012 and
30 March 2017 at the exercise price of HK$5.59 per
Share; and (iv) 556,666,667 of underlying Shares
which can be exercised by Mr. Sin between 15 April
2016 and 14 April 2018 at the exercise price of
HK$0.18 per share.

For the purposes of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law is the spouse
of Mr. Sin and is deemed to be interested in the
underlying Shares in which Mr. Sin is deemed or
taken to be interested.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 3,982,080
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on 29
September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Ms. Law between 29 September
2010 and 2 September 2020 at the exercise price
of HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Ms. Law on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which the said options can be exercised by Ms.
Law between 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021
at the exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and
(i) 134,450 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to Ms.
Law on 31 March 2012 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Ms. Law between 31 March 2012
and 30 March 2017 at the exercise price of HK$5.59
per Share.
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These underlying Shares represent (i) 1,344,161
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Sin Ho Yee
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Ms. Sin between 28 March 2012
to 27 March 2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62
per Share; and (ii) 50,419 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Sin on 31 March 2012 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which the
said options can be exercised by Mr. Sin between
31 March 2012 and 30 March 2017 at the exercise
price of HK$5.59 per share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Chow between 29 September
2010 and 2 September 2020 at the exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which the
said options can be exercised by Mr. Chow between
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at the exercise
price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (iii) 67,225 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow on 31 March
2012 pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme
under which the said options can be exercised by
Mr. Chow between 31 March 2012 and 30 March
2017 at the exercise price of HK$5.59 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can be
exercised by Mr. Chan between 20 May 2010 and
19 May 2020 at the exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise
of the physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Chan on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Chan between 28 March 2012
to 27 March 2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62
per Share; and (jii) 67,225 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chan on 31 March 2012 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which the
said options can be exercised by Mr. Chan between
31 March 2012 and 30 March 2017 at the exercise
price of HK$5.59 per Share.
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10.

1.

These underlying Shares represent () 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme under which the said
options can be exercised by Prof. Wong between
20 May 2010 and 19 May 2020 at the exercise
price of HK$3.38 per Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to
be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong on 28 March
2011 pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme
under which the said options can be exercised by
Prof. Wong between 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (iii) 67,225 Shares to be issued upon exercise
of the physically settled share options granted to
Prof. Wong on 31 March 2012 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which the said options
can be exercised by Prof. Wong between 31 March
2012 and 30 March 2017 at the exercise price of
HK$5.59 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent () 33,292 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
on 13 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Chui between 13 May 2010 and
12 May 2020 at the exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise
of the physically settled share options granted to Mr.
Chui on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Chui between 28 March 2012
to 27 March 2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62
per Share; and (jii) 67,225 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 31 March 2012 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which the
said options can be exercised by Mr. Chui between
31 March 2012 and 30 March 2017 at the exercise
price of HK$5.59 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 25,065 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim
on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Li between 20 May 2010 and
19 May 2020 at the exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 8,401 Shares to be issued upon exercise
of the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Li on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which the said options can
be exercised by Mr. Li between 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at the exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share; and (i) 16,806 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Li on 31 March 2012 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which the
said options can be exercised by Mr. Li between
31 March 2012 and 30 March 2017 at the exercise
price of HK$5.59 per Share.

10.

1.
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3. Long position in the debentures of the Company

3. REATRHZHER

Denomination or

Currency of unit size of the Amount of

Name of Directors Capacity debenture debenture debenture
EEgs S BHEZ2EYE BHFZEEFEM BHELH

Mr. Sin Beneficial owner HK$ 593,710,000 HK$605,978,000
A EmBEEA BT 605,978,000 7T
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief br EXATIEREI  RZE—ARFF+ZA=+—H -

Executive or their associates had, as at 31 December
2016, any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONSY’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the persons or corporations,
other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the Company
were as follows:

1. Long Positions in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

IRR#EE

Capacity
S

BEE FETRABRFESSEZHEABER
AARKETEMAE LR (TERELHLBEKG
BEXVER) 2 M - HHEARDRESPERTM
BIEZELRPEGEHEXVIEETRED I ZRE
BAHEARRRBRAZ(BFE LA TRIEZS
BELBPEGRIEXEEERR ABEE 2R K
KE) ABEBFRBEKD EI26REAE
AR ERMAZERSK AR R IEAIER
ETRAIFES5.461EEL567IE 2R TEAME AQF
MR EmSRAE -

322 e o M FL At N B A K
R B i A 2 B 4 B 8 AT

RIB—RFE+ZA=+—H REXRFIZEE
H R EERPIEXVEEIB6IGRREFE 2 E M
L8 RARABDEMNME - T ALSOEME BRA
NEEFRITHRABEIN RARR Z B9 K A8 B
DHREEREIXR

1. RFELFERBZER

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

of the Company

(Note)

No. of shares held {iAXATEHTRAE
HARGHE ZBHOE9ELGEE)

Beneficial owner
EmBEAA

Tse Young Lai

Note: This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31
December 2016 (i.e. 3,998,389,482 Shares).

563,547,600 14.09%

Ma: WHRE-T—AF+-_A=+—BE%T
B 1 (BN3,998,389,482[% B (7)) 5 & -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other than
a director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
of the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out in
Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated 9
October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme was terminated. The principal terms of New Share
Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2016, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 12,885,263 shares of the Company
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
were outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:
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R
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ARBALEEEMALTRARRAREFTHLEI2BITH
ABINBE - AR B R 2 A8 B B 1 o A A
@ POR R MA R AR AR FE oG AREE & B
EHPIEXVEBEIBCIKRAFE 2 ERLM °

Ji JBe HE W

BREARRE-—RER_ZZT_FLA-FT_RZ
EHERZER - AR BRI RA LI A FRAFH
BREBRETS - EENTIEGRKRERBEHA
“EE-FTANBZEARRBKRERKEEMA -

REARBR_ZF-FFAA_THASRTZERR
FRAELBBZRER  —HMOBRESS
(iRt =T 8 ) R - T B R QR BBRIZ BB
Rt Bl AR L - FRE AT 8l 2 X BIRRBANA
REAMRZZB-—TFAARNBEHZBRHA °

BERAHBRERRETE

R-ZE—XNE+-A=+—HB BEHBXLAHBR
% BRI B X A R AQR) A 12,885,263
PER% 2 BE IR M R IETTE - RZZE—RFE+=A
=t+—BZEXRAREBREEBRESSFBOT:

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding
as at
Exercise As at 31 December
price per 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2016
Category of share 2016  during during  during during RZF—RE
Participants 8Kk Date of grant R-ZF—RE theyear the year the year the year +—A=+—H
ZHEAER TiEE RUEBAH —H—B £AiRY &EATHE EAXY FHEH iel % 47 fE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 33,292 - - - - 33,292
%% —F-2FRA+=A
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 91,905 - - - - 91,905
£ “T-TFEACHA
Directors 2.89 29 September 2010 11,971,128 - - - - 11,971,128
2 —E-FFAAZTNA
Other participants 3.66 13 May 2010 249,698 - - - - 249,698
Hp2E AL —ZE-TFRA+T=A
Other participants 2.89 29 September 2010 539,240 - - - - 539,240
HfE AL —E-TFAAZTNA
Total 12,885,263 - - - - 12,885,263
FCE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =& — A4 #i 77



78

New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) held on
29 June 2015, the scheme limit on the grant of options
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company was refreshed to up to
288,838,948 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the the date of AGM (i.e. 2,888,389,483 Shares in issue)
(excluding share options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”); and the
Directors are authorized, at their absolute discretion, to
grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of
the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and execute
such documents for or incidental to implement the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

(i) New Share Option Scheme Purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to selected person
and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

(i) Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company, a director, a
shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any subsidiary
of the Company; an agent, adviser, consultant,
strategist, contractor, sub-contractor, expert or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any valuable services to
Company or any of its subsidiary; a holder of any
securities issued.

iR i et B

BER-_E—FHFAA-_THBREITZAARRE
BFRXe((RRAEFAG) LBRBZRESR  BiE
FERETEIRARBE M EMEERETER Y
BERR#E 2 5T EIRREC B 31 = £ %£288,838,948 % %
M ARKRERBFREEHEETRMDZ10% (A
2,888,389,483/% & & 17 % 19) (IR & 37 B AR i 51 &l
R MARITHE - FEH - KRS ITEZER
BBRINTEFTERBE]D  ABEEES2ENE
BEFEREAEZRUBRHTRERSG ZBR
W BB EIRBE AR NIRRT B ET
B BN EEITER B BTREE
B BEUEFEIRBEAR  RARREF
EIRBEHENRTHERETEELERBITER
BB -

() HERESERN

FHEEERIRBRBREFOAST AL
EEATIREEINER - AR AEEE
B

iy AERZHEZ

BRSNS RBEREARAKEEM
MBARMEMES - BF - IR - &R -
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EAIHIE DR IR i S B Bl ST R AT
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(i)

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) held on 29 June 2015, the scheme limit on
the grant of options under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company was refreshed to up to 288,838,948
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of the AGM (i.e. 2,888,389,483 Shares in
issue) (excluding share options previously granted,
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the New Share Option Scheme) (the “Refreshed
Scheme Limit") and representing approximately
7.22% of the issued Shares as at the date of this
annual report (i.e. 3,998,389,482 Shares); and the
Directors are authorized, at their absolute discretion,
to grant share options to subscribe for Shares within
the Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the
rules of the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue
and deal with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of
share options granted under the New Share Option
Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and
to do such acts and execute such documents for
or incidental to implement the New Share Option
Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme Limit.

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such
grant is approved in advance by the Shareholders
in general meeting. No qualifying participant who
is a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in advance
by the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the number of Shares then in issue; and (b) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on each relevant date on which
the grant of such options is made to such person
under the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5
million.

(i)
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(v

(vil)

(vi

Option Period

The share options may be exercised in whole or
in part by the Participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant New Share Options
pursuant to the New Scheme, by delivering to the
Company a notice duly signed in a form approved
by the Board (together with payment of the exercise
price in full in respect of each New Share to be
subscribed for) and delivery of the New Share Option
certificate for amendment or cancellation.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be Held
before it can be Exercised

No offer of a New Share Option which is capable
of or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer will be offered for acceptance for a
period of 14 days from the date on which the offer
is granted.

Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a Business Day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five Business Day immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
shares.

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

HHEGHREF
(X  Remaining life of the scheme (x) FEIZHBTEH
The New Scheme will remain in force for a period et B R F RS A EE G 2 BRET10F R
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Bk EE G BERIEE] 3T 8l 80 T 1§
New Scheme becomes unconditional. The Board X SR g LA E M 7 AR IEFTET & - MERR
may amend any of the provisions of the New Scheme LR RN LiE - BRITEERD
or withdraw or otherwise terminate the New Scheme FRBEMNREMSEENE] - IEBRK
at any time but no alterations shall be made to LE AT B3 B 8 R 1) AR 1T {50 B0 37 i AR A % 4
the advantage of any Participant unless approved BAE B - W Z R E B R R AR IR 52
by the Shareholders in general meeting. All New FERATEE -
Share Options granted prior to such termination
and not then exercise shall continue to be valid and
exercisable subject to and in accordance with the
terms of the New Scheme.
As at 31 December 2016, the share options to subscribe RZE—ARF+ZA=+—8 REFBERETE
for an aggregate of 10,787,062 shares of the Company AT REE ARG A ££10,787,0628% B 10 2 B Bk 4
granted pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme were MARETE RZE—RNFF+-A=+—RHzZHE

outstanding. The details of the New Share Option Scheme BT EIFENT
as at 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:

Number of share options

BikEyE
Outstanding
as at
Exercise As at 31 December
price per 1 January Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2016
Category of share* 2016  during during  during during RZF—RF
Participants 8k Date of grant M=F—7RHE the year the year the year the year +—HA=+—H
SHEAEH TEE RUHBEH —A—H £ARE &ERTE EAXE FHEH i) K 47 fE
(HK$)
(&)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 8,232,987 - - - - 8,232,987
=3 —E-—F=ZF=-+NH
Directors 5.59 31 March 2012 605,025 - - - - 605,025
E —E——Ff=A=+—H
Other participants 7.62 28 March 2011 1,881,825 - - - - 1,881,825
Hp2EAL —E——%=F=-+N\H
Other participants 5.59 31 March 2012 67,225 - - - - 67,225
HEHpBEA+ —E-—F=ZA=+-H
Total 10,787,062 - - - - 10,787,062

B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN HHN G
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, no Director had a material BRTIXHEEN MEESREBEFNNFLRT
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, Br2EMNEARS  RUESENPEEXHEEE
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during EEVN T8

or at the end of the year under review:

i the Directors’ interests in the CB5 as set out below: i TR ESNEAMATBBRESFZED
Outstanding
As at Acquired Converted Transferred Redeemed as at
Name of the 1 January during the during the during the during the 31 December
directors Date of acquired 2016 year year year year 2016
R-B—R%E
RoB—x% +=A=+-8
EEHE WeBE B # —HA—H ERugiE ERRiR FREE EHED 1 R T8
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT BT T AT BT A
Mr. Sin 22 December 2014 220,200,000 — (18,000,000 (102,000,000) — 100,200,000
L —E-mE+-A=+=H
220,200,000 — (18,000,000 (102,000,000) — 100,200,000
i the Directors’ interests in the convertible bonds i T 2P 4 E A420,000,00058 JT Al A% &
in the principal amount of HK$420,000,000 which HFZEm IBARAR-_TE—=FTH=H
was issued by the Company to Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, BOTARAB ZEEM R ARMEE(ED
and a substantial shareholder of the Company on 2 AR ES])  FOATBRRESRET
October 2013 (“CB4”) has a maturity of 3 years from AHR=FEH  SFBEEXERI% T EF
the date of issue and bears coupon interest at 4% ARV EASFZRBARINARNGE - K
per annum, accrued daily and payable annually in X NENHTRBRESNEMIIHENS
arrears and default rate of 8% per annum annually in ¥ ANRKIBHAZER2HEINAHEESSF
arrears will be charged on any sum due and payable BRHELNFEZMNFIE - TREINEZHNE
under the CB4 from the due date to the date of At MR E S

actual payment in full. The Directors’ interests in the
CB4 as set out below:

Outstanding

As at Acquired Converted Transferred Redeemed as at

Name of the 1 January during the during the during the during the 31 December

directors Date of acquired 2016 year year year year 2016

R-T—RE

R=B—R% +=A=+-8

EEHZ WeBE B 8 —A—H FE R FERRR FEREER EREE RIEE

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT BT

Mr. Sin 02 October 2013 46,200,000 — —  (46,200,000) — -
AL “Z—=%+A-H

Ms. Law 02 October 2013 38,220,000 - - - (38,220,000) -
A+ —Zz—=%#+AH=H

Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 - 46,200,000 - - (46,200,000) —

(Executive Director)

AMKEE@BTESR) —F-—=F+A—H

84,420,000 46,200,000 — (46,200,000)  (84,420,000) —
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Mr. Sin’s interests in the promissory notes (“PN1”)
which was in the principal amount of HK$80,000,000
as at the date of its first issue and issued by the
Company on 15 April 2015. The PN1 will expire on
14 April 2018 and bear interest at the rate of 9%
per annum on the outstanding principal accrued
daily on a 365 days basis and payable annually
in arrears. During the year ended 31 December
2016, no early repayment of the PN1 was made
by the Company, the outstanding principal amount
of the PN1 as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$80,000,000. Further details of the PN1 are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2014 and the Company’s circular dated
23 March 2015;

The Directors’ interests in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Director’s report;

The Directors’ interests in the New Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Director’s report;
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Vii.

The Directors’ interests in the Shareholders’ loan and vii TERHENEENBREERALRAAGESTAN
other loan agreement advanced by the Directors to ZEMERBE R
the Company as set out below:
Outstanding
As at Drawdown Repaid as at
Interest Principle 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of the directors Date of loan Nature of loan rate amount 2016 year year 2016
R-ZB—7%E
R-B—RE +=-A=+-H
EERE H®RAH £ 3 #x E¥-4- —-A—-8 ERER FREER KIEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT A B BT T
Mr. Sin 12 May 2015 Terms Loan 13% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
HEEE —Z-RERATZE BAHEXR
02 June 2015 Terms Loan 13% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
—Z-A%~AZH BHER
11 August 2015 Terms Loan 1% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
“Z-RE\A+—H FHER
25 August 2015 Revolving Loan 12% 20,000,000 2,000,000 15,000,000 (1,000,000) 16,000,000
“Z-RFN\AZ+THER @REX
09 October 2015 Revolving Loan 10% 50,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
—Z-A%+ANE RRER
03 November 2015 Terms Loan 10% 62,000,000 62,000,000 - - 62,000,000
—T-1%+—-A=B HBHEX
29 January 2016 Revolving Loan 11% 150,000,000 — 105,000,000 - 105,000,000
—T-AFE-A-THhB B/EEX
19 February 2016 Terms Loan - 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 - 40,000,000
ZT-R"FZRA+tNBE HHEX
19 February 2016 Revolving Loan 6% 100,000,000 - 59,900,000 - 59,900,000
—Z-RFZATAR BREXR
30 June 2016 Revolving Loan 15% 150,000,000 - 75,110,000 75,110,000
—T-XEXA=tH B/EREX
587,500,000 119,500,000 295,010,000 (1,000,000) 413,510,000
Ms. Law 01 October 2016 Terms Loan 5% 39,748,800 - 39,748,800 (4,087,966) 35,660,834
ZLt ZZ-RE+A-H BHER
39,748,800 - 39,748,800 (4,087,966) 35,660,834
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 Terms Loan 5% 48,048,000 - 48,048,000 - 48,048,000
(Executive Director)
BREEEEITESE) —Z-XE+A—A BHER
48,048,000 - 48,048,000 - 48,048,000
675,296,800 119,500,000 382,806,800 (5,087,966) 497,218,834
Note: The maturity date of the terms loans and revolving M THERXRREARREENRERERZ
loans from the Directors of Company is on or after IHAA-ZT—N\FAA=TH= 2% -
30 June 2018.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company
and the CB 5, being equity-linked agreements of the
Company subsisting as at 31 December 2016, including
the class and number of shares that may be issued, and
consideration that the Company has or will receive, are
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Share Option
Schemes” in the section headed “Directors’ Report” on
pages 77 to 81 of this annual report and the paragraph
headed “Conversion of Convertible Bonds” in the section
headed “Directors’ Report” on pages 68 to 69 of this
annual report respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of outstanding principal amount of the CB5 was
approximately HK$100,200,000, which may be converted
into 556,666,667 ordinary shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.18 per conversion share.

During the year under review 2016, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute
to any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees
or the Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from 1
December 2000, the Group had joined the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The
Group’s employees in Hong Kong are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income.

The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
social insurance schemes (including retirement benefit
scheme, medical insurance scheme and unemployment
benefit scheme) operated by the relevant local government
authorities. The Group is required to make contribution
to the social insurance schemes on behalf of employees
who are registered permanent residents in the PRC.
The insurance premium is borne by the Group and the
employees on a specified proportion of the employees’
salaries laid down under the relevant PRC law.

During the vyear, the employer’s contributions to the
retirement benefit scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$6,277,000 (2015: HK$5,392,000).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year under review. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC
FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company maintained a sufficient public float as
at the date of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year in the ordinary course
of business are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of such related party
transactions falls under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 10.17% of the Group’s revenue for the year.
The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
2.17% of its revenue.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 48.57% of the Group’s purchases for
the year. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 23.16% of its purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
respective associates nor shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers at any
time during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all of the code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016. Please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 38 to
55 for details.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors adopted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in 2002
which now comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit
Chee.

During the year, the Audit Committee has met four times
to review the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages
38 to 55 for details.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment
and Culture Group Limited
Law Po Yee
Vice Chairperson, Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B #7 g6 % A RN

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL ARTS
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 98 to 231, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSA”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

F#EFEIR

Net current liabilities

FRBER

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHEE M B REMEES -

The Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$297,143,000 as at year end and
suffered a loss of approximately HK$327,092,000
during the year. These events or conditions may o
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability

to continue as a going concern and have led

us to spend significant effort in evaluating the
assessment made by management.

EEERFABEFRE AMFEL297,143,000/5 7T
I A 4E N $R15 518 £9327,092,0008 T © tEEIE
WIFRAREY BEERTESEA—EFBEL o
EEREEREARM  WRERMEAKRKESED
BT EEERT M -

B0 o % B H

MREATEERBERMANEXRHE  RA/EX
PEAMBEREINEAZ/EENETH - FLE
HEERMEBSBEGAMBHRRILAZAR
ETREN - RMUTEHELETHEREEBNE
" o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMEF N AREERAREESFEE

Our procedures in relation to net current liabilities mainly
included:

We obtained approved cash flow forecasts covering
at least twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and challenged the assumptions and judgement
made by management. We reviewed other available
information provided by management;

We reviewed documentation in place in respect of
discussions with third parties in relation to long-term
debt financing;

We evaluated the management’s plan for future actions
in relation to its going concern assessment, taking into
account any relevant events subsequent to the year-
ended through discussion with the Audit Committee;
and

We evaluated the adequacy of disclosure about these
events or conditions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

EEtEEGE

Fair value of hotel properties and film studio

BIEYFERBGEBH LR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
T8 7 A% BT R o

o 3 % B B JH (2)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BRMEFNTEEAREFETIRE)

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

A2HRE M BRI E5 -

Hotel properties and film studio are property, plant
and equipment measured using the revaluation
model. The fair values of the hotel properties and
film studio were approximately HK$752,402,000
and HK$884,127,000 respectively as at 31
December 2016. Management engaged an
independent external valuer to assess in
determining the fair values of the properties.

The area is of most significance in our audit
because the balances are material and the
valuations of the hotel properties and film studio
involved the use of significant estimates and
assumptions and judgements.

BIEMERZEWIIERAEGHERNGENDE
BMEREE BEVERZBRBIAR-_ZT—X F
+Z A=+ —HH QAR ED R4 A752,402,000
7 7T }884,127,0008 L - EEEBLR M — 2B L
INEEEEMTAANECZSEMENRIARE-

LEAAHBRMOEHSARE - BENGEHE
AT ELEE 9% R R R E Y R BAHE R
GRS

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of the
fair value of hotel properties and film studio mainly included:

° Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of management’s valuer;

° Engaging our own valuation expert to assist us in
assessing the methodologies and reasonableness of
inputs and assumptions adopted in the valuation of the
hotel properties and film studio;

o Checking on the accuracy and relevance of the inputs
data used; and

° Considering the accounting treatment of any revaluation
gains or losses in the consolidated financial statements.

HPEEEFEEENERZERN R EMRROIERF
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

FERESERGER)

Carrying amounts of land lease prepayments

14 7 B 78 1 7% 69 AR m {5

B ok 25 % S IH ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BB AR ERAREFFEEE)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2 A M B WKM7 -

The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments
were approximately HK$470,061,000 as at 31
December 2016.

The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments
are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For the purpose of assessing impairment,
the recoverable amounts were determined
by management based on the facts and
circumstances. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant judgement was
required to determine the reasonableness of
key assumptions, including discount rates and
constructions costs.

THWHEBRNRR T —AF+tZA=1T 0K
fRTH B 49 &470,061,0008 7T °

T AT 1 O o O (b BT B 1A A T e
HWEIE - ST EERENREEES R E
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ETAE TR RRTRERERBERNE
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the carrying amount of the land lease prepayments mainly
included:

° Conducting analytical procedures and assessing
management judgement of the carrying amounts of land
lease prepayments;

° Recalculating and checking the amount of amortisation
based on the amortisation rate and considering whether
amortisation methods are consistent and reasonable;
and

° Understanding of management’s process around
impairment assessment, where indicators existed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
T8 7 A% BT R o

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BH 88 % 1% B IH (&)

Key audit matter (continued)

EEtEEGE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BRMEFNTEEAREFETIRE)

Impairment assessment of long-term other receivable

=B Rty B Y 7% 15 59 sk 18 5F 1

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

H2HRA M B HRARM 27 -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
long-term other receivable of approximately
HK$88,651,000 secured by collateral.

In carrying out the impairment assessments,
management engaged an independent external
valuer to assist in determining the fair value of
the collateral. Significant judgement is required for
the fair value of the projected future cash flows
of the other long-term receivable based on the
management’s experience and market condition.

R-ZE—XE+-A=+—H0  BBEEEY
88,651,000/ 7T & & HA E b & U 5% 18 LA K 19 SR 42
HIRE -

EITRENZE  BEERET B IMNEEER
BB EERRNAARE BEEEFTERELR
KT 45 iR 00 B R H A B U R TERI R AR £ 0
ERARERHERHAE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment of
long-term other receivable mainly included:

o Conducting analytical procedures and assessing
management judgement for the fair value of
consideration receivable;

° Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of management’s valuer; and

° Engaging our own valuation expert to assist in assessing

the methodologies and reasonableness of assumptions
adopted in the valuation of the collateral.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
the information included in the annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSA, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant

to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
T8 7 A% BT R o

A% B b 9 A% A
AT

S 5 it 2 R I

BAWER ESHSANBREBRBELAFE
HRRFFRERMEBNE RN RRARG A IR
RE THAHARMEROZBEMRE - ARE
BREBEBFEQRE(CAN—F)FO0KER BT
(ERER) L R ZHIAREREEMBD -
AZBEA T ERAREATHEMEMALR
f&%?&ﬂf& EERBLSKFTHRE
BrERBEB(EERSERETNERR  #
x— EXE%WLTH%% BB o BEERERA AT
A EFF R MRAEBREHEMEBX
ERERAEZEGEAVBERREREKERA
B 75 3R 3R P4 RO EOR E - BB B RO SRR BR
ATAREE K ©

EREEABEAHEETEZOBED B
BRTEXRAE  RETEFRRRER - BT

o HBI AR RGF RSB RME RS T
MERGEERERBAMER - R RAIT
BEREFAEHELERRE A RERTEHM
BEMNEZERE  EARMERMER - £
REGERIge A B - BiE ERERE
BB - SORBRREESI 2 £ B REE
BERARFMERNERERRANERS
FA 2R B 25 IR R £ R 1 B B 22 K 85 AR PR il 1Y
G

. THREERZAMONIES - URFEEN
B BREMIIEY EK@W%$M
BMBERMERER -

. FEEEMRAEABRERNG
HEFTMAEEREN SR -

BEURELE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% — /N4 #

95



96

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

EoR-AE+-AS+—HLFE

NCOME

"
=

PROFIT OR LOSS

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FHT T T
Revenue WA 7 57,827 40,038
Other income Hmh A 7 13,514 3,042
Other (losses) and gains Eith (F18) Mk &= 7 (193) 127
Cost of film production B EEKAK (10,745) (5,162)
Staff costs 8 IR A 10 (39,832) (38,763)
Depreciation of property, plant and %% - BMERZREITE
equipment 10 (59,578) (561,820)
Amortisation of land lease TET L 7 & # 5y
prepayments 10 (13,703) (10,168)
Other operating expenses B & A (133,279) (99,558)
Finance costs Bl & P A 9 (119,356) (80,909)
Loss on fair value changes of AMRESF AR EEZE
convertible bonds (g (22,200) (19,945)
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes of &K&W EALEE
investment properties ez, (B 18) 1,500 (900)
Share of loss of an associate Db — S R EIE (143) (119)
Share of loss of a joint venture Dih—HAEEPEEIE (904) (697)
Loss before income tax B BT 15 B A& 18 (327,092) (264,834)
Income tax expense Frig Bl X 11 - -
Loss for the year FEEBHE 10 (327,092) (264,834)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ HitZE(FAX) WA
income
Items that will not be reclassified 7 EZE5 A& IEH
to profit or loss
Gain arising on revaluation of EHEREREMEN
properties transferred to L ER 0L &
investment properties - 16,344
(Loss)/gain on revaluation of EHBIEERAYERN
properties held for own use (E18) Wz (13,790) 80,190
Income tax credit/(expense) relating B EGIFIEFERMED
to revaluation of properties held for ~ Fr8 i % /(5 2)
own use 3,448 (20,048)
Items that may be reclassified RETEEIBIEZREN
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation & 8 S 3 75 B 745 3R % 5
of financial statements of foreign EANERZEEE
operations (68,879) (76,357)
Other comprehensive (expense)) FEEHM2E(BX)
income for the year, net of tax Ut A\ @ IR FLIE (79,221) 129
Total comprehensive expense for A EFE 2 THA X HE
the year (406,313) (264,705)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok A 18 B LAt A T R 4R R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FHET T T
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{E A EE RS :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE DN (327,091) (264,828)
Non-controlling interests FEE R E R (1) (6)
(327,092) (264,834)
Total comprehensive expense EE2EEXEHE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NETE FEWN (406,312) (264,699)
Non-controlling interests e R (1) (6)
(406,313) (264,705)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted EARR#EE 12 (HK8.84 cents (HK8.51 cents
&) )
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2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =% FHT T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEREE 15 1,684,984 1,760,457
Investment properties "EME 16 33,700 32,200
Land lease prepayments BN mAE 17 470,061 472,345
Intangible asset mEE 18 1,079 1,079
Investment in an associate B NERE 20 113 256
Investment in a joint venture EETHEERE 21 7,020 7,924
Available-for-sale investment AHBHERE 22 5,250 5,000
Other receivable and deposits HEtprlaERIZS 27 93,551 99,742
2,295,758 2,379,003
Current assets REEE
Film products and film production in B ERREREFE SR
progress 23 3,630 10,745
Investments in films/dramas BEEE EAIENIRE
production 24 6,461 —
Trade receivables JE Y Z 5 5 IE 25 6,693 3,440
Inventories "8 26 2,414 2,380
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRIE - Be REHM
receivables & U 3k 1E 27 55,794 37,823
Amount due from a joint venture B & & b ERIA 21 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances 5 & MIRTT 4 28 4,283 12,705
81,689 69,507
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JE & 5 5 E 29 1,846 1,179
Other payables and accruals HtEAREREGTER 30 159,020 125,217
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 28 8,501 8,345
Loan from a related company —M B QR E R 31 - 12,400
Loans from shareholders R EEHE R 32 10,873 107,000
Borrowings B 33 131,490 185,942
Finance lease obligation B IS M E AR IE 34 3,036 5,954
Bonds BE%H 35 61,115 2,073
Convertible bonds AR E S 36 - 151,382
Provision for income tax Fris Bl 45 2,951 2,951
378,832 602,443
Net current liabilities REBBEFE (297,143) (532,936)
Total assets less current BEQERREEE
liabilities 1,998,615 1,846,067
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B B IR LR

At 31 December 2016 R —ZE—XFE+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5% THET FABT
Non-current liabilities EFHER
Other payables Efth e F0E 30 24,236 26,909
Loans from shareholders i A E X 32 451,471 32,500
Borrowings BE 33 48,048 83,219
Bonds (B 35 445,688 271,897
Convertible bonds Al B fE 5 36 110,813 226,068
Promissory note HH R 37 81,655 79,576
Finance lease obligation B 7570 & AR IE 34 20,370 15,712
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEEE 38 176,356 179,804
1,358,637 915,685
Net assets BEFHE 639,978 930,382
Capital and reserves BEXARGHE
Share capital fi% < 39 399,839 333,172
Reserves it 1 239,901 596,971
Equity attributable to owners of the AR & A A &5 1 5
Company 639,740 930,143
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 238 239
Total equity LS EE 639,978 930,382

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Law Po Yee

FeMBHREACHEFER _T—tHF=-A_-1+=

E

Sin Kwok Lam
% B

Director

BF

BHtERRENE THTIIEERREFTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

2% —

AETZAS+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAARTARE

Share
capital
(note 39)

L3

(M it39)
HK$'000
TR

Share
premium

Rt EE
HK$'000
TETL

Properties
revaluation

reserve

i
B
HK$000
TER

Convertible
bond equity
reserve

TRRES
RS

HK$'000

TERL

At 1 January 2015 WZZ-R5-F-8

Issue of convertible bonds arising from the 413 — FH B2 A8

acquisition of a subsidiary BmaRES

Share issued upon conversion of SRTARBRRETRG
convertible bonds (note 39) (Hrsk39)

Lapse of warrants BREIXRR

Lapse of the equity component of TRREFHEETF XN
convertible bonds

Capital injected by non-controlling FERERTE
interests

Transaction with owners AEBAETNRS

Loss for the year REEFE

Gain arising on revaluation of properties EfERZRENEN
transferred to investment properties nEHRE

Gain on revaluation of properties held for Ef 5 {EERMEM K -
own use, net of tax nik#E

Exchange differences on translation 4485 EKEBRRR
of financial statements of foreign EENEAZE
operations

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for AR 2EM A/ (AX)
the year &%

At 31 December 2016 and R-E-R%t2A

1 January 2016 ST-ARZE-~E
-A-8

Share issued upon conversion of SRTARBRREIRG
convertiole bonds (note 39) (Hf5£39)

Early settlement of convertible bonds R R AR B EH

Lapse of the equity component of TEREFNRRDI XN
convertible bonds

Transaction with owners BEFARNRS

Loss for the year FEREE

Loss on revaluation of properties held for Ef5f{EEANENER
own use, net of tax HRHR

Exchange differences on translation ~ #EENEREBRRE
of financial statements of foreign EEMERZE
operations

Total comprehensive expense for the year %% 2 ERXAE

At 31 December 2016

288,839

620,011

338,871

51,040

44,333

43,759

46,607

(12:421)

44,333

43,759

29,041

16,344

60,142

76,486

333,172

663,770

415,357

80,081

66,667

67,936

(18,679)
(2,899)

(#2912

6,667

67,036

(64,484)

(10,342

(10,342)

399,839

731,706

405,015

15,597

Attributable

to non-

losses  Subtotal interest;
R

Rit B It [ 3:1.0
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TR
(336,484)  1,072474 -
- 46,697 -

- 75,671 -

6,399 - -
5235 - -

- - 245
1,634 122,368 245
(264,828 (264,828) )
- 16,344 -

- 60,142 -

- (76357 -
(264828 (264,699) 6]
(589,678) 930,143 239
- 115924 -

2,878 (15) -
42,912 - -
45790 115,909 -
(327,091)  (327,091) 1)
- (1034 -

- (68,879 -
(327,091)  (406,312) U}
(870,979) 639,740 238

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 5 it 4% 3¢ 4k 45 [ 47 B2 #]




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
B T AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&£BEMRLZEE
Loss before tax BREiATIER (327,092) (264,834)
Adjustments for: BT SHEELAR:
Finance costs BE KA 119,356 80,909
Bank interest income RITH BWA (6) ©)
Amortisation of film products BEYERHHE 10,745 5,093
Amortisation of land lease prepayments Bt HEHE 13,703 10,168
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥% - BEM KRBT E 59,578 51,820
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERZER
equipment W = - (127)
Loss on fair value changes of convertible HRBREFAAEZEN
bonds & 18 22,200 19,945
Net losses on early settlement of convertible REENTHRBRESD
bonds B8 193 -
Waiver of interest of convertible bond BREURKRESFTE (12,513) -
(Gain)/loss on fair value changes of investment R EMEAALEEEHHN
properties (W), B #E (1,500) 900
Share of loss of an associate DME—EEE AT EE 143 119
Share of loss of a joint venture PME—EABLEERE 904 697
(114,289) (95,316)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEDINLERS
working capital mE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEM, B (34) 1,723
Increase in film products and film production ERYEMREREYED
in progress #hn (3,630) (3,295)
Increase in trade receivables FEW & 5 5R I N (3,253) (2,675)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other FEMRKIE  Ze R EM
receivables & W 3R TE 32 00 (6,462) (10,248)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture JEUL A & 1 25 FRIEE AN - (2,414)
Increase in trade payables & & 5 5K N 667 1,021
Increase in other payables and accruals Hih T RIBREFER
2 18,764 88,966
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & L£EFMAEHLSBHE (108,237) (22,238)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & FHMREKE
Investments in films/dramas production B/ HBEEERE (6,461) —
Interest received FEBA 6 6
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired Y8 — M B AR » HE
TR & - (1,079)
Payments for property, plant and equipment ME - BEREBEITR (88,377) (203,762)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEISER
equipment FTi8 58 - 400
Payments for land lease prepayments ST EEENK (11,419) -
Investment in an associate BENRRE - (375)
Purchases of available-for-sale investment BEMHLERE (125) (5,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EFEMARLEE (106,376) (209,810)
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% — /N4 #
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

104

E-E-RF+A=T-BLFE

4= —=

2016 2015
—E—-RE —AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T F# T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEFHNERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BATF B (83,051) (61,076)
Proceeds from shareholders loans R E RS RE 286,234 190,450
Repayments of shareholders loans EEREER (13,788) (95,190)
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMBRE 61,494 289,064
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (265,996) (181,5093)
Repayments of loan from a related company & & — MBI A G E R (12,400) -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEESHRE 242,678 303,000
Transaction costs of issuance of bonds BITEEHNR KA (18,045) (34,390)
Repayments of bonds EEES (3,000) (78,775)
Repayments of convertible bonds EEARKRES - (64,400)
Repayment of finance leases obligation (B8 B 5 TH E A e (98) (31)
Capital contributed by non-controlling R ERTE
interest - 245
NET CASH GENERATED BY FINANCING R & EEIFEREFE
ACTIVITIES 194,028 267,394
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH R&RIR&%Z{EHIEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B, ¥ (20,585) 35,346
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE £#R& k&% EEH
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,360 (1,118)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE BE 2= 4 ) ¥ P i OM B8
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE REEnnpe
OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN
CURRENCIES 12,007 (29,868)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE £XR&RIALZEIER
END OF YEAR (4,218) 4,360
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH IR& RIS %L HIEE LR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS a5
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE S 4,283 12,705
Bank overdrafts RITBEX (8,501) (8,345)
(4,218) 4,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
A 1 U 25 R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 November 2001 as an
exempted company under the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October 2010, the
Company deregistered in the Cayman Islands and
duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda effective on 14 October
2010. The registered office of the Company is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Units 3011B-12, 30/F, West Tower Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company is principally engaged
in investment holding. The principal activities of the
Group include film production and distribution, the
provision of management services to artistes, event
coordination, operations of film studio and hotel and
provision of travel related products. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the
Group hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”)
unless otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS")

Amendments to HKFRS that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year:

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 1

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and
HKAS 38 Amortisation

Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 10, the Consolidation Exception
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2012-2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

oF FH BT 6T B £ 06 T A ok I 5
e o v A0 (17 ¥ B B i o R
S 1)

REFERHNERZEFEMBREERA

AEBCRAFEERRBIATEE ST
RE(EESFMIE) BB ZE BB R
ERAZEET

N

ERMBHRE EERLRA
HERISE145

ERMBERE BBeEXB RSN G
SR FE15R Pap::

CHEN

BERETER WEATE
F1H (BT X)

FE gt ER BRETENREEN
F165E X AR A
FiE gt £
F385% (7T &)

EE G L E165 E2E AEWEY
REE S LD
FARBETA)

ERGAERNBTH BUNBTRER < HERX
(BETA)

EEUBREEN REER ERSEAAR

F10%E - BB ZBIIME R

81 o 5 Al

F1RHEBE G

R 5285

(BETA)
EEVBRELD BEUBERELEIN_T—

(BT A) —EE-T-NEREE

ZEENE

BRIt EN RAFEREBEF S
MR EEAZETHAEBRA
FERENFEZHBRREMKR
/R ERAMA T RENE 2 FEE
BRI EEATE-

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKEFERS”) (continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment prohibit entities from using
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce a rebuttable
presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following
two limited circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue, or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

In addition, the amendments also clarify that in
choosing an appropriate amortisation method an
entity could determine the predominant limiting factor
that is inherent in the intangible asset.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group has applied the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2016. Prior to this date, the Group’s
film rights had been amortised in proportion to the
estimated projected revenues over their economic
beneficial period (a revenue-based amortisation
model). With the adoption of these amendments, the
Group amortises its film rights using a straight-line
method of amortisation.

ok FH BT 6T B A8 08 T A ok B 5
e o5 v A0 (17 ¥ B B i o R
W Des)

FARERAB6M RF RS 5 F A K365
(BRIR)EFHERBHEN TR %

AEBCRAFEERERBT RS ERE
165% ) & B & st 2RI 3858 (1 7] &%) B)F

BERBHEAAERTZ - BRGAERF6
SRUERTAR)YE BERRBERILERERY
¥ BMELRBEBEAARASER 2T
BX - BEEEREIBR (BTN ELE
ESIA—HA B ZBR - R ALIFER
BEBIE ABEEE - HWABRKEARAT

MRBARBRTRESR
a) EEVEERMNAREER L

by EAURARARBEREELENRELZ
HREFERE R

o ZFETEBFREREEHE X
B —AEBEREEENEEAGZIER
HIEE -

RIR BRI AR BIRARRE AR A
B -RE-A-BEMZEFT - K&ZA
Bl - AEENZRENAEELBEX S8
B FEET W AR L 38 AR A R B £ 7
HIER) - BEAAWER]  AREERER
BEEAHETRENETHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

107



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKERS”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRS that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

Leases!

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions?®

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses®

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKEFERS”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract;

Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKERS”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing
and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW
AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKEFERS”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would
be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$146,699,000 as disclosed in note
41. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment on what the impact of the other new
or revised HKFRS is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the GEM Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis which assumes
the realisation of assets and satisfaction of liabilities
in the ordinary course of business notwithstanding
that the Group had consolidated net current
liabilities of approximately HK$297,143,000 (2015:
approximately HK$532,936,000) and suffered loss
of approximately HK$327,092,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$264,834,000). The management of the Group
has been taking active steps to improve working
capital of the Group by obtaining further debt
or equity financing and implementing measures
to tighten cost controls over various operating
expenses in order to improve its profitability and to
generate positive cash inflow from its operations
in the future. The Company also entered into
subscription agreements between the Company,
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”) and two third parties
in respect of the subscription of the subscription
shares at an agreed price which will be subject
to the shareholders’ approval at a special general
meeting to be held on 6 April 2017. The Company
shall issue the subscription shares to Mr. Sin and
the two third parties to settle (i) the total interests
of the promissory notes, convertible bonds and
loans from shareholder of Mr. Sin; and (i) the debts
of the construction costs amounting approximately
RMB76,674,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$86,520,000) respectively. In addition, the Group
is actively exploring the availability of alternative
source of financing, the major shareholder, who
is also the major convertible bond holder of the
Company, has undertaken to provide financial
support to the Group to meet its liabilities as they
fall due and to maintain the Group as a going
concern for the next twelve months by providing
certain undrawn revolving loan facilities amounting
to HK$306,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taking into account of the presently available
standby credit facilities and the cash flow projections
prepared by the management with reference to the
current business and financing plans of the Group,
the directors are of the view that the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present requirements
for the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to continue in business as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the
value of assets and current liabilities respectively and
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and
° any additional facts and circumstances that

indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continuea)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership inferests in existing
subsidliaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity
including reserves and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant equity
component, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate
and joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture that has not been
classified as held for sale shall be accounted for
using the equity method. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. 3. EEGHNER @

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to disposal) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method
is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain
or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably on the following bases:

Income derived from the production and distribution
of films, when the production is completed and the
film is released, the film has been distributed to the
cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit
confirms to the Group its share of box receipts.

Revenue from hotel operations and sales of travel
related products are recognised when services are
provided.

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution
and broadcasting rights over films, when the
Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the
relevant agreements, is usually upon delivery of the
film negatives to the customers.

Artiste management fee income, food and beverage
and ancillary services are recognised when the
agreed services are rendered.

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets
are accepted and surrendered by the customer.

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk
and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred to the buyers.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
over the lease term. Contingent rentals are
recognised on the accounting period when they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continueq)

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
other than investment properties measured under
fair value model, such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the year in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. 3. EEGHNER @

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continueq)

Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “Land lease prepayments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

° exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme and are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC, except Hong Kong, are
required to participate in the employee retirement
scheme operated by the relevant local government
bureau in the PRC and to make contributions for
their eligible employees. The contributions payable
by the subsidiary are calculated based on a
certain percentage of the salaries and wages of
those eligible employees and are recognised as an
expense during the period to which they relate.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after
7 November 2002 and had not vested on 1 January
2005 are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group operates equity settled
share-based compensation plans for remuneration
of its employees and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication
that the number of share options expected to vest
differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer
share options ultimately are exercised than originally
vested.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation (Continueq)

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based payment
fransaction

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to
be received) as the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds issued and that
of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalization.

The debt component (i.e. the bondholder’s right to
demand payment in cash) of the convertible bond
will be accounted for as a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction while the equity component
(i.e. the bondholder’s right to demand settlement
in the Company’s shares) of the convertible bond
will be accounted for as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction. The entity first measures
the fair value of the debt component, and then
measure the fair value of the equity component by
taking into account that the bondholder must forfeit
the right to receive cash in order to receive the
equity instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the debt component of the convertible bond is
stated at fair value, with changes recorded in the
income statement under gain/(loss), net. The equity
component is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

3.

wEG I BOR 2

MRt EENESRN A

AR AR R M 1T (R B - 5 BT 170 B B 4B f R O
R B SEARDEE - BERBERRER
HORM SR BB B AN ARTT6E - R ST AT I BB A%
REGBERNBESEARTER -

BITHBREFIEBABROBERINAKLS

i AR R PTUER A A ¢ B E DR EEITH
BREFZANE  ARBREBITABRR
BHEAAEECUREBENREAREZRH
B RR AT E B WG IR AN A] 38R AR 75
WEIRRERANEREZE  REFBSRA
BNAER-

AEBRESFZEHEBD(MEFFHAAREK
MBS MRZERN) SERREEF UK
MRERZNRAIZAR Mo R ESFZ
Bamso BMESFAABRKUAQF RN
B Z M) BHERIARAR S F AR A
RZNFRRS  BBEEFEERBHOZA
RnE HRFAEBEASOZAAE " EhE
ZREFFEALANZWRA S ZHER
TR EERET A - YIniERE - RRE
HZEBHBIRIAEIE MESHALA
Wansk 2 g, (BR)FEET - RO
R HERETIEENAE -

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress (“CIP”), hotel properties
and film studio, are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 3':%
Leasehold Over the shorter of the lease
improvements term or 20%
Furniture, fixtures 20%
and office
equipment
Motor vehicles and 20%
yacht

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation
method and estimated residual values are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance are charged as an expense during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

3. EEGEFIEKR 2

V¥ BERRHE

BREZIR(EZIR) BEEMERTR
WO M BB R RERWBR AR R
FEREMRERBRIE BEENKAERE
HBEERGHEBEXEAAME R ZTIRE
ARRAVERRERENEMEXTBAA

ME - BWERREIRBEEGEAIERFS
W RZ R EIZEIRB /G RIS EERRINA
TERPUBEBREFTIRTE - AMBEAE

e+ TH HA
EF T K 3% (BN R &)
FEmEEE FH H 5 20% (BUE i 3&)

G- EKER 20%
MRAERB

TR N g 20%

BENMGAERFY  FEHEMF#E
DREREABRARBE@DESR)

BERHEMEENRBIHEZREERR
SRIBEHEREEMNEZRE  TRIE RN E

W °

HERAE R EIRR A B R A 21 5
BRRERANEE - A B AR S
RRER  AFABENKRAEXERRBEL
BEMER) - #IERREESHAEMAK
AREENBT BRI AERRHER

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

129



130

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

CIP other than hotel constructions represents
plant and building under construction and is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and
the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

CIP in relation to hotel constructions, Hotel
properties and Film studio are stated at valuation
less accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

Increases in value arising on revaluation are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading
of properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in
value arising on revaluation are first offset against
increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and thereafter recognised in profit or loss.
Any subsequent increases are recognised in profit
or loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment properties) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes,
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film products

Film products are completed films produced by
the Group. Film products, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation of film
products is calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are one to three years. An
impairment loss is made when there has been
a change in the estimate used to determine the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct
costs associated with the production of films such
as direct labour costs, cost of services, facilities
and raw materials consumed in the creation of a
film. Upon completion, these films under production
are reclassified as film products. Film production
in progress is accounted for on a film-by-film
basis. An impairment loss is made when there has
been a change in the estimate used to determine
the recoverable amount and the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.

Investments in films/dramas production

Investments in films/dramas production are stated
initially cost and adjusted thereafter for the net
income derived from the investments less any
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment
loss is made when there has been a change in the
estimate used to determine the recoverable amount
and the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are
determined by the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.

HEGg R )

- -]
ENER

EYEMNARETRBEENEY - EXE
iR AR B (& R AT IR R REHRE B 1R
FIRR - B EmBHNERAREMEAE
RERMBEERAERERGEESE - =
ZOERAFHEAR—Z=F - MARE TR
CeR oMt AEPRETERBTKRES
o AMELRERRE -

EREVER

ERETERBRARETAREBRERIER
RABEEREELHBENAEERKA
PINER B TR - ZUEERRARHRS -
R R R RO AR © IR R BUER - 5
EYEMSEN O BRRETEM EHEY
EmASEETZREEAR - MAREER
WE g AR REERBAKRE
ZF - AMELRERIE -

RETH BERME

REEY, BB R IEV SRR ATIR R E %
FhI% B P15 WA F BB ] R EHRE B 1B
EHE - AREEI RO SR 2MAEE
HLERERETRESE  AFLRER

B

#E

FEERARATERFENEEERR o K
A (BEREEERFHRERI ZEEED) T
WIEFAE - AR IFEEFEMGR
EERPA KA RAREEPTFRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

133



134

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

3. EEGEFIEKR 2

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL’), held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

a) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments (Continuea)

b) those that the entity designates as available
for sale; and

C) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture and cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

o disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 30 days to 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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3. 3. EEGHNER @

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under equity. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reserved through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
net gains or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT

RNETZA=+—BLLFE

3. HEFFIBUR®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as

at FVTPL

when the financial liability is (i) held for trading or
(ii) it is designated as at FTVPL or (i) contingent

consideration that may be paid by an

acquirer as

part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3

applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
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it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilites at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes/
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities
and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 6.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group are convertible bonds classified
as share-based payment transactions and are
measured at fair value on initial recognition. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit of loss are re-measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the period
in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdraft, loan from a
related company, loans from shareholders, finance
lease obligation and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Bonds and warrants

Bonds are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Warrants that are contractually transferable
independently of the bonds and entitle the holder
to acquire a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash are
equity instruments. The proceeds (net of transaction
costs) allocated to the warrants are recognised in
the warrant reserve in equity.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

Convertible bond issued by the Company that
contain both financial liability (together with the
early redemption option which is closely related to
the host liability component) and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debts (with
early redemption option). The difference between the
gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component
is allocated to the conversion option that meets the
definition of an equity instrument, and is included in
equity as convertible bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised or expired.

When the option is exercised, the convertible bonds
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to
the retained earnings/accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank overdraft, loan
from a related company, loans from shareholders,
finance lease obligation and borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis other than financial liabilities classified
as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person,

(@) has controls or joint control over the
Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

or

(i) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(@) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(b)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

() the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

3. EEGEFIEKR 2

SRMIRE)

RIFEZ (E)

ECREEIHEVERAR  EENKREE
HE UK BB ERIR MEE8E - URE
\/\'ﬁﬂiﬁq& qzﬁ@wu]lﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁpi%ﬁz%
A EE  REBERPHER -

AEEEREZTEETEHWMBR - BUBSKERE
FERIIEREHAE KIEBRRANES/RE
ffﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁffZFE]E’]?%ﬁiﬁ(\
BEPHER -

BB %5
i —7 B T3S

() ZABR—BALTHRKEZKBHIIHE
ifl 7% % AL

+ RIAR A B & ) R

(@ B ARIEHAEE
b)) HAEEEEATE X

© ARAEEXARAGRAZEE

EEREKE

(i) BITA/TAETIEMGHNER:

b)) —HERBASZ—EBNBEQF
KEECR(EIRZ—HEBZERQ
B-MEA ﬂ@zlﬁ%’%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂ’\]

o AAINAE DK

~—

(© E\i%i/\ZK%i’]?%H E=712

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

147



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. HEFFIBUR®)

3. SIGNIFICANT

148

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

(9  a person identified in ()(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(h)y  the entity, or any number of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the presents of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealing with
the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts
are shown in current liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect
only that period, or in the period of the revisions and
future periods if the revisions affect both current and
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for and write-off of irrecoverable receivables

The Group’s management determines the allowance
for irrecoverable receivables on a regular basis. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of the outstanding
receivables. These estimates are based on the
credit history of its customers and current market
conditions. When the Group’s management
determines that there are indicators of significant
financial difficulties of the debtors such as default
or delinquency in payments, allowance for debtors
are estimated. The management of the Group
reassesses the estimations at the reporting date.
When the Group’s management determines the
debtors are uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account for debtors. Any amount held
in the allowance account in respect of those debtors
is reversed.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuea)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)
Depreciation of property, plant and equjpment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. If the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the depreciation
and the amortisation charge in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

Amortisation and impairment on film products and film
production in progress

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related amortisation charges for
the Group’s film products. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of film products. The Group will revise
the amortisation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated. The
Group tests annually whether the film products have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of
the film products has been determined on the basis of
fair value using discounted cash flow method.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
oceupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)

Estimation of fair value of long-term other receivable

The long-term other receivable represent
consideration receivable regarding the construction
management agreement with a local government
company in the PRC (note 27). The Group
estimates the fair value of consideration receivable
by determining the fair value of the property
transferred based on a qualified professional
valuer appraised. The Group also projects the
future cash receipt of the consideration receivable
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
derived from the repayment terms in accordance
with the construction management agreement. The
difference between the fair value and actual receipt
of the consideration implies a discount rate to
reflect the Group’s assessment of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows. These
estimates and projections are determined by the
Group’s management based on their experience and
assessment on current and future market condition.

CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2015.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank overdrafts, loan from a related
company, loans from shareholders, borrowings,
finance lease obligation, bonds, convertible
bonds and promissory note net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.
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S.

CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Gearing ratio

The Directors review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buybacks as well as the issue of new
debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:
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2016 2015

—ZE—-RE e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT T T

Total debts BE 75 1,373,060 1,042,568
Total assets BEE 2,377,447 2,448,510
Gearing ratio BABELE 58% 43%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE—ZT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T H
Categories of financial instruments Q) S£HMIASTE
2016 2015
—FE—-RFE —ET—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5% FHET FAT
Financial assets EHMEE
Loans and receivables ERREWRIE
Non-current assets REBEE
Other receivable and deposits £ /b JiE U 018 [
g a 27 93,551 99,742
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JEUWE 5 FIE 25 6,693 3,440
Deposits and other receivables & & & E fth fiE Ik
A 27 32,480 11,846
Amount due from a joint venture JEULA & 1 %
B 21 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances e RIRITER 28 4,283 12,705
139,421 130,147
Financial liabilities SREE
Fair value through profit or {HARL{EEA
loss 18 2 71 Bk
Convertible bonds Al A% (5 36 110,813 226,068
Amortised cost 8 R A
Non-current liabilities EFHER
Other payables H fh fE < 5018 30 24,236 26,909
Loans from shareholders KHRHER 32 451,471 32,500
Borrowings BE 33 48,048 83,219
Bonds &5 35 445,688 271,897
Promissory note HHRR 37 81,655 79,576
Finance lease obligation BT B AR 34 20,370 15,712
Current liabilities HENEE
Trade payables B E SRR 29 1,846 1,179
Other payables and accruals H b EFRIE R
et & 30 153,501 125,217
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 28 8,501 8,345
Loan from a related company  — BB E: QA FH
=N 31 - 12,400
Loans from shareholders NN N 32 10,873 107,000
Borrowings BE 33 131,490 185,942
Bonds &5 35 61,115 2,073
Convertible bonds Al AR E 5 36 - 151,382
Finance lease obligation B S A & AR 34 3,036 5,954
1,552,643 1,335,373
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6. @l TH@#
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing
and financing activities. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due
from a joint venture, cash and bank balances,
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank overdrafts, loan from a related company,
loans from shareholders, borrowings, finance
lease obligation, bonds, convertible bonds
and promissory note. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors of the Company manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Several subsidiaries
of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Certain trade receivables and
payables of the Group are denominated in
either RMB or United States Dollars (‘US$”).
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy as the directors of
the Company considered that the volatility
of the exchange rates between HK$, RMB
and US$ is limited. However, the directors of
the Company monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

(b)

MERRERRRERR

AEBEBRERLE  KE K EEBmA
SEZEMBRER AEENEELH
TERERERKESHE e hHM
JEURFRIE - BEIKAECERIEBE Re
NIRITH S  ENESROE - EibjE
NZBEREFER BO8EX  —M
BB ARMER  REMNER - B8
MHHEERE &5 TBRRESR
AREE - ZEeMTAFBRASH
HEEE - TXEHMNEZESMTAE
BEE R M AEBTAREZSERER
R - AR EBETENEEZE
B ABEREEAESHEIGES
I o

AEBHGN R TARRBENRE
Br@ERERBNTALELES -

A
SMEIE R

E¥REREsRIANARBELRRE
B & R ERE B MR KBHAE
R REBEETHERREFUIE
HEMEE R RE - RE RS EEX
EHNERR - AEEETEEESR
BANENEZHBIIAARBRET
(ETDAE - HRARBDEERR
B AR R ETT 2 B/ E XK
AR - NS B R BRSNS H ORI
Ko R ARAEFGFEEINER
B UENEREEZEHHEAIN
BRR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & %= —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the loan from a related company,
loans from shareholders, borrowings, bonds,
convertible bonds and promissory note
which are subject to fixed interest rates are
disclosed in notes 31, 32, 33, 35, 36 and 37
respectively. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policy, however,
the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate change exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of each of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting periods
were outstanding for the whole of each of the
reporting periods. A 50 basis points increase
or decrease in the market rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$55,993,000 (2015: approximately HK$
48,098,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
loans from shareholders, borrowings, bonds,
convertible bonds and promissory note.

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

—ARE+TZA=1T-RALFE

6. &k T Hm)

(b)

MEBEEREBRBREBRZ

5B (&)
I [l

MERBRSIRESBHIAEN AR ERR
eRER m%a"wf“%ﬂﬁﬂﬂjﬁ&@bﬂ’]
ER - —EEBEARNER  RED
BX B8 &5 TRBRESFREAR

ZEMREEMNERGFE)MEENE
%ufﬁﬂﬂ DRI FE R M 5E31 ~ 32 ~ 33
35+ 36437 ° $%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬂ

FYORIE - AT B EERA RS
BAR TEREEESERYHE

Kﬂf“ﬁﬂho

REDH

T ZHRBEDTTIRIES R EHHE
ZHTETEANEZEARETE - ®ED
s BERBEFRKRTHEZEH
TARZERENEREREERTHE -

MEBEIEREAB NI EER AT
HREHEEE{AE  BEHEAL0MEE

R O 42 18 KO IR -

1ﬁﬂ%‘fiﬁim//Jx ~50 1] - 2 i H b &
HHERFITE AEERZE-ZT—F
T A=+ —HILFE 2B S5
/4 4955,993,0008 T (ZE— A
F 1 4948,098,000F70) * EBHNAE
EEBRREER B35 - FF5 7K
BEHEEALZEEMBYE 2FEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments in
financial instruments at fair values, the Group
is not exposed to significant price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. To minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Majority of the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC and the Group has limited the exposure
to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit-
rating.

Credit risk is concentrated as 9% (2015: 10%)
of the total trade receivables are due from the
Group’s largest customer within film studio
operation segment (2015: hotel operation
segment). However, the management of
the Group closely monitors the progress of
collecting the payments from the customers
and reviews the overdue balances regularly.
In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

6. &k T Hm)

(b)

MEBRREBRREBR(E)

HtbERE R
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HREABRERERR
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AEENRITERAB DT RN BB
RABEORTT  BEAKLED RS FE
ERE-—MBERENRR EHFH
BREEFRRFNRIT  HRBE
EWEERBRB -

HRERESREREFIN (ZF—
AF10%) REAEBEEBHEED
H(—TZ—RHF O HELEDI)HRAK
BFE - BEERKREASET - A &
SEEREERYERRKREREFSFIEMN
EE BTrHBTalsges o stitm
T EERAASENEERRKREX
FEAR -

il

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 5 it 4% 3¢ 4k 45 [ 47 B2 #]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. In the
management of liquidity risk, the directors
monitor and maintain a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations and to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due. The Group
finances its working capital requirements
mainly by the funds obtained from the
issuance of equity instruments.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments
and the earliest date in which the entity can
be required to pay were set out below.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

6. &k T Hm)

(b)

MEBEEREBRBREBRZ
REEERNERD LA EEREREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. &k T Hm)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMEBERREEEEHEBRE)
policies (Continuea)
Liguidity risk management (Continued) ROELEREE (&)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TBESR(E)
The tables include both interest and principal TREEMEREASBESRE - BHF
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows BEERMs  AMREBLAERRSE
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is HARBANTSHNERFHESE -
derived from market interest rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period.
Weighted On More than
average demand 1 year but More Total
interest or within less than than undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5years 5 years cash flows amounts
MEEY BRERS ZR-£ AURBEL
AE  —Fk BOREE ZREE REBE IREE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
% FER F#ERT F#ER F#ERT TER
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~E
+ZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial ETESHAER
liabilities
Trade and other payables and ~ EREZFHIER E
accruals FER TR R B AT
A — 155,347 23,366 870 179,583 179,583
Bank overdrafts RITEX 4.50 8,533 - - 8,533 8,501
Loans from shareholders BRENER 9.74 53,689 508,213 - 561,902 462,344
Borrowings E3- 8.22 137,555 49,437 - 186,992 179,538
Bonds &% 13.70 135,017 454,762 126,276 716,055 506,803
Promissory note EALEE 9.00 7,200 83,707 - 90,907 81,655
Finance lease obligation BT SR 11.40 4,802 7,495 60,960 73,257 23,406
502,143 1,126,980 188,106 1,817,229 1,441,830
Derivatives fT£IR
Convertible bonds AARES 11.48 10,866 117,430 - 128,296 110,813
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. &k T Hm)

(Continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERRETEEHEHEREZ
policies (Continuea)
Liquidiity risk management (Continued) ROE2RBEE(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) HBEER(E)
Weighted On  More than
average  demand 1 year but More Total
interest  or within ~ less than than  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
MEFH RERK ZR-F@E AERBEER
Mz —FR  JIREF SREF BB EEE
% HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET TR TR TR TR
At 31 December 2015 R-ZF-5&F
+=-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FHTESRTIA
liabilities
Trade and other payables and ERESRERLM
accruals JER FB I I fE AT
EA - 153,088 - - 153,088 153,088
Bank overdrafts BITEX 4.50 8,379 - - 8,379 8,345
Loan from a related company —BBEBEARNER 1.00 12,855 - - 12,855 12,400
Loans from shareholders % 9 E % 10.14 117,190 36,455 - 153,645 139,500
Borrowings f&E 1011 205,378 90,997 - 296,375 269,161
Bonds EH 1376 26,616 306,509 61,065 394,190 273,970
Convertible bonds R ES 16.47 189,806 - - 189,806 151,382
Promissory note ELEE 12.41 9,120 91,735 - 100,855 79,576
Finance lease obligation MBEHEAE 11.34 7,845 8,074 57,282 73,201 21,666
730277 533770 118,347 1,382,394 1,109,088
Derivatives fTETR
Convertible bonds R ES 148 32,623 267,872 - 300,495 226,068
(c)  Fair value measurements ) AfR{EFE
Fair value measurements recognised in the RGEHBERRZAER LA BT E
consolidated statement of financial position
At the end of the reporting period, the RIEBMR  AEEW EEMREE R

Group did not have any assets and liabilities
that were measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

During the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

BERLARABEFESRAE -

HE-_ZT—XREr-_Z—AF+-A=
+—BLEFE F—HEFE-_H M
YEAREFE ZER  MESET
REEBE =R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

7.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME,

=—F

4= —=

OTHER (LOSSES) AND

GAINS

Revenue, other income and other (losses) and
gains derived from the Group’s principal activities
recognised during the year is as follows:

RNETZA=+—BLLFE

L&

7. WA~ HABBA - HAth (5 R)

FARAREBRNEE T ZEBOWRA - i

WA B (BB RIasmT

2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue [ PN
Artiste management fee income BAEEBRA 1,321 1,305
Hotel room income B TE 5 U A 11,711 10,733
Food and beverage income BRI A 19,793 8,784
Entrance fee income SEZL PN 10,143 11,940
Event income EEIA - 2,276
Films production and licensing income & 5 &1 [z 5 27 U A 1,215 352
Rental income el A 10,636 2,916
Sales of travel related products $H & IR 2 48 BE = 339 -
Sales of goods EmiEE 942 871
Ancillary services B 5% AR 75 1,727 861
57,827 40,038
Other income Hib g A
Bank interest income RATH B WA 6 6
Waiver of interest of convertible bond %A % 7] 3 i% (& 55 71 & 12,513 —
Others HAb 995 3,036
13,514 3,042
Other (losses) and gains Hih (558 BRI =
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE  BMEMEREDN
plant and equipment F U R - 127
Net losses on early settlement of REEHNABRRKRESD
convertible bonds FEE (193) -
(193) 127
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group is currently organised into
three operating segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Production and
distribution of films,
provision of travel
related products,
provision of
management services
to artistes and event
coordination

Films production and —
distribution, sales
of travel related
products, artiste
management
and event
coordination

Film studio —
operation

Operation of film studio
Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

8.

51 ¥ & B

REFREBEREREER - B E RS
FERERAGENARNEESZSETRE IR
ANBAIEBEERRE ((EBEERKE])
ETAMERBREN BN AEERD
R=EREDE - AEBEYELZLEEN A
BF - AR TSR 23 &6 ©

BYRERET - — RERFTEL-
38 77 48 B R 44 IR AT R B E
ER - BAEE B AE AR
REDGE BB RED

5%

YRS — wERAY

I — EEEE

BRAAREETZ2Hm D 80D
™o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. & KR

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results PHBMARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue ITAEAZHDBESHAEERA &
and results by reportable segments: EBREBEDNT:
Film
production and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event  Film studio Hotel  Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
ERRER
BT HERT
HHES EA
EER
EHRE BHANEE BEEE 53 8B B4 8 meE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHT FET
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-B-»%
+-ZA=t+-BLEE
Revenue from external customers RENREEHBA 2,955 20,947 33,925 - 57,827
Inter-segment revenue LEELON 273 - 644 (917) -
Reportable segment revenue AZHDHBRA 3,228 20,947 34,569 (917) 57,827
Reportable segment loss AR BEE (23,900) (68,152) (44,358) - (136,410)
Other income Hiplg A 1,001
Waiver of interest of convertible bond BeBRRESFF S 12,513
Net losses on early settlement of REERIBBRESZ
convertible bonds EBiEFE (193)
Gain on fair value changes of investment EMED A EE S W%
properties 1,500
Loss on fair value changes of convertible AT REHRAELE
bonds Ba (22,200)
Unallocated corporation expenses ENl N (63,947)
Finance costs BMEKK (119,356)
Loss before income tax REGERATEE (327,092)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

8. &M &

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBEARESZ
Film
production
and
distribution,
artiste
management Film
and event studio Hotel  Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
BEYRER
XTI UN
ERRED
58 wEhRYLE BIEEE 2R 45 8 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT THT FHT THT
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-Z-1F
TZAZ+-HILEE
Revenue from external customers KENRBEEHBA 4,099 15,684 20,255 - 40,038
Inter-segment revenue o EE A - - 882 (882) -
Reportable segment revenue AZHS BRA 4,099 15,684 21,137 (882) 40,038
Reportable segment loss 2R HEE (15,387) (80,183) (41,852) - (137,422)
Other income il A 3,042
Fair value changes of convertible bonds AT B E4 AL ELE
B8 (19,045)
Loss on fair value changes of investment & &N E AL EZEHH
properties B#E (900)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant H&EW% - BEREEZ
and equipment e | 127
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBARRZ (28,827)
Finance costs BEKAK (80,909)
Loss before income tax BETGRAIER (264,834)
Revenue reported above represents revenue LEREHROUAEBREFEARGINATP
generated from external customers and inter- BB A RS EBENIEE -

segment sales during both years.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ salaries, waiver of interest
of convertible bond, net losses on early settlement
of convertible bonds, loss on fair value changes of
convertible bonds, gain/(loss) on fair value changes
of investment properties, net gains on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, other income,
finance costs, income tax expense and unallocated
corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

DEMEBEEESOBEENEE  ERLED
RARTHAA(BREEHFS  HARTR
BREZMNE  REENATRBESZBRF
BOARKESAAEZRER  REDE
~rREESKE(BR) HEWE  BE
Nz e - Bl A - ISR - S
MEASXEARADERRRS) - WHRNEE
BRRFESHREMATIELERRERS
BFFETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

8. &M &

SBEERER

Film production
and distribution,

sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Film
and event studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
B e &
BR1T  SHEMRAT
HEER BA BARW
EERTHAS " BEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FATT FAT
At 31 December 2016 R-ZFE—-"E+ZA=+—-H
Reportable segment assets AERNAHEE 33,599 1,433,305 871,348 2,338,252
Property plant and equipment 1% - BE & & 1,233
Cash and cash equivalents BekBe&EEIESR 2,181
Investment properties BEME 33,700
Intangible asset BREE 1,079
Unallocated corporation assets &2 B A= & E 1,002
Consolidated assets HEEE 2,377,447
Reportable segment liabilities TERHWBEE (8,529) (114,652) (77,058) (200,239)
Loans from shareholders R E R (462,344)
Borrowings EE (179,538)
Bonds EH (506,803)
Convertible bonds R E S (110,813)
Promissory note AT (81,655)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBARZ (176,356)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR D AR & E (19,721)
Consolidated liabilities FEER (1,737,469)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+-A=+—H
Reportable segment assets AERHHEE 26,499 1,337,273 1,037,823 2,401,595
Property plant and equipment 1% - BE & & 1,525
Cash and cash equivalents BekBE&EEIESR 8,063
Intangible asset BREE 1,079
Investment properties BEME 32,200
Unallocated corporation assets &2 B A& & & 4,048
Consolidated assets HAEE 2,448,510
Reportable segment liabilities AERHHERE (1,642) (96,691) (75,624) (173,957)
Loan from a related company — BB ARNER (12,400)
Loans from shareholders B R E 3 (139,500)
Borrowings e (269,161)
Bonds &% (273,970)
Convertible bonds AR E S (377,450)
Promissory note EALRE (79,576)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBARE (179,804
Provision for income tax FTiS B E (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilites & H B A7 &E& (9,359)
Consolidated liabilities FAAE 1,518,128
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B & —F —

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea)

8. &M &

SBEAERER(E

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

NE+ZA=+—HILFE

For the purposes of monitoring segment ARERSERBEERNRDIEIBRER:
performance and allocating resources between
segments:
—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRREEN FIEEEEIRES
other than corporate assets; and A2FH B K
— all liabilities are allocated to reportable - BRaRaE IBEEEEIRES
segments other than corporate liabilities. AW E -
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management Film
and event studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
ENRER
BT  $HEIR
THEAESR -
EANEER HRW B
EESE weE HEEE EeEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET F& T FET
For the year ended BE-_F—<&E
31 December 2016 +ZA=Z+—BLEE
Depreciation of property, plant ¥1% - BE LR ETE
and equipment 1,236 28,442 29,488 59,166
Amortisation of land lease T8 1 i 7 S B8 8N
prepayments - 11,458 2,245 13,703
Amortisation of film products 2 F & @ & 8 10,745 - - 10,745
Addition to non-current assets 3 8) & E 1 hn0 346 68,914 18,997 88,257
For the year ended BEz—_Z—1F
31 December 2015 TZA=FT—HIEFE
Depreciation of property, plant #1% - BE R & EITE
and equipment 425 24,058 26,796 51,279
Amortisation of land lease TEfF 4 th FH & B 45
prepayments — 7,923 2,245 10,168
Amortisation of film products 5 F7 & fh & 85 5,093 - — 5,093
Addition to non-current assets  JE i B) & & ANl 5,463 10,845 107,114 128,422
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. & KR

(Continued)

Geographical information WEEE

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AEBEMABBARERBEEHETERES
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong B (REEBS)BIAEEETEZREMEN
Kong (being the place of domicile of the major B

companies comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on BRI ER NERBEEFERREIAL
the location at which the contracts are negotiated MAEME - REIPEFHBRRKAETER
and entered with the customers. The total revenue B -

from external customers is mainly sourced from the

PRC.

Information about major customers FHEEZFRMEH

No single customers contributed 10% or more to the HE-Z—RFkZZT—RF+=-A=+—H
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December IEFE WESB-XFPERMAEEK A10%
2016 and 2015. A Lo

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BhE A

2016 2015

—E—-RE —T—hHEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET F#& T

Finance lease charges BHRHEHEE R 1,852 1,943

Interest on bank overdrafts |ITHEZHE 380 379

Interest on bonds EHF B 50,944 10,729

Interest on convertible bonds Al AR E 5 A B 14,290 20,354

Interest on promissory note EHEBERNE 9,279 6,080

Interest on loans from shareholders % B & 7 &9 Fll & 32,501 4,256
Interest on loan from a related —EAB A ERNF B

company 454 1,364

Interest on unsecured other HumEREENE

borrowings 8,779 26,661

Interest on secured other borrowings i & 1 (£ & 7| & - 8,883

Interest on secured bank borrowings A KRR ITEER B 877 260

119,356 80,909
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B T B AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. B B £ B 6 s 18

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T F& T
Loss before income tax is arrived at  BRFF ST ATEE D%,
after charging/(crediting): GUNSEYIEE
Auditor’s remuneration % EAD BN & 610 530
Amortisation of film products A i 10,745 5,093
Amortisation of land lease T+ 7H & 8
prepayments 13,703 10,168
Costs of inventories recognised as BRAERAIZHFEKAR
expenses 379 329
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - BMERREITE
equipment 59,578 51,820
Net exchange losses e EEFE 33,998 14,260
Minimum lease payments under REBELEHEREBYED
operating leases in respect of rented &K E &
premises 11,483 8,596
Rental receivables from investment WEYERKESREE
properties less direct outgoings of 7 3% 47165,0007% 7T
approximately HK$165,000 (ZZ=—HF:
(2015: approximately HK$143,000) #7143,0007% JT) (187) (16)
Employee benefit expenses EEENMEX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIEE=H2)
(note 13) (B 5E13)
— Salaries, allowances and — 5e  EME
benefits in kind BEYiEH 33,555 33,371
— Contributions to retirement — ERIRBEFIEE
benefits schemes R 6,277 5,392
39,832 38,763
ZH 1T
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Fr 5 Bi B 2

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as there were no assessable profits arising in or

derived from Hong Kong for both years.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Enterprises
Income Tax at 25% has not been provided as
the PRC subsidiaries incurred losses for taxation

purposes for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

(Continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Fie 153 B B 32 (48

\,\’rtﬂT/HEEFEE’J%RIﬁE?ﬂHEET/Hé

ErBEARERTE

Zliif%ﬂlﬁﬁﬂi'i—léﬁi,ﬂ%/\ﬁéﬁ
ARNBHATBEYERNT

Hfth 2 [ U

2016 2015
—E—-RE T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Loss before tax BB ATE R (327,092) (264,834)
Tax at domestic income tax rate RERNMEHRBERFTED
IR (62,238) (50,520)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] 17 B St Y 71 75 52 &
for tax purpose 36,731 24,491
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax B 7B &R I A B TR 75 52 2
purpose (429) (3,254)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not @h FH 5t Bil & fE 22 H) £ 18
recognised &5 18 (285) (14)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated >k & 2 fﬁ qu BIE R E R
tax losses 7837 26,221 29,300
Tax effect of temporary difference not & ﬁ@ RE HT ERER
recognised e - ©)
Income tax expense for the year RNEEMEHAX — —
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive REMZERY WAHERHFAE
expense/income
2016 2015
—E—-RE — R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Deferred tax B IE
Arising on expense/income recognised E4BEREMEEMAS
in other comprehensive expense/ WAERNASL
income: WA
Revaluation of properties held for EMFIEERAME
own use (3,448) 20,048
Total income tax (credit)/expense RE 2 5% VL ON::
recognised in other comprehensive  REFTEF E%),F
expense/income > A% (3,448) 20,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE

13.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$327,092,000 (2015: approximately
HK$264,828,000) and the weighted average of
approximately 3,700,776,000 (2015: approximately
3,113,092,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year. Diluted loss per share for loss attributable to
the owners of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 was the same as basic
loss per share because the impact of the exercise of
the share options, warrants and convertible bonds
are anti-dilutive.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2015: nine) Directors and the chief executive were
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

12. 45 B s 18

TR FRERNBEIBRERARGESA
JiE {5 B9 48 #9327,092,000/8 T (— T — R 4 -
#7264,828,0007% Jr) & B 8 17 HY E 38 f% &9 hn
R 15 81 493,700,776,0000% (ZZF —F4F : 4
3,113,092,000%) 718 - FERME - REEE R
AMBESNTELAERESETE Al
BE - Z—RER_ZE—HAF+-_A=+—
ALt FEARRREAAEEBENSREE
BERESHREAEERR -

13. #H Lo 8 BN BB

ENSIEMNEB(CE-—RAF - LRBEER
SRERANENFHMOT

BE_F-"E+-A=+-HLE&EE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits Share-based benefits Total
Fees in kind payments schemes emoluments
e 2R Uk s BAERH
e EWEN  EROMXR RN ame
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors: BTES:
Ms. Law Po Yee (note (i) BB R L (M) - 960 - 18 978
Ms. Sin Ho Yee P ik - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BREKLE - 720 - 18 738
Non-executive Directors kHTES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam TEEIRE & - 2,400 - 18 2,418
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim TRELAE 40 - - - 40
Independent non-executive BUFHRTEES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor BRI EAE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EECAE 60 - - - 60
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick BEREAR 60 - - - 60
Mr. Li Kit Chee TR 60 - - - 60
Total emoluments B 280 4,320 - 66 4,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

13. HEFERRMBAEIENEH M)

BE_F-A&+-A=t+-HLEE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits ~ Share-based benefits Total
Fees in kind payments schemes  emoluments
Fa o RER WU B RIKTEH
e EMEN  EROFK A& 3R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TRT FET TRT
Executive Directors: BTES:
Ms. Law Po Yee BERNL - 900 - 18 918
Ms. Sin Ho Yee RERZL - 225 - 11 236
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BREREE - 710 - 18 728
Non-executive Directors: EHTES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam B E - 2,040 - 18 2,058
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FHEBEEE 34 - - - 34
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor BRI EE 54 - - - 54
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EECEAE 54 - - - 54
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick BEREAR 54 - - - 54
Mr. Li Kit Chee FR2EE 54 - - - 54
Total emoluments A 250 3,875 - 65 4,190
Note: B

(i)

Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) is also the chief
executive of the Company and her emoluments
disclosed included those for services rendered by
her as the chief executive.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. No emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

(i) BRERLZL (Bt )RBREANAFITR
BE - IRERZME BB RIERTRA
BTREREOME -

HE-Z—AFER-TE—AF+-A=1+—HLHF
BEYETRNERESHREXIREREZTAHMESH
ZH - AEERERATANESIHTANE - U
R EEMAREEBREAMARER 2 BE 5K
BEBEAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2015: three) were Directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in

14. 12 & % M

EAEELEREHMALS =R (=F—
B ZR)BREARAES  RENFHERN
XIS - Earm B (ZFE—A%F:

the disclosures in Note 13 above. The emoluments MA)ANLTHF BT
of the remaining two (2015: two) individual were as
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Salaries and other benefits e kEAmER 780 680
Retirement benefit costs B ARAE ) K AR 36 33
816 713

Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2015: nil).

1% & 19 3 B ) T = 21,000,000 7T ©
FERN - AEEHEATLZESWMEEE M

ER B E R I AR BRI ARZ R
BERAEE(CE—AF 8-
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. W3 ~ W bg B s e

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Hotel Leasehold and office  vehicles
buildings properties improvements equipment and yacht Film studio Total
R RE
HETHER HENE RELE
By EEYE %15 #E RERER BN k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT FET FET FAT
cosT BE
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZ-RE-A-ANEH 30,556 831,775 1,714 6,857 3,824 729,517 1,604,243
Additions RE - 46,514 2,13 43,170 4,339 107,626 203,762
Disposals HeE - - - (390) (1,547) - (1,987)
(Deficit)/surplus on valuation HE(BE) /B - (54,069) - = - 87,957 33,894
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERZENTE
differences (495 (22,981) 21 (1,781) 60) (25793  (51,089)
Transfer to Investment properties ERZREME(KiE16)
(note 16) (18,487) - - - - - (18,487)
Balance at 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RET-A=+-RRK
1 January 2016 ZZ-RE-A-BRHEH 11,574 801,245 3,848 47,856 6,556 899,307 1,770,386
Additions RE 113 18,120 362 924 330 68,528 88,377
Deficit on valuation HEBE - (26,793) - - - (36,505) (63,298)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERZENTE
differences 777 (40170) (59) (3,052) 93) (47203 (91,348)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B-"E+-A=+-BHER 10,910 752,402 4,157 45,728 6,793 884,127 1,704,117
DEPRECIATION g
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZ-RE-A-ANEH 2,382 - 1.581 2,463 1,836 - 8.262
Depreciation expense TERX 851 23,517 306 3,768 5099 22,779 51,820
Eliminated on disposal B I B 8 - - - (350) (1,314) - (1,664)
Surplus on valuation HERH - (23,517) - - - (22,779) (46,296)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERZENTE
differences (56) - (10) (374) (22) - (462)
Transfer to Investment properties BREREVE(NE6)
(note 16) (1,731) - - - - - (1,731)
Balance at 31 December 2015 and RZZ-REFTZA=+-RR
1 January 2016 “Z-RE-A-ANEH 1,446 - 1,877 5,507 1,099 - 9,929
Depreciation expense TERX 502 22,980 664 7,765 1,139 26,528 59,578
Eliminated on disposals R ERH - - - - - - -
Surplus on valuation HERS - (22,980) - - - (26,528) (49,508)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEERZENTE
differences (118) - (32) (673) 493) - (866)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B-"E+-A=+-BHER 1,830 - 2,509 12,509 2,195 - 19,133
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-F-RE+ZA=+-B0EH 9,080 752,402 1,648 33,129 4,508 884,127 1,684,984
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZ-EF+ZR=+-BH4&H 10128 801,245 1,971 42,349 5457 899,307 1760457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2016 and 2015 by RHL Appraisal Limited
(“RHL”) an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. RHL is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of surveyors
and have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of properties in
the relevant location. The revaluation deficit
of approximately HK$3,813,000 (2015: deficit
approximately HK$30,546,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$953,000 (2015: deferred income taxes credit
of approximately HK$7,637,000) was debited to
properties revaluation reserve in the amount of
approximately HK$2,860,000 (2015: debited to
properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$ 22,909,000). If the hotel properties had not
been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$451,947,000 (2015: approximately
HK$433,827,000) as at 31 December 2016.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December
2016 and 2015 by RHL. The revaluation deficit
of approximately HK$9,977,000 (2015: surplus
approximately HK$110,736,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$2,495,000 (2015: deferred income taxes expense
of approximately HK$27,684,000) was debited to
properties revaluation reserve in the amount of
approximately HK$7,482,000 (2015: credited to
approximately properties revaluation reserve of
HK$83,052,000). If the film studio had not been
revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$645,479,000 (2015: approximately
HK$624,154,000) as at 31 December 2016.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use. The reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balances is stated in the above table.

15. M3 ~ Wb Mk s ()

BEYER_ZE—RNFR_Z—RAF+_5
=+ —BEXFTTFEBRERRQR(KF
7 —REAEEEREENBUAEREE
HEMER - XFTARBIEMEEeNg
8 ABAEEEARBAHNAEMIE LET
YIELE - BLEIB493,813,000/8 T (ZZF—
¢ F518#930,546,00078 JT) 15 3@ F Y iR
i RIS R K 2 49953,00008 7L (T — R 4F -
IR A5 FIE 2 497,637,000/870) ERWESE
{hREE I 492,860,000 70 (Z B — A4
A4 2 B (i & 4 PR 0 B #922,909,0000 7T) ©
i BB EW EETEMS  EBHR_T—X
FH+—A=+—HKHFE £ K A 4%451,947,000
BT (ZZ — RF : 49433,827,00078 7T) 5 A
RAMBRE -

FEBER T —ARER_T—AF+=-A=
+—BEKFITER - B E1E%9,977,000
BT (ZE—RF B 4110,736,000/8 7T)
0Bk 38 AR A9 IE E BT 1S B 1K 62.492,495,00078 7T
ZE-RF EEFTS I X 427,684,000
BIT) B AW E1E R 0 497,482,000
BT CE—RAF RUWEEGHHEPTA
#783,052,000/% JT) ° fis] 52 15 W KR & E 14 -
HEER _T—"F+_A=+T—HKNF
AR 7K 49648,479,000/8 L (ZZ —HF : 4
624,154,000/8 7T) st A 41 & BT 1 TR 3k ©

RIEETMENDAER - MENRS RKE
RER/ERERE - FORFRAABER
MRS £ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% — /N4 #

173



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. W3 ~ W bg Je st (&)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continuea)

There has been no change to the valuation
techniques during the year. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these

FA - AERMLESED - TRIBHARZ
EHREYERZRPNO R R ENFEE (L
HEMAGERMEZZ2RABBWER

hotel properties and film studio are determined (in UERBBEAAEFERBANEHEEES
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs ASEBENAEEEEMO>EN AR ERBR(E
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which —WMEFE=H) -
the fair value measurements are categorised (Level
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the key inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.
Significant
Fair value unobservable
Element hierarchy Valuation techniques and key inputs inputs Range/Amount Sensitivity
EXTIAHREHA
b ARERES HERARIEGANRE B H#E/ &8 HEE
Hotel properties  Level 3 Direct comparison method by assuming Discounts on quality -10% to 10% The higher the
sales transactions as available in the of properties premiums or
relevant market (i.e. sales transaction discounts, the
price per hotel room) higher or lower the
fair values
BENE E=R BREBE BREWUTSLEHERS (A HUHNFEZNFTE -10%E10% REXMEDS
BRBEERHENHERSE) (
Film studio Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs approach Replacement costs  RMB337,000,000 The higher the costs
(based on current cost of replacement of constructions of constructions,
of the improvements, less allowance for on the land the higher the fair
physical deterioration and all relevant values
forms of obsolescence and optimisation)
TR E=R FEEERAZ(ERNELEANEERS . T IERNEE ARMS37,000000r BERADR
BREBBRR-—EBRFANKRERE AR RRERD

LR R)

Market approach (based on the comparable
accommodation value sq.ft. observed
from the market)

MHEERETSBERAENATLREEN
BYRRERE)

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$9,080,000 (2015:
approximately HK$10,128,000).

174

Discounts on quality
of properties

HMERERNNE

-10% to 10%

-10% £10%

The higher the
discounts, the lower
the fair values

FEAE AAERE

RBEHER AEEREREBAEFAENY
B 2 BR % (E 4 59,080,000 T (—ZF —
T : 4910,128,0005 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s properties interests

operating leases to earn

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

16.

held under

rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

AN

A

S 75 i 3 B

2-F—

RETZA=1+—HILEFEE

BEWE

AEBERRBESRERERREMREL

ANEN

EHERANMERERA O EEL
B -WAEAREMEIBRARK -

=8

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Fair value ARE
At 1 January R—H—H 32,200 —
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value REZAERN AL E
recognised in profit or loss #n O ) 558 1,500 (900)
Transfer from property, plant and HEBEAYE  BERKE
equipment - 33,100
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 33,700 32,200
Changes in unrealised gain/(loss) on  AREEF ABHF B
revaluation of investment properties & E&EMERERUWZ
for the year included in profit or loss (& 18) &) & 1,500 (900)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the
respective date by RHL.

The fair value was determined was derived using
the direct comparison approach based on price
information of comparable properties is made.
Comparable properties of similar size, character and
location are analysed and carefully weighted against
all the respective advantages and disadvantages of
each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of capital values.

FREARBVENAREAE

AEBNREDER _T—RER_F—
FHZA=T—-BHNAAEREHKMNT

ANVIN

ERRAHETZHEZER -

il
S

AN

DA 1A T IR A L B S AR R
BERELEAMT - REENEZMEEHE
B R SR - B S BBl 2 T A b
BMERTANRT@EE - A HEEER
TRFLE -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties (Continueq)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2016 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. &M% (&)

FRERBVENLREAEE)

R-E—RNFE+-A=+—H8 Hr&E@Ez&
EMERBEBEARBEEBRAZERNT

Properties located in Hong Kong i 74 & & &9 2%

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2015 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—# £-8 E=8H et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TERT THET
- 33,700 - 33,700

R-B-—RAE+-A=+—HB FTEEZK
BMERERAAERBRZERDMT

Properties located in Hong Kong 7 A & & 892

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the
Group’s investment properties have been pledged
to secure the bank overdrafts granted to the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, certain
leasehold land and buildings included in property,
plant and equipment were transferred to investment
properties.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— B E=H #Et
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
AT FAT FAET AT
— 32,200 — 32,200

RZBE-—RERZZE-RF+-RA=+—H"
AEBEMBREMECBIMEAEEER 2
RITBEX BT RBE_T-—HFE+_A
=t HLEFE WX BEARBEAZE
THELHERBFEREREDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31

17. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS

AN

A

S 75 i 3 B

2-F—

December 2016 & NFE+ZRA=+—HLFE

17. #AF L S

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T F& T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: SR EBHZ DT :
Non-current asset FRBEE 470,061 472,345
18. INTANGIBLE ASSET 18. BB & &
Licence
HK$’000
FHET
COST 5% 3
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—BMEH —
Acquisition through acquisition of a subsidiary % i g B — & i 8 2 &) U B8 (B 7+ 46)
(note 46) 1,079
Balance at 31 December 2015, RZE—HF+=—A=+—8"
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 —E-RXNF-A—BERZZE—XRF
TZA=+—HH#&R 1,079
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
Balance at 31 December 2016 NR-EB—XE+-B=+—H0E% 1,079
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAFF+ZA=+T—H&E# 1,079

The licence represents the licence plate which
enable the vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in
both PRC and Hong Kong. The licence is renewable
every year at minimal cost. The directors are of the
opinion that the Group would renew the licence
continuously and has the ability to do so.

The licence is considered by the management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is
expected to generate economic benefit to the Group
indefinitely. The licence will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that it may be impaired.

REAFERNPEEFTEMUMITERER
BHcPBEE - BREFANREKNAE
B EEZARAEERKEEBMRA AR
NBEEEBERR -

AEBEEEERRERAERERFY -
7% T8 R AR PTE TR HA 2 K 5 B 7 2R S A
e MRTEEE  RIFETERFHET
RBR - A A SFEREFRBRE
AT RE B R E R E TTRE R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

2% —

RNETZA=+—BLLFE

19. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

December 2016 are set out as follows:

19. ME 2w 51 3

ARRR-BE-—RETZA=1T—HOWBE
NEFFEWMT

Proportion of nominal

Forms of Place of Issued and fully paid value of issued capital/
business incorporation or share capital/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary structure registration capital/paid-up capital by the Company Principal activities
HMAEIRE ERTRERKRE/ AAEMBEBRTRE
WEASEHE ¥BRERL SEMRE aMEE/BEHEX HE/BRERLH EEEH
2016 2015
—E-RE| T-nF
National Arts Entertainment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of management
(“NA Entertainment”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) services to artistes in
Hong Kong
BEREBERLA(HERE] AV BB %38 1:1,500,0007% 7T 100% 100% EEEREARGERRYE
(F#8) (%)
National Arts Entertainment Holdings  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
Limited Islands US$192,308 (direct) (direct) Kong
BEREZRERAF BRI AvA KBERES i %192,308% T 100% 100% E&BETREEZER
(E#) (E#)
National Arts Production & Promotions  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100% Provision of promotional
Limited (indirect) (indirect) performance services in
Hong Kong
BERERERERAR Rligpava BB EERUET 100% 100% 74 78 IR Gt B ORI AR 7
(1 #8) (%)
National Arts Films Production Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of distribution of
HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) film in Hong Kong
BEYRUEFRAF BRI AvA Bk L 21,500,000/ 1T 100% 100% EEBRERETEY
(R #) (%)
Art Tour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Property investment in
HK$10,000 (direct) (direct)  Hong Kong
HEERAR iz ava e L@ %10,000% T 100% 100% EEBETMERE
(E#) (E%)
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
Islands (direct) (direct) Kong
kligp A EBERES EERIET 100% 100% & BETREZR
(E#) (E%)
Head Return Limited (‘HRL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)  Kong
BRERVA(ER] il BB L@ik100% T 100% 100% & BETREER
(i) (%)
Expand Pacific Limited (“EPL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect) Kong
REFREBERARTATFAR]) SR 2 L@ AR1007% T 100% 100% EEBETREER
() (%)
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Co., Ltd* Wholly foreign PRC Paid-up capital of 100% 100% Hotel operation in the PRC
owned US$36,351,778 (indirect) (indirect)
enterprise
(“WFOE")
BUTEZBEFRAR NEBERE hE B ER36,351778% T 100% 100% 7 F B4 2 B &
GE) (%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

19. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 19. Wit & 2~ vl 5 3% (#)

(Continued)
Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of Issued and fully paid value of issued capital/
business incorporation or share capital/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary structure registration capital/paid-up capital by the Company  Principal activities
AMmRIRE  ERTRGERET EATMBERTRE
WEASAE (BREEL  SERE H#MmER EHEF HE/ERERLN FEEH
2016 2015
ZE-RE|ZT-1%
Foshanshi Huishoujingqu Kai Fa WFOE PRC Paid-up capital of 100% 100% Property development and
Co., Ltd* US$37,188,461 (indirect) (indirect) operation of film studio
and theme park in the
PRC
FILTEERRHBEERAR NEBERR E EHEARS7188461% T 100% 100% EFEERNEREETER
(R #) (F#%) HREELE
Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Co., Ltd* Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Retailing of souvenirs in the
enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect) PRC
BLTHRHEEEERAA RELE FEl & AR A R #100,0007T 100% 100% EPETEL M
(R #) (%)
Foshanshi Yufu Food & Beverage Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Light refreshment
Co., Ltd* enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect) restaurant in the PRC
BUTHFRRERAF NERE FE &R AR®100,0007T 100% 100% RHPEHEEREE
(R #) (%)
National Arts Reputation SZ consulting WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Inactive
Co., Ltd* RMB500,000 (indirect) (indirect)
—BEEREZARINDERRA  NEBELE FE & AR AR #500,0007 100% 100% EEEH
(i) (%)
Foshanshi National Arts Hotel Co., Ltd* WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Inactive
RMB25,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
FUTEEBEERAA NEBEELR FE AMERARS 100% 100% E|EH
25,000,0007T (%) (F#&)
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
HK$150 (indirect) (indirect) Kong
EUBERAF AUl AV B 3B k15078 T 100% 100% E&BETREER
(R #) (%)
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)  Kong
BEBERAF BRI AvA B 3B IR1007% T 100% 100% E&EBETREER
(R #) (FE#)
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 100% 100% Property investment in
(direct) (direct) Hong Kong
BREEERAF Bz B imR207 T 100% 100% EEBETNERE
(E#) (E%)
National Arts Film Shooting Base Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Inactive
Management Company Limited HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
HEYRANERFRAA ERLIDAA A L@ R1007E T 100% 100% ZEXB
([ #) (%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 19. Bt & 2\l 5 % ()

(Continued)
Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of Issued and fully paid value of issued capital/
business incorporation or share capital/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary structure registration capital/paid-up capital by the Company  Principal activities
HEMAIRE ERTRARKRES EATMBERTRE
WEASAE EBREREL SRR HMEx/ BEHEF HE/BRERLH FEEH
2016 2015
“E-R"E| ZT-8F
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of travel related
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect)  products
BEREFRARF at Mk 2 EE %38 %500,0007% 7T 100% 100% REKERBER
(R #%) (%)
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
Islands (direct) (direct) Kong
HHEEFRAA ERligpava EBERES EERki1ET 100% 100% E&BETREER
(E#) (B#)
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
Islands (direct) (direct) Kong
BEZRERAA Rligpava EBERES ERkiET 100% 100% E&BETREZR
(E#) (E%)
Wealth Day Enterprises Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
Islands (direct) (direct) Kong
EECEERAR ligpava ERARES ERRk1ET 100% 100% E&BETREZR
(E#) (E%)
Lux Unicorn Limited (“Lux Unicorn”)  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
(indirect) (indirect) Kong
BEERAR (&) il EE T AR1007E T 100% 100% EEBETREER
(i) (%)
In Industrial Company Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding in Hong
(“In Industrial”) (indirect) (indirect) Kong
TRAEXERAA(TAEE)) Ak L Bt T@EBRIBT 100% 100% EEBETREEZER
(R #%) (%)
NA Sing Sing Entertainment Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 51% Provision of event
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect)  coordination services
BEREBRAA Al EE %38 %500,0007% T 51% 51% REEZHRERS
(1 #8) ()
Foshanshi National Arts Travel Co., Ltd* WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100% — Inactive
RMB500,000 (indirect)
HUTHEERREFRAR NEBELE hE AMERARY 100% - EEXH
500,0007T ()
* For identification only * EHE
Note: B 5
None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed securities RIPEER - BEMNBRARERHTEALMES -
at the end of the reporting period. The Group had no HE T REN_ZT—AHF+-_A=1+—HItHF
subsidiaries which have materials non-controlling interests B oAEETVENBARBEEE AFFIERER -

for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT IN AN 20. B8 A El B R
ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group’s investment in an associate are AEBRBERARNKEFBOT:
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T F& T
Unlisted investment, at cost FLEMIRE - HHRAE 375 375
Share of post-acquisition loss and G 1% B 1R N Bt
other comprehensive income, net of 2@ A - B2 UK
dividends received % & (262) (119)
113 256

JiE]

BEADRESHROFENT

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the PiNES
reporting period are as follows:

Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights
Name of Entity incorporation  of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
REERAED
BKREH HAMBIER EEEHBE kL 13-4 FREHANRFELY ZEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-RE| —T-1fF| Z¥F-"E| —T-1F

Faithful Arts Entertainment and Culture Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 37.5% 37.5% 37.5% 37.56% Provision of creative multimedia
(indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect) services and acting as
events organiser
BEREXCERAR BB B (Bi#&) (A% (Bi#) (B REABSHERBRETED
agE
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ASSOCIATE (continuea)

Summarised financial information of the associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

The associate is accounted for using the equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT IN AN

20. B E nwl & (#)

BEADNMBEARE

BRAASEBREARNMBEERBESRIR
TX - UTHBERB BB Z AARESE
BUBRERNRENPBEREATINE
o

BERTNBEHRAMBHREAEBERE

method in these consolidated financial statements. ABR ©
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET-RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FAETT
Current assets mENE E 84 753
Non-current assets EREBEE 216 289
Current liabilities mEEE — 359
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHIEAR 84 568
Current financial liabilities (excluding R & aE (T EIEE
trade and other payables and T8 5 5/ I8 I HAth JE
provisions) I KR E) — —
Non-current financial liabilities n@emasE(TeiE
(excluding trade and other payables — JE{T & 5 718 K& H b &
and provisions) TSR LA K B f5) — —
Revenue A 971 1,358
Loss for the year REEEE (382) (318)
Other comprehensive income for the N4 E H 2 E I A
year - —
Total comprehensive expense for the A€ 2 X %58
year (382) (318)
Dividends received from the associate 7<% & (552 A & W ELHY
during the year & 2 - —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B 5 R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21 B RE
VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture AEBEGELERENFBOT:
are as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Unlisted investment, at cost FEEMEE LK AE 11,400 11,400
Share of post-acquisition loss and G 1% B 1R N Bt
other comprehensive income, net of 2@ A - B2 UK
dividends received % & (4,380) (3,476)
7,020 7,924
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the REBAEPERRESHRNFBOT:
reporting period are as follows:
Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights
Name of Entity incorporation  of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
FEARED
Bzl HAMBIER EBEEBEY FHEERLLE AREABENREELY ZEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-RE| —T-1fF| Z¥-RE| —T-IF

Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi Management Co., Ltd* PRC PRC 60% 60% 60% 60% Cinema Operation
(indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect)

GETHEYRBEERARARA FE FE (F ) (M%) (F ) (M%) BEE¥KR

* For identification only * ERET %l
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=—F

NET-—A=1T—HLEFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE B
VENTURE (continued)

Summarised financial information of the joint RELEMBEHBE

venture

Summarised financial respect of BRAEBEECENTBERMEHIIRN
the Group’s joint venture is set out below. The TX e ATHBEERMEREGELERESR
summarised financial information below represents B BEREEAGROVERRATHS
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial ¥ o

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity EETERUFEEVBREASAEZR
method in these consolidated financial statements. ABR ©
2016 2015
—T—RE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Current assets BN E E 2,605 5,187
Non-current assets ERBEE 14,137 16,526
Current liabilities mEEE 5,836 8,410
Non-current liabilities JEREBAE - —
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFHIAR 644 3,866
Current financial liabilities (excluding #AE @M EBE (TBEE
trade and other payables and 8 558 K Hh fE A
provisions) FRIBIA R B ) — —
Non-current financial liabilities EnEeraE(TeR
(excluding trade and other payables — FEft+Z 5 ZE & Hith
and provisions) JE P SRIE LA K B 4) - —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 B T B ¥R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#EZ—-%

—RETZA=T—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE B
VENTURE (continued)
Summarised financial information of the joint ELEMBENMEZ
venture (Continueq)
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T T T
Revenue A 8,575 11,321
Loss for the year AEEEE (1,507) (697)
Other comprehensive income for the N4 & E b 2 U A
year - —
Total comprehensive expense REETEHAZ B
for the year (1,507) (697)
Dividends received from RFEEBEE D EWED
the joint venture during the year @S - —
The above loss for the year include  Fit ARFEEEBEIEUAT
the following: HE:
Depreciation and amortisation WER#H (157) (176)
Interest income FEMK A 5 7
Interest expense B - —
Income tax expense P15 81 il 2 (31) (41)

The amount due from a joint venture was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 22, Al BB

INVESTMENT

2016 2015

—E—-RE —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T#T FHET

Unlisted investment, at cost JELEMEE - KA 5,000 5,000

Addition NE 250 —

5,250 5,000

The above unlisted investment represents investment
in unlisted equity securities issued by a limited
liability company incorporate in the British Virgin
Islands. The investment is measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable that the directors
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

PR ETREEA -—HARNEBERARES

MK 2 BRAR EITZ AR LT RAES
RIBEHR - ZAREUKARRER £
FEREERR/EAAEBTENSENE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

/ 74
23. FILM PRODUCTS AND 23. B EMBREREZE W
FILM PRODUCTION IN
PROGRESS
Films
Film production
products in progress Total
ENEY
EYEm Em @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TERT
Cost: 7% NH
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-—RF-A—HNEH 99,892 - 99,892
Additions NE - 3,295 3,295
Transfer to film products HRZEYEMD 3,295 (3,295) -
Balance at 31 December 2015 and R-Z—FHF+-A=+—HxR
1 January 2016 —E-RNF-A—HNEH 103,187 - 103,187
Additions NE - 3,630 3,630
Balance at 31 December 2016 NR-E—7"E+-A=+-—BH&E 103,187 3,630 106,817
Accumulated amortisation and RitEERBERE:
impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZE—hAF—A—HBO&EH 87,349 - 87,349
Amortisation of film products BYERBHE 5,093 - 5,093
Balance at 31 December 2015 and RZ-Z—FAF+-A=+—HxK
1 January 2016 “E-RNEF-A—HNEH 92,442 - 92,442
Amortisation of film products BEYEDEHE 10,745 - 10,745
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B—RE+=-BA=+-—BH&H 103,187 - 103,187
CARRYING AMOUNTS IR (B
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B—AET-A=+—BHH&E - 3,630 3,630
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+A=+—BmM&E# 10,745 - 10,745
Note: B 5

Amortisation charge of approximately HK$10,745,000
(2015: approximately HK$5,093,000) with respect to fim
products has been included in cost of film production
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Amortisation of film products is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their
residual values over the estimated useful lines on a straight-
line basis. The principal useful lives are one year to three
years.

BHRAEYERMEHE T 4107450008 T (=ZF
—AF 45,098,000/ L) Bt ARG IEE R A
PHBRAXRTHNEZRIERAK - BYE DHHMN
B ARG AIE B MO A A E R E T
HEEFE FEAFERAFHAEZE=F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. |EBE BB B

24. INVESTMENTS IN FILMS/
DRAMAS PRODUCTION

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZTI%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT FAET
Investments in flms/dramas KEEY BB 81
production 6,461 —
Note: B 5

The amount represents investments in licensed production
houses for co-financing the production of films and/or
dramas. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements entered into between the Group and the
production houses whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of the related films and/or
dramas.

ZeBEREFEEERT  UREXR LA
BIZUEBATE - 25 REMAEEELEQR
S ARBEAE  REBERE  AREHEEKR
RETHBERBEmEENH R -

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. W " 5w H
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T FHET
Trade receivables FEWE 5K IA 6,693 3,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # %= —

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group generally allows a credit period from
30 to 90 days (2015: 30 to 90 days) to its trade
customers. The following is the ageing analysis of

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

—ARE+TZA=1T-RALFE

25. TEW ™ 5wk (&)
AEERMHEEGRFPIREMEESR MK A30

HZQ0H(ZZ—Hh% : 30BE90R) - EWE
SREMBRRZRREB REZMRAEHN

trade receivables, net of allowances for bad and AR D AT T -
doubtful debts, presented based on invoice date:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
0 to 60 days 0%60H 2,881 1,494
61 to 90 days 61290H 144 871
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 1,123 660
Over 180 days B 8180 A 2,545 415
6,693 3,440
At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of RZZF—RF+ZA=+—8  EREBESRIE
approximately HK$3,025,000 (2015: approximately #93,025,0007% T (= F — A F : £92,365,000
HK$2,365,000) were neither past due nor impaired. BTN R A B W EIRE - %S4SRy

These balances related to certain customers whom
there was no recent history of default.

Included in the balances are debtors with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$3,668,000 (2015:
approximately HK$1,075,000) which were past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers and the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

MY BEAMERLENETERPERH -

EHRP TR IEEREE A 43,668,000 T (=
T —F4F 1 £91,075,00058 7T ) B JIE Uk 50 78 74 3R
SHE®E K‘Eljiﬂi%sifr,%ﬁ%fﬂwa
EiEEE CHOBETRBRENERESR
BHARETREE MEERAEBARZERRP
NEEBEZVESEAEH  ZSELTNER
AR 2 HRE - BE AR %S L ERE B
B AEBYTERZSEHERETR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. W E 5 3 JH (&)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
The following is the ageing of trade receivables which RIEF B @R RBENEKE SR
are past due but not impaired based on the due BRI BRE AT
date:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T T
1 to 90 days 1£90H 1,123 660
Over 90 days B #90H 2,545 415
3,668 1,075
26. INVENTORIES 26. i &
2016 2015
—B—RE —E—AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET F& T
Food and beverage BN 1,022 893
Merchandise P4 o 912 1,045
General operating supplies and others — & &£ & W& K HAb 480 442
2,414 2,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

27. T KIE ~ 3% 4 B 3 fth W
K JH

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT FAET
Non-current assets EFHESE
Other receivable (note (i) Hh pE Uk SR I8 (B 5E ) 88,651 98,492
Deposits (note (i) % & (MY 3% (i) 4,900 1,250
93,551 99,742
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TE 8 23,314 25,977
Rental deposits HERS 2,994 2,495
Other deposits Hiie 832 1,366
Deposits paid to suppliers BENHERES 8,680 —
Other receivables H {th B W 5k 18 19,974 7,985
55,794 37,823
149,345 137,565
Notes: B aE

(i

*

The other receivable represents the amount due
from the local government company is repayable in
40 years and secured by the Wong Tai Sin Temple
located in Xigiao Mountain in Foshan City, the PRC.
The Group and the local government company
mutually agreed that interest at 6.55% per annum of
People’s Bank of China Benchmark Interest Rates,
will not be accrued until Wong Tai Sin Temple, record
a monthly turnover of above RMB100,000 for six
consecutive months. The amount is denominated in
RMB.

Included in the balances of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was deposit of RMB3,570,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,651,000) in related a proposed
acquisition of the 60% equity interest of Ll
MEEBYEF AR AR (Foshan City Yi Mei
Wedding Photography Limited*) in a consideration
of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,931,000).

for identification only

*

H fth W TR IE 45 B Wt 75 BUR A B B9 ROE
B3 B /R40%F - W AR B G L B 1L
EAMRAER - REEEMTTBF A A
BECEEAMIANEEREANTAKLE
BPARRARBI0ETTH - B ZHE
ARBITOEEN K Z6.66%FFEEE -
ZRBEAAREEE -

PEAAERAR_TE—RE+_A=1+—
AZHERBDEEZHSEBRBIEARE
3,570,0007T 2 % & (18 & M 493,651,000/
TZEE) SREZWERLTEXEY
BYABR AR Z60%EE  REAARE
8,000,0007T (18 & 74 478,931,000/ 7T.) °

EXAE= %]
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. CASH AND BANK

29.

BALANCES/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks
and in hand and bank overdrafts.

Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates
based on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank
overdrafts carrying interest at market rate which
range from 0.75% per annum below HKD Prime Rate
to 1% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered
Rate (2015: range from 0.75% per annum below
HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum over Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate).

At 31 December 2016, included in cash and
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$1,967,000 (2015: approximately HK$2,393,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and on hands,
which are not freely convertible into other currencies.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit
periods from 30 to 60 days (2015: 30 to 60 days).

28. Bl & R MATHi 6 RITE X

REeLREFEBEBRARRITLFAREIA
MRITEX -

RITR ST RO BIEER T RBITERF
EMERNFEEERFE - BITEI Z2FF=E
BB THREBFNEF075%EE BRT
AEFEN% (CE—RE: NRETRE
BHAERR0.75% EFERITRIZEITRE I11%) &Y
MG FEETE -

RZB-—RE+ZA=1+—H ARENES
EBEE&FEEERBNARETERERR
BERTESHEHRITHRITERLTFERE
#11,967,00078 7T (= F — F F : 72,393,000
BIL) c ARBAAEBABMAHMER -

29. WA ¥ 5wk A

AEBEREEMERR FI0EZ=60H(ZF —
AF :30HE60R)EEH - ERNESFIER

The following is the ageing analysis of trade payables WMEANERERITOT:
at the reporting date:

2016 2015
—F—-RE —E—A0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
0 to 30 days 0Z230H 934 635
31 to 60 days 31260H 224 193
61 to 90 days 61£90H 164 39
91 to 180 days 91£180H 79 253
Over 180 days HH#180H 445 59
1,846 1,179
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND 30. I fi B A 5k JH & RE 5T E R
ACCRUALS
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT T T
Current liabilities ok =K
Accruals FEET & A 98,198 62,444
Receipts in advance SEL & ] 5,519 217
Other payables H h & < 5018 55,303 62,556
159,020 125,217
Non-current liabilities EFHER
Other payables H b B OB 24,236 26,909
183,256 152,126
LOAN FROM A RELATED 31. — [l BH Bk 2 B B9 B 5k
COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, loan
from a related company represented short-term
interest bearing loans granted to NA Entertainment
by First Credit Limited (“First Credit”), of which Mr.
Sin, a non-executive director of the Company, has
significant influence. The loan is interest bearing at
11% per annum. The loan was fully repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

REBE-T—RAF+-A=+—HALFERN "
—REBARNERRHARBFERITES
EEREHEBEAZENNE - ERANBE
RoR(E—ERDMETRBREENEHM
BER - ZERFHNEB11%  ERERNE
EZT-R"E+ZA=Z+—BLEFERHKE
= o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. LOANS FROM

32. Jik wHy B K

SHAREHOLDERS
2016 2015
—E—RE —T-hE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Current liabilities REA&RE
Mr. Sin (note (a)) B (3 (@) - 102,000
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong BCHEETEEED
(“Mr. Tsang”) (note (b)) (Bt 3% (b)) 873 —
Mr. Tse Young Lai FmBEETHEED
(“Mr. Tse”) (note (c)) (M 3% (c) 10,000 5,000
10,873 107,000
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Mr. Sin (note (a)) 7S A M R (@) 413,510 17,500
Ms. Law (note (d)) 7 2+ (M 3E () 35,661 —
Mr. Tse (note (o)) EibeACiEEd)) - 15,000
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (“Mr. Yiu") (note (e)) Bk MmISE 4 (THkE 4 1)
(P 5% (e)) 2,300 —
451,471 32,500

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

32. LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

32. e Wiy Bk (&)

The loans from shareholders are repayable as BRROERERUTHRRER
follows:
2016 2015
—B—RE —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Carrying amount repayable: ARATHRAE R 2R
[ERER
Within one year —F R 10,873 107,000
More than one year, but not —FUALETEAMR
exceeding two years 179,961 20,000
More than two years, but not more  FRFELA FEREBBR
than five years 271,510 12,500
462,344 139,500

Notes:

The loans are unsecured. The loan amounting
HK$40,000,000 included in the loans from
Mr. Sin is interest-free and is repayable within
two years. Except for the abovementioned
loan, the loans from Mr. Sin bear interest
ranging from 6.00% to 15.00% per annum
and are repayable within three years. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the loan
amounting HK$20,000,000 is freely transfer
and or assign all or any part of the loan and
the rights, interest and benefit of Mr. Sin
hereunder to any person.

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at
5.00% per annum (2015: nil) and is repayable
within one year.

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at
12.00% per annum (2015: from 10.00% to
12.00%) and is repayable within one year.

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at
5.00% per annum (2015: nil) and is repayable
within two years.

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at
11.75% per annum (2015: nil) and is repayable
within two years.

B =E

&%Amﬁﬁﬁ°xéﬁ%$m§m
B8 2 A $140,000,0008 T E 3k A%
BENBRRENESE HEXHLE
FON - REE R ENEZRIEN T6.00%
§15.00%E’J¢W+qu,%'\&;ﬁﬁ(\fiW

BE HE_Z—XRFT+-_A=1+—H
IEFfE - BLE A 220,000,000 7T

ATEMEBEN  REREREHRE
AEDUEERERETZHERN - H
BEBMFEMAL -

% B SRR N 425.00% 1) F 7 R 5B
(ZE—AF B)RAR-FRNEE -

ZEFE I N 1%12.00% B F F R 5
( T —F14F : {110.00% Z=12.00%) &
BN —FANEE -

é B AR AR R F ) #5.00% (=
ﬂii B)GFRRARMFAE

ﬁﬂa MH

ZEFEEENIZ 1. 75%NEFRTE
(ZE—AF E)RARMFEREE -
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RETZA=+—HLFE

.

33. BORROWINGS 33. 5 &
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE—h%¥
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F# T
Current liabilities REARE
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— Fixed rate (note (a)) — & B (M 5E(@) 16,745 —
— Floating rate (note (b)) — FE (M) 7,500 8,100
24,245 8,100
Other borrowings — unsecured HmfEE — KR
(note (c)) (M 5E () 107,245 177,842
131,490 185,942
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Other borrowings — unsecured HtfEE — &EM
(note (c)) (P 5% (c)) 48,048 83,219
179,538 269,161
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

33. i & =)

AEBBERRATHRAEE:

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Carrying amount repayable: BARUATHRAEE Z
BRTE (A -

On demand (note (d)) & Z 5k (Kt 7E () - 127,292
Within one year —FR 131,490 58,650

More than one year, —F N BT HBBAMRF
but not exceeding two years 48,048 83,219
179,538 269,161

Notes:

The fixed rate bank borrowing of the Group is
secured by the personal guarantee executed by
a director of the Company and bears interest at
17.40% per annum. The fixed rate borrowing is
denominated in RMB.

The floating rate bank borrowing of the Group is
secured by the Group’s investment properties (Note
16) and bears interest at 2.75% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (2015: at 2.75%
per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate).
The floating rate bank borrowing is denominated in
HKS.

The other borrowings are unsecured and bear
interest ranging from 4.00% to 15.00% per annum
(2015: from 4.00% to 15.00% per annum). The
other borrowings are repayable within one year
to two years (2015: within two years). Included
in other borrowings is amount of approximately
HK$48,048,000 due to Mr. Chow Kai Weng, the
director of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the other borrowings amounting approximately
HK$127,292,000 were due on 31 December 2015.
Such other borrowings were fully settled on 19
February 2016.

BT

AEBESRITEEAARREERIN
18N B2 R 48R [ 4217.40% B9 F A 58 -
EREENARKEE -

AEEZBHRITEERASERE DS (W
1) MR RIEE B RITRAER B IN2.75%
WEMNR(CE-—AF - FBERITRERLS
Mm275% M EFEFE)FTE - EEBEUAR
BatE - FEIEBBEEUBITAE -

HhfE B AEERRIZN T4.00%E15.00%
HNEFEFB(ZE—RF M T4.00% =
15.00% M FFIK) - EMEEER—FEW
FRNEECT—RAF AWMEA) - HitbfE
BREENAARESAMELENTE
#948,048,0005 JT °

HE-Z-—HAF+-_A=+—RALFE H
M E4127,292,0008 TR T —HF+=
A=+—H3H - EBEHEMBEEER=F—
NEZATNEEBEEN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. W % ML R B

34. FINANCE LEASE
OBLIGATION

Future finance lease payments arising from the

B8 2 41 8 7L O 2 R o SRR R

leasing of film studio and motor vehicle are due as ™~
follows:
Minimum
lease Present
payment Interest value
mEHEE
[ EN B HE
2016 2016 2016
ZE—RE ZF—-RE ZF—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TH&ET
Not later than one year TER—F 4,802 1,766 3,036
Later than one year BR—FETERESF
but not later than five years 7,495 6,997 498
Later than five years BRAF 60,960 41,088 19,872
Balance at 31 December 2016 MZE—RF
TZA=t+—BZ#&& 73,257 49,851 23,406
2015 2015 2015
—T—hF —ZE—HF ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT
Not later than one year TERN—F 7,845 1,891 5,954
Later than one year BR—FETERESF
but not later than five years 8,074 7,485 589
Later than five years BRAF 57,282 42,159 15,123
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RHF
TZRA=T—BZz&H® 783,201 51,5635 21,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCE LEASE
OBLIGATION (continued)

The present values of future lease payments are

34 MHEME & #)

ARBEENKOBREDINR

analysed as:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET F& T
Current liabilities mEAaE 3,036 5,954
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 20,370 15,712
23,406 21,666

Finance lease obligation that are denominated in the

NEREEERNEERTENTEEE X

functional currencies of the relevant group entities EHEH W
are set out below:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
RMB AR 23,023 21,187
HK$ BT 383 479
23,406 21,666
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#
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35. BONDS

2013 Bonds

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued the
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$78,775,000 (the “2013 Bonds”) at par value
in accordance with the conditional placing and
underwriting agreement dated 16 April 2013 entered
into between the Company and an independent
placing agent. The 2013 Bonds have a maturity of
2 years from the date of issue and bear coupon
interest at 7.5% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. A default rate of 12%
per annum will be charged on any sum due and
payable under the 2013 Bonds from the due date to
the date of actual payment in full. The 2013 Bonds
were denominated in HKS.

In addition, same amount of unlisted warrants (the
“Warrants”) were issued (for no additional payment)
to the bondholders who are entitled to subscribe
in aggregate up to HK$78,775,000 for the warrant
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.115 per
warrant share within 2 years from the date of issue of
the Warrants. As a result of the share consolidation
announced by the Company on 7 July 2014 and
the rights issue announced by the Company on
4 August 2014 and in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Warrants, adjustment to the
subscription price of the Warrants from HK$0.115 per
warrant share to HK$1.091 per warrant share has
become effective.

The Warrants are detachable from the 2013 Bonds
and the Warrants and the 2013 Bonds can be
transferred separately in whole or in part in minimum
amount of HK$575,000 or integral multiples thereof.
The 2013 Bonds was fully repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

New Issued Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company issued the bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$242,678,000 (2015:
HK$303,000,000) at par value in accordance
with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement entered into between the Company and
the independent placing agent. The Bonds have a
maturity from 1 year to 8 years (2015: from 1 year
to 7 years) from the date of issue and bear coupon
interest ranging from 4.66% to 12.00% per annum
(2015: from 4.00% to 11.00% per annum), accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. A default rate
ranging from 4.66% to 12.00% per annum (2015:
from 4.00% to 11.00%) will be charged on any sum
due and payable under the Bonds from the due date
to the date of actual payment in full. The Bonds were
denominated in HKS.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

35.

&z
=

R-IZE—=FRA-+=0 " AQaREAQ
AE— B YRERER-_SE—=FNWA+
NIV MBGEHEEERRIERE KEE
%ﬁ$$ %%mrmmm%ﬁ%@%@:
iﬁﬁﬁ =FEHFREITEE
#ﬁiﬂ% tﬁ R ABT75% 0 T BEH
B U ASFERPRINAARMGE - fHEKEE
YNZE—=FEFNTWIHEMSEE
ARINBAZTER2EINTEHRERTF12%
MEYNFEZFAFE - ZF—=FFFUE
JCEHE ©

WS BEMESFHAARTHRRENI L

R E (R IR (B AR
ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬂ CETTR AR RS H H R AT R

&%%Et&wk%‘%6mw%mw
ﬁ%:.,\E%78,775,000,%7cmwﬁx%* & 17
ARAQARR-_E—NELB+ARQ mz&
DAEMEARFTR_ZT—MNEN/IAR %
R ARIRIE R IE B RIS R
BEMSHRIAREZERDOISETLARAE
HXE/LAHX*%‘ HX{/J}1 091/%7EE;%%$5_& ©

RBREBAIR T —=FEE5FOE MR
BEER T —=FEHA2BRBD UK
1&@%5575 0B THHEBEFHTUSH

BE —T--FEFEREE
+_ﬂ_+ BIEFERABRERE -

—T—nfF

mETRS

aé Z—XNFE+-_A=+—HULEFE" K

AEIBREARR BB IR ERIBITLNEIE
HRELRBHENE  REEETASBES
242,678,000 7T (= & — 7 4 : 303,000,000
BILWES - ZEEFRBEITEHEH —
ENF(ZE—HF:—E2EF)FE BX
N T HFE466%E12.00% (ZE—FF: FF
4.00%£11.00%) ' M| BB HEAF W ETFIL
HARTNAAAME - MAEITZEESFD
TMEHEMSEE  ERIBEEEE2
M HEIR FF4.66%E12.00%H) (ZZF —
FE  FE4.00%511.00%) & £ F) = X~ F
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

35. BONDS (continued) 35. &% #)
The movement for the period on the Bonds was as AEEANESFNEEMT
follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—AHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Balance at 1 January R—A—HZ#&&#% 273,970 79,946
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITEAEMERIE 242,678 303,000
Transaction cost allocated to the PEEBEHINZS
liability component BN (18,045) (34,390)
Interest expense (note 9) FB X (FF 559) 50,944 10,729
Interest paid during the year FARNENHME (39,744) (6,540)
Repayment during the year FREE (3,000) (78,775)
Balance at 31 December R+-_A=+—HBz&% 506,803 273,970
Carrying amount repayable: BARUTHRAEEZ
BRMEE:
Within one year —FR 61,115 2,073
More than one year but not —F BTN HBBAMRF
exceeding two years 212,325 17,123
More than two years but not MFLA EEBTHEBRF
exceeding five years 134,266 197,255
More than five years HEL + 99,097 57,519
506,803 273,970

The fair value Bonds at 31

December 2016

amounted to approximately HK$607,907,000. The fair
values of the Bonds are calculated using cash flows
discounted at rate on the borrowings rate ranging
from 4.84% to 6.36% per annum and are within level

2 of the fair value hierarchy.

BEBER-_E—XRE+-_R=+—B22irME
49/£607,907,0008 7T - EH 2 AR ETIHA
REEFNEREFEN T4.84%£6.36%3R 237
EREBFAE WIWARAEERE_H -
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202

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB3

On 23 May 2013, the Company issued convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$92,000,000 (“CB3”) at par value in accordance
with the conditional placing and underwriting
agreement dated 16 April 2013 entered into between
the Company and an independent placing agent.
The CB3 has a maturity of 2 years from the date of
issue and bears coupon interest at 7.5% per annum,
accrued daily and payable annually in arrears. A
default rate of 12% per annum will be charged on
any sum due and payable under the CB3 from the
due date to the date of actual payment in full. The
CB3 was denominated in HKS.

The conversion price of the CBS3, subject to
the antidilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.115
per conversion share. As a result of the Share
Consolidation and the Rights Issue and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CB3, adjustment to the conversion price of CB3
from HK$0.115 per conversion share to HK$1.091
per conversion share has become effective. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB3 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$575,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB3
up to and including the date falling on the 7th day
immediately prior to the maturity date.

The Company may redeem the CB3 in whole or in
part (in minimum amount of HK$575,000 or integral
multiples thereof), at the principal amount together
with interests accrued up to the date of redemption
at anytime before maturity. The directors of the
Company considered this early redemption option is
closely related to the host liability component and is
not accounted for separately. CB3 therefore contains
liability and equity components.

The fair value of the liability component of the
CB3 was estimated at the issuance date using an
equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond
with call option. The residual amount (being the
difference between the net proceeds of issuance of
the CB3 and the fair value of the liability component)
is assigned as the equity component and is included
in equity heading convertible bond equity reserve.
The liability component is subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

36. W % )i i %7
E=HTRRES

R-ZZE—=FFA-+=H ARQRIRERK
NEHE—ZBIREREBER_T—=FNA
TRBEAIZHBEGRHESREIERE - E@E
B3 1744 42 %8 /592,000,000 JT B 7] #2 i%
BEH(EHATRBES] - FH T8
BFERETHHBAMFEDY  BFEXRBE
75% M EEBHRF T EASFIRHBARAIMAS
RAFE - MARESINE=R AR ESENT
MEEENSE ARIBHEEER2EX
NBHRZGF12%MENFELSFE - 5
—HE AT R E A A B JTEHE ©

E-HBRBRESFNLBRELESREBRYD
0115 T - AR —MRESEFABMMER -
RN IR A O R IA RAB 1R 5 = # ol # j%
BEZIEREENE SR BRESRNN
BEHFREBEBRM0ISBTLAEEER T
R D1.091B LA LM - BE BRI
EHFETHHEEEE R ESD B
FrHRBREZB)HE F=HrHBKES
RAREEARS R (RIESE B A575000/8 T
S ETEREH AR ERA LB

{/‘\ o

AARAREIHRIE M EEASBEERNE
ZERBHALMESTFE - BER 23k Es
DE WA R E F (FRIE L 5B AE575,000
BT ERTEGER) - ARFEERAZIR
FEDZEERFEAESS>ZIMEHE - 8
TESFAAR BHE=HAIBRRESFES
BERERID -

F-HABRKRESAERO IR ETARA
A RIE g R BE S0 R S W5 H X
HEEAAE- - Rer e BOENHTE =LA
BREFOAERIBFRERELINDA
BERMNEZR) WIEERERD D KA KR
BESBDEFEEETNERZA - BESIHE
BRIZBHKAFTE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB3 (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component of the CB3 was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount
rate of 12.68%. The transaction costs incurred
for the issuance of the CB3 were allocated into
the liability component and the equity component
of approximately HK$5,270,000 and HK$500,000
respectively in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Subsequently, interest expense
on the CB3 is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying effective interest rate
of 16.583%. On initial recognition, the amount of
equity component of CB3 was approximately
HK$7,978,000.

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed
the CB3 with aggregate principal amounts
of approximately HK$19,550,000 by cash at
approximately HK$19,944,000 (being the principal
amount of approximately HK$19,550,000 and
accrued interests of approximately HK$394,000).
A loss on redemption of the CB3 of approximately
HK$2,304,000, which represented the difference
between the redemption price allocated to liability
component of the CB3 and the carrying amount of
the liability component of the CB3 at the redemption
date, has been credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The CB3 was valued
at the redemption date by a qualified professional
valuer. The fair values of the liability component
and the equity component of the redeemed CBS3 at
redemption date were derived by means of the same
method used at issuance date. CB3 was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

36. A % % f& %5 ()

FEmTBRRESE)

RO LS HERE  FE-HaaREFaESH
B A A EIE12.68% K AT IT IR RITE R KE
HEME « BTE =M BRKRESELDN
RBRACIERFT 7 BL B P15 SR IE R EE L)
PEREBEBIRERSD  @BORLNE
5,270,0007% 7T 2 500,000/8 7T » H1E » =
HAJ R E 5 F A EBRF R IEE16.583% N E
BREFEMNEZTL - RYIPHERE - £=
AR &SR I D B EUEE 4 57,978,000
BT e

RZZT—WENA AARNUREH
19,944,000 7T (BN AN 4 %8 919,550,000 7T
N 2t F| B 47394,000%8 7T) ' IREBEE AS
48758 49 /419,550,000/8 ST M 5 = #HE AT 2 IR B
5o BE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLEFE
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% —/N4F#

203



For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition
of remaining equity interests in HRL and EPL,
the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$420,000,000
(“CB4”) on 2 October 2013. The CB4 has a maturity
of 3 years from the date of issue and bears coupon
interest at 4% per annum, accrued daily and payable
annually in arrears. A default rate of 8% per annum
will be charged on any sum due and payable under
the CB4 from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The CB4 was denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB4, subject to
the antidilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.112
per conversion share. As a result of the Share
Consolidation and the Rights Issue and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CB4, adjustment to the conversion price of the CB4
from HK$0.112 per conversion share to HK$1.063
per conversion share has become effective. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB4 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$420,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB4
up to and including the date falling on the 7th day
immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB4 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly)
by way of allotment and issuance of new shares of
the Company at the conversion price on the due
day of the interest payment in lieu of payment by
cash. Such interest conversion arrangement is only
applicable to the 4% per annum interest payment
and is not applicable to the 8% default interest
payment. The Company may redeem the CB4 at any
time prior to the maturity date in whole or any part
(in minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) at the principal amount of such CB4
thereof plus interest accrued thereon up to the actual
date of redemption.

FOHTRRES

ERWEER N K FRREEGIRAEZRD
HARE ARABAIR-_Z—=F+A=-A%
17754 48%8 420,000,000 7T 89 AT I (E 5
(TEEAL AT E S ) UL TR EHFR
BTHHRAZFIE  BEEXRE4% - F
BEEREA T ABFHRARINAAME -
il 7% B 37 15F 28 PO 4t AT #2 B8 (& 5 A0 (T (0] B A
Ne&5 ARIPEEER2HEINBHE
FFESUMELHNEIMHE - WAL AT # AR
BEHEABITEHE -

FUALATRBRESN L BRELSTRERKG
011287 WA —BRESHBAMMER -
AR 1D & OF R A IR DA T2 AR 5 55 DU L A] 2 %
BEH 2GR REHE  FEATREESHE
BERTSRLBEERM0I2BTAESTR
HIBRM1.063B T ELE M - BFE WAL A]
BRESETENEEEEMENE LR
(BEZBE)HE  FEHMATBREESHRE
BA® B (RIKL5EAE420,0008 Tk H 5T
BEZ)AI 2RI EBREK LBEG -

BT BRBEESFNIFEABEREARRZ
FERMEFSHANEREEBRE RETA
NEIF IR G RAE I F B (2 EH)
DREFRSMAR - WABERRLTHIBAR
RERMELI% TN FE R EB8% K E L
B o AN F) A 5 B HA A4 7] B (% 32 S5 O 4t
AR ESNASEERNEEERELRBY
BIEWEFE - BEE 2Pk o B it Al
A% & & (R K £ 5878 A420,0008 T H 5%
BEH) -
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB4 (Continuea)

The CB4 has been valued at the issuance date by
a qualified professional valuer. The fair value of the
liability component of the CB4 was estimated at the
issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond with call option. The residual
amount (being the difference between the fair value
of the CB4 at issuance date and the fair value of the
liability component on initial recognition) is assigned
as the equity component and is included in equity
heading convertible bond equity reserve. The liability
component is subsequently measured at amortised
cost.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount rate
of 15.63%. Subsequently, interest expense on the
CB4 is calculated using the effective interest method
by applying effective interest rate of 16.47%. On
initial recognition, the amount of equity component
of CB4 was approximately HK$120,540,000.

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed
the CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of
approximately HK$215,460,000 by cash at
approximately HK$208,996,000 which Mr. Sin
offered to waive the accrued interest up to the
date of repayment and to provide a discount of 3%
on the principal amount). A loss on redemption of
the CB4 of approximately HK$25,252,000, which
represented the difference between the redemption
price allocated to liability component of the CB4 and
the carrying amount of the liability component of the
CB4 at the redemption date, has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2014. In
June 2016, the Company has early settled the CB4
with aggregate principal amounts of HK$9,869,000,
early settled by the issuance of loan from Mr. Sin
(note 47). A loss on redemption of the CB4 of
approximately HK$193,000, which represented the
difference between the redemption price allocated
to the liability component of the CB4 and the
carrying amount of the liability component of the
CB4 at the redemption date, has been recognised.
The CB4 was valued at the redemption date by a
qualified professional valuer. The fair values of the
liability component and the equity component of the
redeemed CB4 at redemption date were derived by
means of the same method used at issuance date.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, CB4
were fully settled by the issuance of several fixed
borrowings and loans from shareholders (note 47).

36. A % % f& %5 ()

FORTRRES(E)

FEUMABRESFSRBETEHBAERSE
EhEMETHE FORATRRESFEE
MOMAAEDRETARMRKANERBEH
RORBESFNRASH SN FTEITHEE o &
HER(AELMATRRESRETHHRN
RAERBERINNTEREN R RER
Z ) IR AR Ay MRt AR R R B 5 42
mFEOESIAT  c BESOERIZBHK
ZN

R R - SRR RESFEES DY
R A ETIIE15.63% M (EEF LI RITE XK
FIERBME - Hig - B AIREES
R BRI EA16.47THIMBEEAE - AT
BRRIEEFTE - YIS HRE > FHEBLAIRAR
BHMEZRED & B 5120,540,000/8 TC °

RZZE—WFNA A2FUNE €4
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AEf IR REFE MR EAS 3% ITH)
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SHELEEENMAIBRBESEETSRN
BERHHANEEENERSE R —NEX
A ARREELTERRZETRELN
R4 48 5E /59,869,000 JT 2 % /Y 4t AT ¥ A%
B (M 5E47) - BHER BN AT R EH D
5% 3] /&5 18 49193,000/8 7T * HE R DB T 5
Ut AT IS (5 B 20 HY BB o) {8 B4 55 PO 4t
BB EFEESINELASRMNEREEERD
ZF o FOMABRBRESFCRNELRSHHAE
BREEGHBEMETHE CEREMNILA
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ARAEDNEBRETHRMRABNAR S E
EY -HE_Z—ARF+-_A=+—HLF
RO ARREFEBBRTSHEEE
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of Lux
Unicorn Limited as detailed in note 46, the Company
issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 (“CB5”) on 15 April
2015. The CB5 has a maturity of 3 years from the
date of issue and bears coupon interest at 9% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in arrears.
The conversion price of CB5, subject to the anti-
dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion
share. The CB5 was denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 can be
converted in whole or any part (in minimum amount
of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) into
conversion shares from the date of issue of the CB5
up to and including the date falling on the 5th day
immediately prior to the maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly) by
way of allotment and issuance of new shares of the
Company at the conversion price on the due day of
the interest payment in lieu of payment by cash by
giving not less than 7 business days’ written notice
prior to the due date for payment of interest. Such
interest conversion arrangement is only applicable to
the 9% per annum interest payment. The Company
may redeem the CB5 at any time prior to the maturity
date in whole or any part (in minimum amount of
HK$300,000 or an integral multiple thereof) at the
principal amount of such CB5 thereof plus interest
accrued thereon up to the actual date of redemption
by giving to the bond holder not less than 10
business days’ written notice of its intention to make
such redemption.

FAMTRERES

AN FEAGETREM - EARBRB AR AR
HEHRE ARATR-_E—RFENA+H
H 21774 4858 /5300,000,0005% JT HY AT 42 iR
EHF(FERAATRBES] - FRU TR
BEEFENETBHEA=ZFIH SFEXA
9% FIEEHZH Y BEFRBERIHAR
NE - ERAMATBRBREFNLBREAETRY
BARH018HE L WAX —MREFHEA
MR - ERAMAUBBRESFANBITTE-

FRAMATBBESNLREATREAKSG
018 L HEX —RAEMBER - BF A
AR EEZRTREEEZEEHANSE
HH(BEZB) M FRMTRERESNE
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB5 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the
CB5 was calculated using future repayments
discounted at an estimated discount rate of 11.28%
per annum. The residual amount of approximately
HK$46,697,000 (being the difference between the
fair value of the CB5 at issuance date and the fair
value of the liability component on initial recognition)
is assigned as the equity component and is included
in equity heading convertible bond equity reserve.
The liability component is subsequently stated at
fair value, with changes recorded in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

In May and July 2016, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000
were converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares
and 196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company
in total at a conversion price of HK$0.18 each
respectively. In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate
principal amounts of HK$79,800,000 were converted
into 443,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company in
total at a conversion price of HK$0.18 each. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Sin and
five holders of CB5 offered to waive the accrued
interest up to the date of conversion of approximately
HK$12,513,000.

CB5 is due to Mr. Sin. As at 31 December 2016,
the principal amount of CB5 is approximately
HK$105,316,000.

36. A % % f& %5 ()

FAMTRRES (E
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. W] #& It 18 75 (@)
(Continued)
The movement of the liability components of the ERFBERAEREROTRBRESFBELS
convertible bonds recognised in the statement of REEHmT

financial position are as follows:

cB3 CB4 CB5 Total
E=H St SR
MlkRES TRRES TRERES fst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET TR THET

Balance at RZZE—RF—A—HH®

1 January 2015 4 66,382 140,260 — 206,642
Fair value of liability M ERFEELD D

components on initial AR E

recognition - - 283,308 283,308
Effective interest EREF B RS (F5E9)

expenses (note 9) 2,848 17,506 — 20,354
Interest paid during the F R & &

year (4,830) (6,384) (1,514) (12,728)
Fair value changes NREEE — — 19,945 19,945
Converted into ordinary 3 ¥ & @A

shares — — (75,671) (75,671)
Repayment of principle €& A% (64,400) — — (64,400)
Balance at R-ZE—RF

31 December 2015 +=—A=+—8xK

and 1 January 2016 —E-RFE—H—H

B 45 B2 — 151,382 226,068 377,450

Effective interest B A SR = (M 5E9)

expenses (note 9) — 14,290 - 14,290
Early settled by the BARRETES

issuance of loan R & (0 5247()

from shareholder

(note 47(i)) — (9,869) — (9,869)
Interest paid during the FREfF &

year — (302) — (802)
Waiver of interest of BermiREHENF A

convertible bond — — (12,513) (12,513)
Fair value changes NREZE — — 22,200 22,200
Converted into ordinary 3, # /&% @ %

shares — — (115,924) (115,924)
Transfer to interest EEREEMFE

payables — — (9,018) (9,018)
Settled by the issuance EiBEITHMEE R

of other borrowings REARERENE LR

and loans from (B 5E47(i))

shareholders

(note 47(ii) — (155,501) — (155,501)
Balance at R-ZF—RE

31 December 2016 +=-HA=+—B0 4 - — 110,813 110,813
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

37.

36. A % % f& %5 ()

(Continued)
CB3 CB4 CB5 Total
E=H Uk EER
TR ES TTRRES TTRIRES gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E T F#E T F#E T F#E T
Balance at RZF—RE
31 December 2016 T A=t+—B2Z%6
Carrying amount BARUTHRAEEZ
repayable RE{E
More than one year but not — % LA £ {B 78 8 /M F
exceeding two years — — 110,813 110,813
Balance at RZZE—HF
31 December 2015 ToA=+—BHER
Carrying amount ARUTHRANEEREZ
repayable BREE
Within one year R—FR — 151,382 — 151,382
More than one year but not BB — FET BB =F
exceeding three years — — 226,068 226,068
— 151,382 226,068 377,450

The fair values of the liability components CB5 at
31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$110,813,000. The fair values of the liability
components of CB5 are calculated using cash flows
discounted at rate based on the borrowings rate of
4.57% per annum and are within level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

PROMISSORY NOTE

PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the
“PN 1”) at par value in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014
entered into between Elegant Motion Enterprises
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the non-executive
director of the Company. The PN 1 have a maturity
of 3 years from the date of issue and bear coupon
interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and payable
annually in arrears. The PN 1 was denominated in
HKS$.

37.

R-E—RF+-_A=+—HERIATBKE
FAEBEH DA R ELAE110,813,000%8 7T ©
FRMATBRRESAELSNAALETRA
EREEFMENIIRETF457% 0 RHIR
SREFE YIWARAEERNE_H -

7.

7R 5 R

AR R

RZZEBE—REWMA+EB  KRAFBRBEARD
RIEEMBRAR MBS CXERATHEARA
EMITESEAEEMEATI VB A T
FH_A-T-_BAZEEWH  HEEHET
K4 & % /580,000,00008 7T 2 A 2 4 ([
HEE]D AR ZHEARETHRRB =F
FH - ZERRENRINRFRERS WARE
FHRINM o« AL ZEITIUBTEHE -
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37. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

PN 1 (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, on
initial recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was
calculated by discounting future repayments at an
estimated discount rate of 12.37%. Subsequently,
interest expense on the PN 1 was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying an effective
interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 was as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. A E®)

RAER(A

HE-Z—AFE+-_A=+—HIFE  R¥
SHAE AL EBIZAAE TR EETEL
B E12.37% BB R IGE FREEATE - Hig - &
HEBEVEABERAEEIZFE R E12.41%
FEF B -

EARBIRNBARZEHNT:

PN 1
& 5 ERA
HK$'000
F#& T
Fair value on initial recognition (note 46) VT ERFH R AE
(Bt 5%46) 73,496
Effective interest expense (note 9) TERF BB 2 (Ff#59) 6,080
Balance at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZ_Z—HF
+ZA=+—BR-_ZT—XF
—B—Hz &% 79,576
Effective interest expense (note 9) B R A B (539 9,279
Transfer to interest payables BEEEMNFE (7,200)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—7RE
+-A=+—HH S 81,655

The fair value of PN 1 amounted to approximately
HK$88,505,000 (2015: PN 1 amounted to
approximately HK$86,271,000). The fair values of PN
1 is calculated using cash flows discounted at rate
on the borrowings rate of 5.48% per annum and are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

A H EIER A A B 4 /588,505,0007%8 7T (=
T—RF A HEE14 586,271,000 7T)
ASEZEBINAARENFERAEREERN XY
BRI R G FLA8%HIRNBE R EAE I
WARREZFRMNE M -
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38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax
rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the year.

38. & %€ i JH £ 15

BEERERBEEEIREEEZE2RERR
A BE B U RA R R O B R 1 1F 2 BB

THAKEEEER
ERNRD -

VEERBRBERER

Revaluation
of properties

MES

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—A—H 159,756

Charged to property revaluation reserve R ESHEFEHANR 20,048
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZE—RAF+-A=Z+—HBHEZ=ZZ—RX

F—H—H 179,804

Credited to property revaluation reserve FAMESEHRER (3,448)

At 31 December 2016 MR=ZT—RE+=-H=+—H 176,356

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$486,132,000 (2015: approximately
HK$383,463,000) available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Included in the estimated unused tax losses
are losses of approximately HK$185,709,000 (2015:
approximately HK$117,817,000) that will expire within
5 years. Other estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$300,423,000 (2015: approximately
HK$265,646,000) may be carried forward indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these estimated unused tax losses due
to unpredictability of future profit streams.

RBREHR AEEEFHTADARE
E5 18 49486,132,0008 (=T — A F: 4
383,463,000/%8 7T) * A] FI{EHE £ B 1EH
RAIZAKGR - Het ABAKEBEEES
A &5 18 49185,709,0008 T (ZZE —HF : 4
117,817,000/ 70) S EF AN fEH o Hfifh st
KRB EHE#)300,423,000/8 7L (— T —FF :
49265,646,000/8 70) AT EE[R i &8 45 - AR K
FHEFIEE ATE R - M B B BERIE
EHEEE -
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39. SHARE CAPITAL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. ik A&

Number of Shares

Share Capital

2V 8 S §=| ;2.
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B—RE| —T—hHF | ZB—RE| —T—AHF
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T % F#ET FAETT
Ordinary shares of FHREECI0E T
HK$0.10 each (—Z—h%F:
(2015:HK$0.10 each) FREMEO0.10
7 T ) 1Y B A%
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and 31 R—A—HK
December +-—A=+—H 6,000,000 6,000,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREE
At 1 January n—H—H 3,331,722 2,888,389 333,172 288,839
Shares issued under HIRARRE ST
upon conversion of BT HD
convertible bonds (M 3E)
(note) 666,667 443,333 66,667 44,333
31 December R+=—A=+—8H 3,998,389 3,331,722 399,839 333,172
Note: B &

During the year, a total of 666,666,667 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued upon
conversion of the CB5 (note 36). In May and July 2016,
CB5 with aggregate principal amounts of HK$84,600,000
and HK$35,400,000 were converted into 470,000,000
ordinary shares and 196,666,666 ordinary shares of
the Company in total at a conversion price of HK$0.18
each, resulting in an increase in share capital and share
premium of the Group of approximately HK$66,667,000 and
HK$67,936,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of
443,333,333 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each were issued upon conversion of the CB5 (note 36).
In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate principal amounts
of HK$79,800,000 were converted into 443,333,333
ordinary shares of the Company in total at a conversion
price of HK$0.18 each, resulting in an increase in share
capital and share premium of the Group of approximately
HK$44,333,000 and HK$43,759,000 respectively.

F7R - 4 666,666,667% 5 i E(EO.01/8 T K &K
NEE R N R R R R AR A 1R BT (Y
H36)  RZE—AFRARLtA AGHBEA
84,600,000/ JT 135,400,000/ JT #) 5 T 3t 7] #&
BEFEEBRESROISETHBAKRAT A H
470,000,000 3% & 38 I% 12 196,666,666 % & i f% » &
AN S B B A R B 17 s (B 9 Bl 1S N #Y 66,667,000
7 7T }267,936,00058 7T °

HE-_Z-—hAf+-_A=+—BILEE &#
443,333,333% & I & (H0.01/8 JTAY AN R B & i IR
RERE R AR ES BT (HFE36) - R
—FHFNA 0 AR5 A79,800,0000 7T K AL
AMRESFELBRESRISE LEIRARAR
4 #£443,333,333R L@k - BEAA A MR A K
R% 153 34 8 9 Bl 12 A1 4944,333,0007% 7T }243,759,000
ETT ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

40. RESERVES

41.

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 102 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The special reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued in exchange for
the shares of the acquired subsidiaries under the
reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented (i) the entire
amounts standing to the credit balance of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June
2010; (i) the transfer of the share premium arising
from capital reduction on 29 September 2010; and
(iii) the offset with the accumulated losses in full up
to 31 December 2010.

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

40. fik

AEBAFERBEFENFERBELER
EPRGEAMBRRFICCENGEAERE
BERANZET -

Ry ) 7 48 15 P U B B 2 R AR (MO TED (B B R
AR B AR R 2 1R ER BT U B BT B X R B A 7
BETORONEEMRENEZE -

ARARMEENESRRKR(EZRBHE
—NN—FRRE) L) AR F A 4 B R R
“E-ZFERA=THOERZEER (i)
B-Z—ZF A+ BRAERMES
R BRI EE: L) BBEEEE T —
TET-_HA=+—HNRABEIE -

41. BEME R

AREfERREA
RBEHR  AEERBEIUBHELEHEE

commitments for future minimum lease payments BUTARNRERESFTORE - JHBER
under non-cancellable operating leases which mr
approximately fall due as follows:
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Within one year —&FR 12,665 8,589
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5 —Z$RF
(BREEMF) 35,091 28,506
Over five years HBiBRE 98,943 107,618
146,699 144,713
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. OPERATING LEASE 1. REME R

COMMITMENTS (continuea)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The HRL and its subsidiaries leased two pieces
of land located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan,
the PRC, under operating leases of 20 vyears
commencing from 3 October 2010 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. One piece of
land had been leased since 2010 and recognised as
finance lease obligation in 2011 as disclosed in note
34. Lux Unicorn leased three pieces of land also
located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the PRC,
under operating leases of 18.5 years commencing
from 1 November 2013 and renewable for another
20 years automatically. The Group also leased
premises under operating leases which are run for
an initial period of three years. None of these leases
include contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$352,000 (2015: approximately
HK$160,000). All of the properties held have
committed tenants for one year (2015: two years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

FREEBRBANE)

FEAREWBARREBLERELBMAP
B LmE LORELE BT —FF+
A=BRAH_-_+F EHEBR_T+F -
SANPT FES4FT IR - HP — IR B - —
TEHEHBRR-_E——FHERAMKA
EAE - BRBRECERENAMMaPEH
FBILEE LS =t BT —=F+—
A—HRAH185F  JEHEM_+F - K
SENMBECENELEYE  ZEHEY
TEP=F  ZEHEMTREXAHAL -

FREEBERAA

FREIRZYEME S WAL E352,000/E T
(ZZ—H%F  £160,000/ 7T) - i HEFT
AYVECRAX—FRFEAR(CZE—REF:
) o

R|ERR  ARBECEHBRIT LAY - K
K EBEEMNRDT

2016 2015

—E—-RE —T—AfF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHE T

Within one year —F R 199 385
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5 —Z=FRHF

(BEEREME) - 263

199 648
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BAR KB

2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Contracted but not provided for: EHEREE
Construction of properties e = 128,734 187,392
Authorised but not contracted for: BHLER KAL)
Construction of properties (note) 3 (3D 334,986 300,000
Note: B 5 -
Capital commitment for construction in properties related to WMEZSHERRERN PG ILEZZEH R
capital commitment for construction of film studio and hotel BIEMERNEERR - BREEBAR AR (KAF
in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was approved ZEEMBRAT) BEPREBILTI S EERAE -
by the directors of the Company according to the land WEEREEFR AR AR ES LB EESM
lease agreements signed between Lux Unicorn, the wholly- FIMITHEERSE  AARESEHEEITS
owned subsidiary of the Company and the local authority H-HHEEBEEASNRFIHERERHRET=
in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of lands for FERNFRIETRIEANEE

development of tourism and related entertainment business
and hotel operations. The completion of constructions and
commencement of operations of the projects shall be within
three and four years respectively from the signing of the
lease agreements.
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43.

44.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT
PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security
plans as required by the regulations in the PRC.
The Group also participates in the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme to which all qualified
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are entitled.
The assets of the retirement benefit schemes are
held, separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of the trustees. The employees
of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
social security schemes operated by the relevant
local government authorities. The pension plans are
funded by payments from employees and by the
relevant group companies. The amounts charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represent contributions
payable by the Group at the specified rates
according to the respective plans. The only obligation
of the Group in respect of the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had share
options schemes for employee compensation as set
out below.

(@) Post initial public offering share option
scheme

The post initial public offering share option
scheme (“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by a resolution of the
sole shareholder dated 22 July 2002 (the
“Effective Date”). Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i) The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables
the Company to grant share options
to selected persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the
Group.

(if) The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier,
customer and shareholder of any
member of the Group as well as any
provider of financial assistance to any
member of the Group.

AEEREBEFEEAR 2 MEL EREEBHER
EETE - AEE T2 BERNAKRBENEE
ZHBAREREBEEZARBMEAERTE - R
REMNFB 2EERARB 2 EERERA
2 EEDRAFKA - RPBENERRZ
BEREBEMBRIEBELER 2L SRRA
B 2KE - RRFHEI 2B 2R A 1EE KA
MEBARZHR NEcBEEREMEEH
WHEEARZ B AARERESTERE
TELL B 2 A5 - AR EA R RIRAE A
B2 —RERFHEEMRNK -

44. DL B Oy %5 B M 1Y £ 5K 32 5

R-E—RNE+-_A=+—HB XxE£EET
F AR BIREN MR A AR TS -

(@) ERARMMBRIERRETE

BRI R R 12 B AR 3T 8 (R A
PR AR R R ST B e =BT =
+A=+=8 (PR ) E—R Rk
BEBEOIE - Zi B E B K
HEL T

() BERDFEBRERBRESE
RABALHENA TR BB
- FRESFHAREELER
#) 22 B X [0 3R -

iy BRXAFABREBRETEZ2
HEBEAEBTMAKE QRN
THEE  ZEF BRIIERB
- RER  BERFEBRE UK
A 2 £ B {E ] Ak B A B HE i B I
BEBHHAL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

(@) Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted.

Share options may be granted on such
terms and conditions in relation to their
vesting, exercise or otherwise as the
board of directors of the Company may
determine, provided such terms and
conditions shall not be inconsistent with
any other terms and conditions of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme. The grantees
are not required to hold any share
options or any shares allotted pursuant
to any share options for any minimum
period.

The subscription price for the shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme
will be determined by the board of
directors of the Company and notified
to each grantee and will be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the share option,
which must be a business day, (b) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date
of grant and (c) the nominal value of a
share.

The limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme and other share option
schemes must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

44. VLI 7 2k Y 09 05F 5k 22 5 (42)

(@) BRAWBREBRESEE)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

ERAREREREZEZSAE
MARNBSIAIBT - AR
FEBUARERZEAEE14K
AT LA -

BRETRBEIBARRESES
EEAHBRENER  1TEk
E 77 H AR R AR AR
HERZ 16 R R M BB E R
B TR IR BB A A 5T B O (E T Eo
R R MR — B - AR ANEBIZ
TR ENRERFARFHEM
R IR =X AR IR AT ) B U A PTG
TR

RIZERAFHERR B AR &
REBBROHHBEE - $HARA
EERETTAMERARA M
ZERRLARUTZENES
E: @REBREREBH(BAR
EERBRMRBIMERARE
RATBETHE: OEXREBEH
Al T flE = 5 B R D OB X2 P & B
WERMBFHEHE: Rk
EE -

ER R &R AR R E B R R
AR EMBRESIER BN
8 R AT B8 B P B AT HE S0 BB AL
EITEMAIEEITHRMDEE
RENFBBIREETROD
30% -
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44. VLIS 2 Bk Y8 W 5wk 2 5 (48)

218

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at 17 October 2002, amounting
to 49,219,623 shares (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior shareholders’
approval. However, the Scheme
Mandate Limit as renewed must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of the aforesaid shareholders’
approval.

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted under the
Post-IPO Option Scheme to each
grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of share options to such
grantee which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options granted and to
be granted to such grantee (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the shares in issue, must be subject
to shareholders’ approval with such
grantee and his associates abstaining
from voting.

A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme at any time
during the period notified by the
board of directors of the Company to
each grantee provided that the period
within which the share option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant of the share
option.

(@) BERARBREBRESE(E)

(vii)

(vl

(ix)

ER I &R F R BRI
B R AF ] EoAth B AR A2 5T B T %
RIFR7 B R I 7T T ] BE B 1T
RGO EE - AETERBA-Z
ToF+A+ERBETROD
10% (BEN49,219,6230% ) ([ &) 4%
HEREE]) o ARRNBRIVER
LR o ATREREE H AT EI R
PREE o SATH - BT B
PR %8 T~ 15 1B %0 £ ST BT 4t IR 3R 4t
HEERAEEHTRMAI0% o

AR+ 8 A B E AR 5 B R
NGEE eI g IR E
BARLOEREBEDITE
KR ARATE RO S A ) AT (E
IR TETNROER - T
BRETRDETRMNMI% © fiH
Al 5% % AR A — P 3 H E AE
HERNBEZAE—FRHA
HET+— @A HEEEZEE
ERTREETZEARANMR
EBEEEEDTE  BiEH
KR ARATE RS A i) AT (E M
BEIRETEITHRMNERKIED
BEATIRMD1%IA £ - BB A B PR
RELAE  MZBARARHEBE
ALTEARERE -

BREATNAARREES B
B AR AN B A BE R AR 1B B R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

(a)

(b)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continued)

(x)

The Post-IPO Option Scheme
remains valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Effective Date. In
addition, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may
at any time terminate the operation of
the Post- IPO Option Scheme. Share
options which are granted during the
life of the Post-IPO Option Scheme
may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company,
the Post-IPO Option Scheme was terminated
on 29 September 2010.

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in

the extraordinary general
Company,

meeting of the
a new share option scheme

(the “New Scheme”) was approved on 29
September 2010. Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i

The purpose of the New Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional
incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of
the Group;

The participants of the New Scheme
include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company,
a director, a shareholder, a supplier,
a customer or any subsidiary of the
Company; an agent, adviser, consultant,
strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological
support or any valuable services to
Company or any of its subsidiary;
a holder of any securities issued by
Company or any of its subsidiary;

44. VLI 7 2k Y 09 05F 5k 22 5 (42)

(a)

(b)

BERAHBREBRESE(E)

x) BRARBREBERESSHE
MEEFTTHFERNER - I K
RAAEBERRAGBBERE
RBERKATAANRAEESHER
RIEBHR AR B &
HEE - MBERAFAEREBRK
AT EIE IR LR B A]
Eﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%uﬁ
& o

RERARBBRREIAE EBERN
FRRFER - BRARBRRERE
HAEER-ZE-ZEFAA-_TABE
1E e

88 B 4 5T 21

BRERARBBRRFIAE LBBH
FrplRE SR - — B B A A &8 (T3
EDER-_Z-ZEFAA-_TNAAE
HOE - BEETEMEEZHERBA T

() HEFBEERSINBERESH
AT~ RS EE AR RN
B ARSI ARBEERKD

(i) FEBNHNS2EEBFBEARANL
HEMMBRRNEMES &
£ OBRR HER FPIAR
AMEMMB LR mARE N
EAAT Y /B8 R AR AT B sl Hoftb
&L EMAEERBEOR
2 EE - EXER - KR -
EWE - DANE ERNE
B AR A Sl ELAE AR B B A A B
TTHEMEFORFAAN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) New share option scheme (Continueq)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

NATIONAL ARTS ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED 5 25 % 4% 3 b 4 [ 4 BR A 7

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted;

No offer of a New Share Option which is
capable of or open for acceptance shall
be made after the expiry of the exercise
period pursuant to the New Scheme;

The subscription price for the share
under the New Scheme will be
determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of making the
offer of grant of a new share option
but in any case the subscription price
must be at least the higher of () the
closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a Business Day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five Business
Day immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares;

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other schemes in
aggregate not exceeding 10 per cent
of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 24 June 2016 (2015: 29
June 2015), amounting to 3,801,722,816
(2015: 288,838,948) shares (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company
may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit
at any time subject to the approval of
the Shareholders in general meeting
provided that such renewed limit shall
not exceed 10 per cent of the Shares in
issue as at the date of approval of such
limit;

44. VLIS 2 Bk Y8 W 5wk 2 5 (48)

(b) HEERESE(E)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

AERAREMBEREZZRA
AARBXIBTT o 0B REE
1 AT AR B AR R 14K
T IAZR

RBEFEE - NERTERER
& e 2 R AR A IR AR
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a8l TR RBESHES
SRR BN 2R
EET ERBEERUWRD
AATI=ZFF0N8EE )k
DRIEERHBHMEALE
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WHE: (WEHRBERZED
A AL EREBIMEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

(b) New share option scheme (Continueq)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

The total number of New Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of
the New Share Options granted to each
grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Share Options) in any
12 month period shall not exceed 1 per-
cent of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue. Further New
Share Options may be granted to such
grantee, which, if exercised, would result
in such grantee becoming entitled to
subscribe for New Shares in excess
of the limit, by obtaining approval of
the Shareholders in general meeting
with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting;

The share options may be exercised in
whole or in part by the Participant at
any time during the exercise period, i.e.
not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant New Share Options
pursuant to the New Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly
signed in a form approved by the Board
(together with payment of the exercise
price in full in respect of each New
Share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the New Share Option certificate for
amendment or cancellation; and

The New Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which the New Scheme
becomes unconditional. The Board may
amend any of the provisions of the
New Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Scheme at any
time but no alterations shall be made
to the advantage of any Participant
unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All New Share Options
granted prior to such termination and
not then exercise shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme.

A5 B IV 5 i 3R B

EoE-AE+ZA=t+-RALEE

44. VLI 7 2k Y 09 05F 5k 22 5 (42)

(b) HEERHEEE)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme (Continueq)

No share option was granted, lapsed
and exercised during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015. The following table
discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by the directors, employees as
well as advisors and consultants.

44. VLIS 2 Bk Y8 W 5wk 2 5 (48)

(b) HEERESE(E)

BE_ZT—RER-_ZT—HRF+-A=
+—HIFE  $ERL EASEE
TEERERE - TREEEE - E
BN EBEEXBEMEAQRE
feiER & &) o

Number of share options

BREHE
Post-IPO Option Scheme New Scheme Total
BRABBRERRESR #atal @t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RF —Z-1% —E-RF —Z-1% —E-RF —Z-1%
At 1 January and R—A-BE
31 December +-A=1+-8 12,885,263 12,885,263 10,787,062 10,787,062 23,672,325 283,672,325
Weighted average MEFHTEE
exercise price HK$3.00# T | HK$3.00/870 | HK$T.00%TTL | HKS790% 7L | HK$5.18%T | HK$518% T
Number of exercise ~ {TF BREHE
options 12,885,263 12,885,263 10,787,062 10,787,062 23,672,325 23,672,325

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares
of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the share option
scheme was 23,672,325 (2015: 23,672,325)
representing approximately 0.59% (2015:
0.71%) of the Company’s issued shares capital
at that date. The weighted average remaining
contractual life was 3.8 years (2015 4.8
years).

During the vyear, no share-based payment
was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and comprehensive income
in relation to share options granted to the
directors and employees by the Company, with
a corresponding adjustment in the Company’s
share option reserve.

N-ZE—XRE+=-A=+—H8 5%
REBERENFECREERNAITER
B% #E 2 B 19 BB £23,672,3250% (=&
— 4 1 23,672,3250% ) * (EARABRZ
HE TR ALN059% (ZE—HF:
0.71%) ° IN#EFH FIgh & 4 F H A3.8
F(ZT—FHF:4.84F) -

FA TEARNRAXTEERESR
ZERENGABRE R E2HPRERE
RABMD/EEZNF REFRARQ
AR B EHEERERAENRE -
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45. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of balances with related parties are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
respective notes. Save as those disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into

406.

45. B 5 R B

HEM T 2 B BEN R MBI R &
RN - BRSPS RREMIN T KE
S - REBIERBEB TR L TR S

the following transactions with related parties:

2016 2015
—E—-REF —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Revenue received ke —E@EBAFRA

from a related company - 168
Other income H b U A - 80
Interest paid to a related company B — AR F B 454 1,364
Interest paid to shareholders 211 = F & 32,501 5,406
Waiver of interest of convertible bond %A% 7] 3 % (& % K] & 12,513 —

Compensation of key management personnel TELSEASHRH

The directors of the Group consider that they are the
only key management personnel of the Group and
details of their compensation are set out in Note 13.

ACQUISITION OF

FEEERERR  RERFEEZIEZER
AR BENMEFBENKEB -

T B R R 2 ) HE Y B

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION

B AR

OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a)

Acquisition of Lux Unicorn

On 22 December 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr.
Sin, pursuant to which the Group acquired
100% equity interest of Lux Unicorn. On
15 April 2015, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital
of Lux Unicorn. Lux Unicorn is principally
engaged in the sourcing and execution
of investment opportunities for real estate
development projects in the PRC.

(a) WehRERRA

RZZE—MOF+—A=+=H x5H
HEAEETVEEDE Bt A%
B Ug B B BE100% Mk iE - RZE—Hh
FHA+RBE  AEBEERKEEBED
BATIRARZ100% - B2 EB %A
WMEREETEEHERZBERA IR
Bikid o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

46. ACQUISITION OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(@)  Acquisition of Lux Unicorn (Continued)

The consideration consisted of (i) PN with
principal amount of HK$80,000,000 at
par value, (i) CB 5 with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 at par value; and (iii)
promissory note 2 (“PN 2”) with principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 at par value, in the
event that a land use rights certificate of a no
certificate land have been not obtained on or
before 31 December 2015, the PN 2 shall not
required to be issued.

At the date of completion, the directors
consider it is probable that the land use rights
certificate would not be obtained on or before
31 December 2015 and PN 2 would not be
issued.

Consideration transferred:

46. R WIHEM B Al E B WE
A g )

(@) WEERE)

ERE () A< 5 A80,000,000/%8 T
2 R B AR (i) AN 88 4300,000,000
B2 ERAMATBREES  Ri)A®
¥ £20,000,0007%8 7T 2 7 5 ZE 2 ([ %
HEE2]) Lz + i
FARZZE—RF+-A=+—Hzz
AIER A EB2GEETT -

RERAM EERA AMWLHE
FERETETEE —2—hF+— A
S+—ARZAER Bt ALER?
THE -

REENRE:

At 15 April 2015
RZFB—EEF
A+AH
HK$’000

TAET

Fair value of PN
Fair value of CB 5

Total

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition:

EARBZARE
FRMABKRESFZANE

et

73,496
330,005

408,501

AU BB B P U R B BB K% BT HE BB
BfE:

At 15 April 2015

NR-E—AF
A+AH
HK$'000
FET

Non-current assets EREBMEE
Land lease prepayments ENTHEE 402,251
Deposit birgca 1,250
Net assets BEFE 403,501
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46. ACQUISITION OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Lux Unicorn (Continueq)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Lux Unicorn
Limited

46. B W E AW E SN E
=X N=RI-YC-))

(@)

W B Bt ()
WEBBRERAANEZFR

Year ended

31 December
2015
BE-E-—AF
+=A=+-8H
I EE

HK$'000

THET

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances & : FTili i 238 & MR @ S EIEB & &

Consideration paid in cash AR & 2 R(E
acquired
Total HER

Acquisition of In Industrial

On 28 December 2015, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with
First Credit, pursuant to which the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of In Industrial.
On 28 December 2015, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% of the issued share
capital of In Industrial. In Industrial is principally
holding a licence which enables the vehicle to
travel and hang licence plate in both PRC and
Hong Kong.

The consideration consisted of cash of
RMB900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,079,000).

(b)

KEFAESR

R-B—RAFE+-_A=-+/\B K&EH
BE—EZRIIYEEHE B K
EBERETRET EI100%H R - R—
TZ—AFE+-A=-+N\BH KEBZEKX
B FREE100% 2 BEITHRA  F
REEFERE—RATAERNFTE
HEBMMITE M BHNERE -

REBIER S AR900,0007t (A&
491,079,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

46. ACQUISITION OF 406.
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of In Industrial (Continued)

Consideration transferred:

WA E A ESNE
A g )

b) WEERAEXE)
REERE:

At

28 December
2015
R-ZF—AF
+=A=+/\H
HK$'000

T T

Cash Be

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition:

1,079

AU BB B ER P U B 1O B B % BT EE R
BE:

At
28 December
2015

N-ZF—AF
+=-—A=+/\H
HK$'000
FHET

Non-current assets EFRHEE
Intangible asset mpEE

Net assets BEEFE

Net cash outflow on acquisition of In Industrial

1,079

1,079

WKEFREZFERLANE L F R

Company Limited
Year ended
31 December
2015
BE-FT-HF
+=HA=+-—8
IEEE
HK$’000
T T
Consideration paid in cash LRSS HZRE 1,079
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances & FTEEZ R & MRS EEBEEH
acquired —
Total #Et 1,079
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47. MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTION

48.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the aggregate outstanding principal of CB4
amounting approximately HK$9,869,000, early
settled by the issuance of loan from Mr. Sin
(Note 36).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
aggregate outstanding principal and accrued
interest of CB4 amounting approximately
HK$149,520,000 and HK$5,981,000
respectively, settled by the issuance of other
borrowings of approximately HK$114,879,000
and loans from shareholders of amounting
approximately HK$40,622,000 (Note 36).

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been proposed, or declared by
the directors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were approved for issue
by the board of directors on 22 March 2017.

47.

48.

49.

FREBHEZS

BE_Z-R"F+-_A=+t—HILF
B FOHrsREESEAEERS
# 7R #99,869,00078 TT 48 B 5% o E AT
ERIRF AT (M 5E36) ©

i HE_Z—RNE+-A=+—81I*F
BN ESHMAEELAS
427 I FE &R B 9 Bl £9149,520,000/%8
JC 15,981,000 LB BETHMEE
49114,879,0007% 7T & R A fx R B 3
#740,622,0007% 7T 4 1~ (Fff 7£36) °

Jit B
BE-F—AFT-A=+—HIEE &

AAEFRHEREXRERREA(ZE—1HF:
&) -

At e B B5 e

BE_ZT-—RFT-_A=1T—BHILFENEL
EUBREER_E—EF=_A=T-HE
ERgHAEEM-
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228

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES

OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E—RE e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current assets EFREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WEKEE 5 7
Investments in subsidiaries MBARZIZRE 882 882
887 889
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposit and other TERRIE - RS R HEAME
receivables W A 1,436 1,248
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 1,936,091 1,982,877
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITEH 2,102 7,947
1,939,629 1,992,072
Current liabilities k=K
Other payables and accruals HMEMNRIERESER 20,302 9,326
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < B 8 A B RRIE 784 —
Loans from shareholders R RE)E K 10,873 107,000
Borrowings BE 90,845 165,692
Bonds &% 61,115 2,073
Convertible bonds Al R & 5 - 151,382
183,919 435,473
Net current assets REEEFHE 1,755,710 1,556,599
Total assets less current liabilities EE&HEBRHEE 1,756,597 1,657,488
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Loans from shareholders & RBE R 451,471 32,500
Borrowings (== 48,048 18,600
Bonds EH 445,688 271,897
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 110,813 226,068
Promissory note R 81,655 79,576
1,137,675 628,641
Net assets EEFHE 618,922 928,847
Capital and reserves BERGHE
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ ZRABIHEH A FE(G # #5
Company
Share capital [i& 2 399,839 333,172
Reserves &t 219,083 595,675
Total equity HESEE 618,922 928,847
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2017 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Law Po Yee

BER

Director

EF

50. A2 ) W8 R D i % % il
i &)

ARRZHBRABREAEETEN_T—
TtF=ZA-T-AHERRENE  LHT
JIEERREFERE

Sin Kwok Lam
% B Ak
Director

EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =% — K4 #)

229



230

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—-T—~NF+-_A=+—HILFE

50. A2 vl i o 855K DL R % K G

fii ()

Movement in the Company’s reserves FATHHEES
Convertible
bonds Share
Share Capital equity Warrant Contributed options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
ORkES RRESE BB HE
BRipi@E EFHE I HHE BHERS & & RitisE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHELT FHERT FHET THERT FHERT FHERT FHET THERT
The Company FAH
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZT—AF—HF—H 620,011 (25) 51,040 6,399 76,471 26,229 (111,744) 668,381
Issue of convertible W i — R KT B A |l i

bonds arising from BATAARE S

the acquisition of a

subsidiary — - 46,697 - - - - 46,697
Share issued upon R R R &S AT

conversion of BEITH R

convertible bonds (HF£39)

(note 39) 43,759 — (12,421) - - - - 31,338
Lapse of warrants R TR — - - (6,399) — — 6,399 -
Lapse of the equity BE:Y e x

component of A K™

convertible bonds — — (5,235) - - - 5,235 -
Loss for the year REEFEE — - - - - - (150,741)  (150,741)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—FH%

and 1 January 2016 +=ZA=+—HEK

—T—XF—H—H 663,770 (25) 80,081 — 76,471 26,229 (250,851) 595,675
Early settlement of REPHEMTHRER

convertible bonds [ — — (2,893) — — — 2,878 (15)
Share issued upon R E R EAT

conversion of B8R 1 (BT £39)

convertible bonds

(note 39) 67,936 - (18,679) - - - — 49,257
Lapse of the equity BEY e $

component of o Kk

convertible bonds - — (42,912) - - - 42,912 -
Loss for the year KEERBE - - - - — — (425,834) (425,834)
At 31 December 2016 R= B — X%

+=A=+-—H 731,706 (25) 15,597 - 76,471 26,229 (630,895) 219,083
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves (Continueq)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of capital reorganisation and represents the
entire amounts standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June
2010 and the credits arising from capital reduction
for eliminating or setting off the accumulated losses
of the Company from time to time. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay dividend, or make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation and represents the excess of
the combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof.

50. A2 ) W8 R D i % % il
i &)

FATMREEDE)

RABMEHBRIIARASEHEMES - A
ARBR_ZB-—ZEFRA=ZTHEORMNEE
FRAERD BRI AELSER - AN
HERSRE EAAR AN RGTER - RIEA
RE-NN—FRFE ARRWNEHMAR
BRAE IR - A HAEAIEIBEMEE:()
RRBTREHN B EME BT E IR IR (X
BEEHDIRE TN E B B & & 3K (i)
ARREENAEREBEESEAMINEAR
REDETRAERD EEROEM - BIAR
RATNFEEHA BT IR AR EHF
K

ARBINERRFHB DA BAMES - AW
BHBARNAHEEFESHARRER
REMEBETORAEENBLY
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

W B 36 4

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—RE | Z=—hF —ENF —ET-—=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue LON 57,827 40,038 15,260 19,094 6,789
(Loss)/Profit before BRELAT(EE),
income tax il (327,092) (264,834) (142,989) (17,682) 2,897
Income tax expense RS’ B X - — (5,924) (6,543) (4,938)
(Loss)/Profit for the year F R (E18),
i F (327,092) (264,834) (148,913) (24,225) (2,041)
Attributable to: LATT FEAS
Owners of the Company AR &% A A (327,091) (264,828) (148,913) (20,614) (12,917)
Non-controlling interests 3F 5 % # 25 (1) ©) — (3,611) 10,876
(327,092) (264,834) (148,913) (24,225) (2,041)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND &E - A R
EQUITY
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZB-RE| —T—hF —T-NFE —T-=F —ZT—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT FAT FAT
Total assets BERTE 2,377,447 2,448,510 1,835,642 1,572,053 1,007,741
Total liabilities BEMLRE (1,737,469) (1,518,128) (763,168) (862,635) (213,926)
639,978 930,382 1,072,474 709,418 793,815
Equity attributable to RATIEE A E
the owners of the hE=
Company 639,740 930,143 1,072,474 709,418 571,494
Non-controlling interests JE 12 f% # 25 238 239 — — 222,321
639,978 930,382 1,072,474 709,418 793,815
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